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STANDING COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR

The Honourable James Murpock, P.C., Chairman :

The Honourable Senators

Aseltine Donnelly McGeer
Blais Dupuis Molloy
Bouchard Euler Murdock
Bourque Ferland Pirie
Buchanan Haig Robertson
Burchill Hardy Robinson
Calder Horner Roebuck
Campbell Hushion Taylor
Crerar Lesage Vaillancourt
Daigle Macdonald (Cardigan)  Veniot
David MecDonald (Shediac) Wilson

ORDER OF REFERENCE

ExTracr from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, March
13, 1947.

“That the Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour be authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act (R.S.C. Chapter 93 and
Amendments) its operation and administration and the circumstances and
conditions relating thereto including (a) the desirability of admitting immigrants -
to Canada, (b) the type of immigrants which should be preferred, including
origin, training and other characteristics, (¢) the availability of such immigrants
for admission, (d) the facilities, resources and capacity of Canada to absorb,

employ and maintain such immigrants, and (e) the appropriate terms and eon-
ditions of such admission;

" And that the said Committee report its findings to this house;

I:Ain(,i that the said Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
records.”

L. C. MOYER,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WeDNESDAY, March 26, 1947.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Immigration
and Labour met this day at 11.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators, Murdock, Chairman, Blais, Buchanan,
Burchill, Campbell, Daigle, Euler, Haig, Horner, Hushion, Macdonald
(Cardigan), McDonald (Shediac), Molloy, Robinson, Roebuck, Taylor, Veniot
and Wilson, 18.

The official reporters of the Senate were in attendance.

_ On motion of the Honourable Senator Roebuck it was ordered that a general
invitation be issued to interested persons to attend meetings of the Committee
and be heard. And, that Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Director of Immigration, Department

of Mines and Resources, be requested to attend before the Committee at its next
meeting.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Haig, seconded by Hongurable
Senator Roebuck it was ordered that Dr. H. L. Keenleyside, Deputy Minister of
Mines and Resources, be invited to attend the meetings of the Committee.

The Chairman read a letter from Mrs. Pearl Klotz, R.R.1, Wainfleet,
Ontario, with respect to admittance to Canada of certain of her relatives now in
Europe, and also an extract from a letter directed to him by Mr. A. L. Jolliffe,
Director of Immigration, Department of Mines and Resources, setting forth the
regulations prohibiting the entry into Canada, of certain persons in Europe.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Haig, the Honourable Senators
Buchanan, Burchill, Daigle, Murdock, Roebuck and Wilson, were appointed a
Sub-Committee on agenda.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Haig it was resolved that Lieut-
Colonel Arthur J. Hicks, Three Rivers, P.Q., former staff officer, Military Gov-
ernment in Europe, who appeared before the Committee at the last Session, be
invited to again appear before the Committee.

It was Resolved to report as follows:
_In connection with the order of reference of the 13th March, 1947, direct-
ing the Committee to examine into the operation and administration of the
Immigration Act, etc., the Committee recommend that it be authorized to print
1,000 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its day to day proceedings
and that Rule 100 be suspended in relation to the said printing.

At 1 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned until Wednesday, 23rd April,
1947, at 10.30 a.m.

H. ARMSTRONG,
Clerk of the Committee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE

WepNEsDAY, March 26, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour, which was authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act, met this day at 11.00 a.m.

Hon. Mr. Mugpock in the Chair.

The CuamMmAN: Honourable senators, I think we should first put on the
record the motion that was made by Senator Roebuck and which is our authority
in this matter.

That the Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour be
authorized and directed to examine into the Immigration Act (R.S.C.
Chapter 93 and Amendments) its operation and administration and the
circumstances and conditions relating thereto including:—

(a) the desirability of admitting immigrants to Canada,

(b) the type of immigrant which should be preferred, including origin,
training and other characteristies,.

(¢) the availability of such immigrants for admission,

(d) the facilities, resources and capacity of Canada to absorb, employ
and maintain such immigrants, and

(e) the appropriate terms and conditions of such admission;

And that the said Committee report its findings to this house;

And that the said Committee have power to send for persons, papers
and records. '

Senator Roebuck brought about the convening of this committee again this
session, and I think perhaps he might go ahead now and tell us what he thinks
we should undertake to do.’

Hon. Mr. RorBuck: Mr. Chairman, as sponsor of the motion, I suppose the
ﬁnggr does point to me when we assemble. The committee did a great job last
session and undoubtedly had a very great effect on public opinion, and I rather
expect, also on official action. There have been two revisions of the regulations
since our committee was appointed at the last session, and there seems to be an
Impression abroad that another revision will be made.

~ We are a fact finding body more than anything else, though we have the
nghtf totmake recommendations, and do; but our main function is that of finding
he facts.

; At the last session we had before us quite a large number of very interesting
witnesses. They made a great contribution to this most important subject of
immmigration. I suggest that we follow somewhat the same plan, but in addition
we 1ssue today a general invitation to anybody who has information or who
wishes to express views that do not just affect his own case. Of course his
own case should go to the Immigration Department; but if he has general
views, to come here and tell us what he is thinking.

It is important to note that since the last session we now have offices in
Europe. During the last session there was only one immigration office for that
area, and it was in England. Tt had not been closed during the entire war period.

i
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Today we have an office at Athens, Greece; at Lisbon, Portugal; in Paris, France;
at Brussels, Belgium; at The Hague, Holland; at Oslo, Norway. There are
more offices in the process of being opened. I am informed authoritatively that
offices will shortly be opened in Czechoslovakia and in Poland. Our officials
are not in Czechoslovakia, but they have not their office in order yet. I am not
certain that they are in Poland, but they are going there. It is hoped that by
about the 1st of May they will be ready to do business in both those countries.
In Switzerland arrangements have been made with the British Passport Control
Office at Berne for the giving of visas for Canada to bona fide business men
and visitors who are citizens of Switzerland. Arrangements are being made, or
have actually been completed, between our Department of Immigration and our
External Affairs Department, for representatives of the latter department to do
immigration work in Palestine.

Hon. Mr. Haic: In.Palestine?
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Haig: Do you want Arabs?

‘Hon. Mr. Roesuck: There are a great many English people and others in
Palestine, and a large number of relatives of Canadians, and there is work
to be done in that country. I suggest that we invite the Director of Immigration
to come, as he did last year.

Hon. Mr. Hatg: Who is that gentleman?

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That is Mr. A. L. Jolliffe. He gave us a splendid talk
!asfi year and was chalked full of useful information. I would suggest that we
invite him again to our first opening meeting.

_ Hon. Mr. Hate: I suggest that the Deputy Minister be invited, not to give
evidence, but to come here to hear what goes on.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: Dr. Keenleyside is deluged with invitations in that
department.

Hon. Mr. Hatg: There is no more important business to be considered this
year than immigration.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: May I ask if Mr. James Colley is to be invited? He

is representing the inter-governmental committee, and is the former chief of
immigration and colonization for the C.P.R.

Hon. Mr. Roepuck: Where is his office?

Hon. Mrs. Wisonx: He is Mr. James Colley who has an office in the Royal
Bank Building,.

Hon. Mr. Haig: I suggest that Keenleyside be asked to attend, because I
am acquainted with him and know that he is a very able young man. I think
if immigration is going to get anywhere in Canada, we have to face a tremendous
problem. There is a violent difference of opinion throughout the country about
the whole question, and we should have a man like Dr. Keenleyside come and
hear the evidence. One can read evidence, but it can be better understood and
appreciated by hearing it.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: It is moved by Senator Haig and seconded by myself
that Dr. Keenleyside be invited to attend. ;

The motion was agreed to.

. Hon. Mr. Roesuck: We have a list of the witnesses that we heard last year
in the report of last session. If it is agreeable to all members of the committee
I suggest that we send those people a circular letting them know that our
committee is sitting and invite them to participate.
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i Hon. Mr. Haig: May I interrupt once again to suggest that a young man
who appeared before us last year, I think from Sherbrooke, Quebee, gave a good
deal of very very fine evidence on the displaced persons.

Hon. Mrs. WiLsox: The young man was from Three Rivers.
Hon. Mr. Haic: I should like to see him invited this year.

((:) Hon. Mrs. WiLson: There are any number of young men who have been in
" these camps.

Hon. Mr. Hate: He seemed to have good general knowledge and outstanding
ability.

Hon. Mr. BucaanAN: Is Mr. Colley to be included in those to be called
before the committee?

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Yes. There was a chap named Keenan who had a good
deal of experience in Europe, and would make an excellent witness; I should like
to invite him.

I have some information that recently came to me that I think should be
placed on the record. A resolution was passed by the Episcopate of the province
of Quebec, which embodies all the Bishops of that province, some twenty in
number. The resolution was passed on the 11th of February, 1947, and is in the
French language. I would ask that it go into our record in French, and that an
English translation be placed immediately following.

DECLARATION DE L’EPISCOPAT DE LA PROVINCE DE QUEBEC
TOUCHANT L'IMMIGRATION

L’Epicopat de la Province de Québee, uni de sentiment avec Sa
Sainteté Pie XII, se réjouit de ce que le Gouvernement canadien soutienne
la cause de ces peuples déportés et errants en plusieurs pays d’Europe en
leur permettant de venir s’établir au Canada. Toutefois, il désire rappeler
que, méme dans I'exercice de ce devoir de charité et dans I'établissement
d’une politique d’immigration, il ne faut pas perdre de vue la nécessité
supérieure de sauvegarder la paix sociale & notre pays constitutionnelle-
ment chrétien, et de bitir sa prospérité future avant tout sur une saine
politique familiale.

Résolution passée par I’Episcopat
de la Province de Québee, & sa réunion
trimestrielle du 11 février 1947.

Le Secrétariat Permanent
de I’Episcopat Canadien

Ottawa.

STATEMENT OF THE EPISCOPATE OF THE PROVINCE OF QUEBEC
) CONCERNING IMMIGRATION

The Episcopate of the Provinee of Quebec, united in feelings with
His Holiness Pope Pius XII, is pleased to see that the Canadian Govern-
ment is upholding the case of those displaced and wandering populations
of many European countries, by allowing them to come and settle in
Canada. However, the Episcopate wishes to call to mind that, while
e exercising this duty of charity and establishing an immigration policy,
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regard must be had for the superior necessity of safeguarding social
peace in our constitutionally Christian country and of basing the future
prosperity of our country first of all on the family.

Resolution passed by the
Episcopate of the Province

of Quebec at its quarterly

meeting held on February 11, 1947.

The Permanent Seecretariat of
The Canadian Episcopate,

Ottawa.

I do not wish to comment at all on the resolution, but just to put it on the
record. It does come to my mind, however, to mention that our present immigra-
tion regulations are anything but family in their character, because we allow
single men in here and we refuse relatives of Canadian citizens on the ground
that they are married. I do hope that any revisions of the rules which are in
prospect will change that regulation so that men can come in here with their
families.

Hon. Mr. CampseLL: To what regulation do you refer when you say that
they are refused permission.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I mean to say that there are regulations that the father
and mother of a citizen of Canada, who is able and capable of receiving and
caring for them are admissible; and the unmarried brother and sister, but not
the married brother and sister; and very large numbers are being refused simply
because they have committed the sin of matrimony. The brother and sister are
admissible if they are single but not admissible if they are married. That is
not along the lines of the bishops’ thought of encouraging the family, and it is
working a terrible hardship. I wonder whether honourable senators realize what
it means for a Canadian to go to our own department and ask for the admission
of a brother who has gone through the hell of Europe during the last few years,
and be told that he cannot come to this country because he is married; or for a
father to ask for the admission of a son and be told that he cannot come here
because he is married.

Hon. Mr. Cameeern: What was the purpose of that diserimination?

__Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I cannot tell you. There must be some reason, because
it does not seem just to me.

Hon. Mr. CampeeLL: It surely cannot be a prohibition.
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: It acts as a prohibition.

. Hon. Mr. Hate: Tt is in existence. I know, because I tried to get a man and
his wife in from Poland. Three brothers of the wife have lived in my province for

years and years, and she was refused entry because she had a husband. Both of
them wanted to come in.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: T would like to bring down a whole list of cases which
I have, and which stir my deepest sympathy, where people have been refused on
grounds such as this.

. There is still another provision which I hope will be changed, in consonace
with what I have been saying. That is, that a nephew or a niece is admissible
only provided they are under eighteen years of age and orphaned of both parents.
There are of course some terrible cases, and I can give you the actual facts of
them, where a lone glrl'in a European country is refused admission to this
country because she is nineteen, not under eighteen, although she has no rela-
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tives in Europe, although she has an uncle here who would like to pay her passage
over and take care of her. Of course it cuts to the v ery depths of some people’s
sympathies. _

Hon. Mr. McDonarp (Shediac): Who framed those regulations?

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I do not know that. But they have been framed. The
Minister primarily responsible is the Minister of Mines and Resources; buf of
course the whole Government is responsible for these things. I hope "that in
the very near future those arrangements will be changed, that some common sense
and some humanity will be infused into them, and that we shall allow
immigration to this country of the relatives of people already here who are
capable of and willing to look after them—say, to the extent of first cousins,
married or unmarried, and their wives and families. The numbers would not be
very great, because, you see, you pile condition on condition. They must be rela-
tives, they must be in g,OOd health, and the relatives must be here. legally, and
those relatives must be ready to guarantee their success when they arrive and,
usually, pay the transportation as well.

Hon. Mr. Haic: They must be capable of supporting them.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: They must be capable of supporting them when they
are here, and sign a guarantee that they will be supported until they are
established. When you pile one condition on another condition you cut down
the number very rapidly. So there would be no overwhelming crowd of rela-
tives coming to Canada as a result of the widening of these regulations. But it
would do a tremendous amount to satisfy our people that we are thinking
humanly about it. And do not forget this, as I said in moving this resolution, that
the very best immigrants we have or that we can possibly get are the relatives
of those already here who have made good to the extent that they can take care
of a relative from abroad. They have somebody to guide them when they
arrive, to tell them of the Canadian way of life and how we do things, to
point out how to be successful, and to aid them in being successful. They are the
least likely of all immigrants who come to our shores to make Canada a mere
port of entry to some othel country. They ate the most likely to stay, to get
into business and to take part in the production of our country. So I am hopmg
that something will occur, and not too far away at that.

I think that is all, Mr. Chairman.

The CramrmaN: Honourable senators, I have here a brief which has been
filed and which deals concretely with this question of immigration.

Hon. Mr. Haig: Who is it written by?

The CratrrmAaN: Mr. Jolliffe. T have a letter from Jolliffe this morning on
it, and a copy of that letter is before me, and I think it would be interesting for
you to know what the apparent attitude of the Immigration Department is on
these matters.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: It might be worth while to read it now. Is it too long
to read?

The Cuamrman: No. There are four or five letters to read and put on the
record. Would you like to hear them?

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: May I interject? At your request, as you know, T wrote
fo Mr. McKay. He could not appear to-day, but will be available if you wish,
ater.

With regard to the question of single people, it goes even further than
Senator Roebuck stated, because there is a movement to bring single men to
Canada for certain occupations, and T know that that would not be the policy of
the Immigration Branch, which has always favoured family movements. But
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in this case, in so far as my information goes, it was not limited actually to men
who were single, that is not married, but it was proposed for certain specific
purposes to admit men who could come without their wives. A good many of
us would feel that, under present conditions, men coming here from Europe
without their families would scarcely constitute the very best type of settler,
and their admission certainly would not help in any way to alleviate conditions
in Europe. That is something which I would like the committee to look into.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: We will ask Mr. Jolliffe that when he comes. I was
leaving one phase of this situation to the senator, and that is the distinetion
which we are making between men and women in the matter of bringing in their
fiances. I expected her to say something on that subject. I have no less than
three cases in my files of young Canadian women who met flyers when they were
over here, became engaged, and these men having gone out of the country in the
pursuance of duty, these girls want to bring back these men to be husbhands for
them; but the Immigration Branch will not permit it. If the thing were reversed,
and it was the case of a male Canadian wishing to bring in a fiancee, the fiancee
would be admissible. I have a rather worse case than that. A Canadian girl
met a Polish man—it just happens to be Polish—in Canada, became engaged
to him, he went away and she followed him and married him in England. Now
they will not even let her in, much less allow him to come in, although she was
born in this country and has a father and mother living here.

Hon. Mr. Morroy: On what ground?

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: On the ground that, having married a Polish citizen,
she has acquired Polish nationality and lost her British citizenship and her
Canadian citizenship. In effect they say, “The place for you to go is Poland”—
and she is one of our own girls, born and brought up in this country, who has met
and married somebody we brought in here in the course of our war activities.
We keep him and her out of our own country, and hers. It is brutal, unreasonable
and unnecessary.

Hon. Mr. Haia: T agree with all the sentiments expressed by Hon. Senator
Wilson and Hon. Senator Roebuck. But I believe the inquiry should go further.
I know that it is a great temptation, especially to those of us who are practising
lawyers in any city and know the tremendous pressure of applications along the
Ii.nes suggested by Senator Roebuck, to stress the points he has raised. I could
cite several cases within my own knowledgé. But I believe we should go further
tha_n that; we should call the representatives of organized labour, of the farmers,
o_f industry, and other interests and obtain their views as to a general immigra-
tion policy. In making the suggestion I am not criticizing the Government,
because governments are only human, and there is pressure from certain elements
of organized labour against immigration, and pressure from certain parts of
industry for immigration; likewise there is pressure from farmers in some parts of
the country for immigration, while others are against it. In my opinion we
should ecall representatives of all these interests to find out what they would
suggest as a general policy for the Government of this country to adopt. For
instance, T would ask the president and secretary of the Trades and Labour
Congress, and also of the Canadian Congress of Labour, to come here and tell
us what they think of these proposals.

The CHAIRMAN : They did so last year.

Hon. Mr. Hate: I know, but T would ask them now to prepare a brief and
explain definitely their stand as to what they think the policy of this country
should b(_&. I would adopt the same course with regard to the organizations
representing Canadian industry. Then, our mayors have a wonderful organiza-
tion, including Toronto, Montreal, Winnipeg, Halifax, Vancouver and all the
other principal cities. T believe that this year the mayor of my own city is the
president, and I think he should be invited to come here.
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Hon. Mr. Roesuck: What is his name?
Hon. Mr. Haig: Coulter.
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: What are his initials?

Hon. Mr. Hatg: Garnett Coulter. I suggest that their organization should
be invited to send two or three representatives, because in the cities they have
to meet the immigration movement as it comes in, and handle it.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: Following Senator Haig's suggestions, I would
suggest that representatives of distinet industries be brought here rather than
of the manufacturers association. I have a reason for suggesting that. The
other day I received a letter from the general manager of the sugar beet industry
in Southern Alberta, in which he stated that they required a thousand hands
to work in the fields and this help was not available.

Hon. Mr. Hare: I was not trying to limit the number. I just wanted
to get all these outside organizations before us.

Hon. Mr. BucuaNnax: We might call somebody here from the Canadian
Manufacturers Association, and probably he would not be informed on the needs
of the mining industry, or the beet sugar industry, or the pulp and paper
industry.

Hon. Mr. Hate: I would call them too—all those organizations.
Hon. Mr. Bucaanax: That would be my suggestion.

Hon. Mr. BurcuiL: Mr. Chairman, I agree with everything that has been
said by Senator Haig and Senator Buchanan and others, and I feel very deeply
about this whole subject. After we make the inquiry as wide as we possibly
can by calling on everybody who can give us any light on the subject, what
shall we do then?

Hon. Mr. Hatg: We shall make recommendations.

Hon. Mr. BurcHiLnL: Honourable members will recall that last year a
large number of people representing various sources made excellent representa-
tions before this committee. I think the work that Senator Roebuck did on this
committee last year was simply marvellous. He spent a great deal of time on
it and gave his very best efforts to the furtherance of the object we had in
view. But what was the result of all that? We did everything that has been
suggested this morning and we called everybody we thought would throw any
light on the subject, and, as I say, they made excellent representations. After
that a very fine recommendation was submitted to the government, and what
happened? We are in just the same position that we were in last year, even
worse perhaps. I think we ought to consider this most carefully. I do not
know whether a steering committee would do anything, but it seems to me the
only way we can get the government to act is through publicity, and through
public opinion. From our experience of last year, it would seem that any
suggestions we make would have no effect on the department, and we should
consider that we have to get publicity and public opinion behind us before
we can get the government to do anything. Honourable members, T am of the

- opinion that we should seriously consider that phase of it too.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I thank the senator for those very kind remarks.
It must be remembered that the department changed its recommendations, once
while we were sitting and once shortly afterwards, and, while the changes
were not as great as we had hoped they would be or expected or recommended
they would be, they were in the direction of our recommendation. If one will
observe the newspaper reports of what took place in this committee, one must
come to the conclusion that public opinion was vastly influenced by what we did,
and I do not think the effect of what we did has run out yet. There is still
something by way of residue to come from our work.
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Hon. Mr. Haic: Mr. Chairman, as you all know, we had investigations
on the income tax problem as proposed by the senator from Toronto, Senator"
Campbell. One of the successes of the committee in getting tremendous public
support was through a steering committee, as Senator Burchill just suggested. I
feel that if we appointed four or five members of this committee to do some-
thing along that line we should make progress.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: Mr. Chairman, I agree with practically everything that
has been said, and particularly with what Senator Burchill said: that
unfortunately the recommendations of a Senate committee do not always
receive the attention that they should on the part of the government. However,
I feel that it is only by continued pressure that we shall eventually obtain at
least a measure of what we want.

Senator Haig has referred to the recommendations made last year by the
Taxation Committee. That committee did good work and made some good
recommendations. Unfortunately, largely because of the influence of the head
of the Taxation Branch our chief recommendation was not accepted. I for one
was very much disappointed. I felt that in some respects our work was almost
entirely in vain, but I do not think so now. Whether it is because of the fact
that a change has been made in the Income Tax Branch, the fact remains—and
I do not think I am betraying any confidence particularly when I say this—
that under present conditions and under the present headship, if you like,
what we recommended last session is very likely to be implemented. I say that
with some information behind me in regard to the matter. I think the present
head of that branch is very sympathetic to the one thing we want.

Honourable members, we can accomplish a good deal by hammering away
and continually pressing for the thing we want. Senator Burchill also asked
what Senator Roebuck got for the excellent work which he did. Well, he has
accomplished something of importance: and I agree that if we continue to press
the matter we shall have some really successful impact upon the government.

Senator Burchill also said this, and I agree absolutely with him, that results
are obtained not only by pressure exerted by a Senate committee—which I do not,
think has got quite the influence with the government that it ought to have—
but mostly by the pressure of public opinion. Public opinion can only be formed
through the press. If through this committee or any other committee we can
induce the press to hammer away continually at what should be done, it is

bound to have some influence on the public.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: I agree entirely with Senator Euler. I think that if
the committee sat every year and did not feel that it was getting anywhere, it
would still be developing public opinion. Last year it stimulated a lot of interest
that had not existed before. I am close to the newspaper business and I know
how this matter was discussed. A great many organizations have taken the same
attitude, and I feel that the door is opening a little further. If we keep at it it
will open further by bringing out information that is necessary for public
opinion.

Hon. Mr. Cameeers: I should like to make one or two observations on this
point. I agree generally with what has been said. What is required as much
as anything else is a clear cut statement, of what the immigration policy of this
country is. Not only in this country, but abroad, many people are trying to
find out what the Canadian policy on immigration is, and I feel that our
present method of dealing with immigration over a period of time was wrong.
It may be necessary to restrict immigration today because of lack of shipping
facilities, lack of housing accommodation and other matters, which make it
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impossible to bring in the great numbers I am sure are most anxious to come to
the Dominion of Canada, but I do not think that that need alter the position of
any country which is trying to lay down an immigration policy.

It certainly seems to me that Canada, along with the other dominions,
should at the earliest possible date lay down a definite immigration policy. I
may say that during a recent trip to England and the Continent I found two
or three people talking about going to Australia and South Africa to every single
person I heard expressing intentions of coming to Canada. It may have been that
that was just my own experience in running into the people I did, but I did make

“some inquiries about it and I learned that the Australian government had put

on quite a drive in England to get immigrants. In announcing their policy they
stated they would accept about 70,000 immigrants during the first year. 1 believe
that they had that number of persons apply, but they ran into difficulties in
shipping accommodations and finding space. I understand that to overcome
that difficulty the Australian government is chartering the Acquitania to provide
for the transportation of those people who have already made arrangements to
leave the United Kingdom and immigrate to Australia.

I feel that the work done by this committee last year was extremely well
received by the country as a whole. I am sure that all of us here feel that
Senator Roebuck deserves most of the credit for what this committee did.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: Oh, no.

Hon. Mr. CameeeLL: His knowledge of the subject, his interest in the
problem, and his untiring efforts in helping to direct the inquiry, brought about
the very excellent report that was tabled by this committee in the house last
yvear, I agree that it is only through a committee of this sort, and through the
publicity that the work of this committee gets, and the publicity given to
evidence of the witnesses who appear before the committee, that immigration
policy can be brought about. There are great difficulties, I suppose, in the
way of laying down any overall policy to-day, but it seems to me that the
time has come when we must do so.

Before taking my seat I should just like to make one observation on what
Senator Euler said. I feel the work of the Taxation Committee last year
accomplished something. I do not think it is betraying any confidence to say
thap after that committee was set up, and during the time the committee was
sitting, the departmental officers were keenly interested in the evidence pro-
duced before the committee and in the recommendations that were made. There
were certain recommendations which I think the great majority of the committee
—all except me—felt should have been embodied in the legislation of that year,

but the department felt that the act was in such a state at that time that one

recommendation involving appeals from discretionary orders eould not very well
be granted at, that time. A new measure is being considered and I hope that it
may be tabled in some form during the coming session of parliament. It may

. require a good deal of study. It may be impossible to enact the legislation at

thls,se.ssion, but I am sure if it reaches a point where it can be tabled with our
comr.mttee., the committee would make a valuable contribution in giving it
consideration and study. I hope that when that legislation is brought down many
of the discretionary provisions will be eliminated. I am sure that the work this
committee can do on immigration is just as valuable, if not more so, than the work
done by the Committee on Taxation.

Hon. Mr. Rpmapcx: Senator Campbell mentioned that Australia had
chartered the Aquitania. 1 had not heard that, but I am told very authoritatively
that the Aquitania will leave Europe—I am not sure from what port—on April
4, with fifty Immigrants aboard bound for Canada. Some newspaper reports
that have been written indicate larger numbers, but I understand there are
fifty only, and they are relatives of people here.
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Hon. Mr. Harc: I am in favour of Senator Burchill’s suggestion, and there-
fore move -that a steering committee consisting of the Chairman, Senator
Roebuck, Senator Buchanan, Senator Burchill, Senator Wilson and Senator
Daigle be appointed.

The motion was agreed to.

Hon. Mr. RomBuck: Mr. Chairman, when would we meet again?

Hon. Mr. Hate: I would suggest that the steering committee get together
and notify the chairman when they are ready to meet.

The CuairmaN: I have a case which I would like to draw to the attention
of the committee, because it contains some facts that we should know. A lady
by the name of Mrs. Pearl Klotz who lives at Wainfleet, Ontario, which is the
Niagara District, has with her family made quite a success of her farming
operations since coming to Canada last year. I took her case up with Mr.
Jolliffe, with a view to bringing some of her relatives here to work on her farm.
On the 2nd day of February she referred the matter to me again; I wrote to
Mr. Jolliffe, and replied to her letter on March 20. A copy of Mr. Jolliffe’s
letter to me, which was not very satisfactory, was forwarded to Mrs. Klotz. I
should like to read her reply:

WainrFLEET, March 23, 1947.

Dear Senxator Murpock,—This will acknowledge receipt of your
letter of March 23, which I thank you ever so much for all the trouble you
are going to for those unfortune people of mine and Europe. Senator
Murdock I would like to go into a little detail about my relatives. They
are Hungarian Germans, born there since a century ago and have no sin
at all, just paying with all they have to a awful war, which each one
would like to forget. These people had a home, land, 2 pairs of oxen
teams and a pair of horses and 7 children who all made their living at
home. Last September 10 when their work was done the government took
away their harvest and had the grapes harvest themself. And left them
food for three months. They have been told then that they are to be
displaced somewhere to Germany. They are still living in Hungary but
the new owner has occupied the house already. He has a room to live
in with his family and is waiting notice each day to be displaced. So
dear Senator Murdock if there isn’t a port of examination in Hungary, I
guess we can find them in the Hungarian displaced persons camp in the
American occupied zone. If they have been transferred in the meantime.
Thank you again.

: Yours sincerely

MRS. PEARL KLOTZ
R.R. 1 Wainfleet, Ontario.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: What relation are they to the woman in Canada?
The Cuammax: Sister and brother-in-law with seven children.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: Are they married?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Romsuck: They will not get in, no matter how extreme their case.

The CH.%IR”MANZ’ My first letter from Mr. Jolliffe was to the effect that they
had no examination port in Hungary.

Hon. Mr. Hate: They cannot come in under the present regulations.
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The CuamrMaN: I do not know what the view of the committee would be,
but I think that if these people are in the American displaced persons zone we
should be able to enter into an arrangement between the Canadian government
and the American government to bring certain of those persons here.

Hon. Mr. Haic: That is the problem at the present time; the government will
not let them in.

The CuAamRMAN: The other problem is their being Hungarian Germans.
Hon. Mr. Hate: I do not think we should act too quickly.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: We should not deal with specific cases. If we wish to
act, I have a hundred files in my office upstairs, and every one of them is heart
rending like the one mentioned by the chairman. We must not get into
individual cases. I may say that there has been apparently a change in the
methods of administration in our immigration department. In years gone by
one could go to that department and have each case considered on its own
merits. They would ask, “Is it a good immigrant or not a good immigrant?”
If he was satisfactory and it was in the interests of Canada to bring him here,
there was a special Order in Council passed to do so. But to-day our immigra-
tion department is very much like a slot machine. If you put in the right coin
you get the right answer. It acts on an automaton as to whether these people
come within the strict rule of the immigration regulations. If they do not, you
are wasting your wind.

Hon. Mr. Harc: I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that we do not go into speecific
cases this morning. We should hear the evidence, and have Mr. Jolliffe here
and let him tell us what the regulations are.

The CuamrMmaN: Here are some regulations submitted to me by Mr.
Jolliffe only yesterday: “In the first place they are citizens of Hungary and thus
enemy aliens. The admission of enemy aliens is prohibited by the regulations.”

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I believe I have had as much to do with individual
cases over the last eight years as have even the lawyer members of this committee.
We had a few cases of German citizens, and according to the Immigration .
Department, if their records are satisfactory they become eligible if they are
within the provisions of the regulations concerning relations.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: They can always make a special case by Order in Couneil.

Hon. Mrs. Witson: Yes. I should like to say that yesterday I received
a letter from Miss Constance Hayward, Executive Secretary of the Canadian
National Committee on Refugees, who is now on the invitation of the inter-
governmental Committee visiting Germany and waiting to go into Austria. She
said there was great excitement in the camps over the fact that there were some
to be admitted to Canada. But she added that roughly it would not amount to
more than six or eight from each of those camps. She also mentioned that the
particular camp that she had visited the day before had been turned over to
UNRRA, to what I think they call “UNRRA Officers Class II” which is the
D:P’s; and they were handling that camp and doing it very satisfactorily. She
said that it showed how even under very difficult conditions these people, given
a little opportunity, could look after things in a satisfactory manner.

I thought perhaps we could arrange for Miss Hayward to come before the
committee, as she will be back in Canada next month. She is now abroad as a
representative, I believe, of the Canadian Council of Churches, the Ecumenical
Congress which is taking place at Copenhagen.

May I say how interested I was in Denmark’s golden example, as appeared
by the Christian Science Monitor of March 21. With regard to people who
have been taken from Germany to Denmark for labour, though they would like

85760—2
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to be rid of this tremendous load, these people are being treated as well as
possible, and they are being treated with some understanding and on principles
other than those of Nazism.

The CrarMAN: Honourable senators, may we deal with this motion before
the committee adjourns.

The Standing Commitee on Immigration and Labour beg leave to
make their second report, as follows:

In connection with the order of reference of the 13th March, 1947,
directing the Committee to examine into the operation and administration
of the Immigration Act, etc., the Committee recommend that it be auth-
orized to print 1,000 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its
day to day proceedings, and that Rule 100 be suspended in relation to
the said printing.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

The motion was agreed to.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Before we leave I would like to draw attention to the
excellent attendance in committee this morning. 1 do suggest that when we
meet again honourable senators come and make a go.of the work of the
committee.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I should like to say that I attempted to get copies of

the proceedings of the committee last session in French, but was unable to secure
them.

Hon. Mr. Rosinson: I think all honourable senators appreciate what
Senator Roebuck has done in giving the appropriate publicity through the press
of the work of this committee. A remark was made by Senator Campbell about
some experience he had in contacting people in the United Kingdom. I spent
a little time in that country during the war, and I found many people talking
about Canada; I would say five to one. Since I came home to Canada I have
had letters from these people expressing disappointment with conditions over
there. There are many, many who look to Canada as the future of the Empire
—the future of the British Commonwealth of Nations. I think that there are
a great number in the United Kingdom who feel that they must go to some
other part of the Empire, and they naturally look to Canada. These people are
interested in becoming Canadian citizens, and there would not be the problem
- connected with their entry into Canada that there would be with the persons

from the Displaced Persons Camps.

They would like to make their future homes in this country. I think,
Senator Roebuck, if you would delve into that situation as much as you can, we
may be able to get something started. All these other problems which have been
referred to are difficult. It is very difficult to bring residents of continental
Europe into this country; so many problems have to be considered. But I can
see very little to prevent a suitable Britisher from the United Kingdom, a good
citizen, being brought in and given a chance to start a new life in Canada. I
would not want to urge anything too drastic, because the British people are
havine a hard time and, T understand, are not altogether favourable to the emi-
gration of too large a number of their citizens. But I do not believe that Canada
was ever in a better position to receive suitable immigrants, suitable new Cana-
dians, than at the present time. Our future depends upon our ability to evolve
an immigration poliey which will be broad and fair to these people and to Canada
and the Fmpire as a whole. A great future awaits us.

The CHAmMAN: Two days a week are reserved for the meetings of this
committee when we return at the end of April. They will be held at room 368.
T take it that the subcommittee will arrange to get the necessary witnesses to
come hefore the committee on those oceasions.

The Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.



o

ol N







1947

THE SENATE OF CANADA

PROCEEDINGS

OF THE

STANDING COMMITTEE

ON

Immigration and Labour

On the operation and administration of the
Immigration Act, etc.

No. 2
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 23, 1947

The Honourable James Murdock, P.C., Chairman

WITNESSES:

Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Director of Immigration, Department of Mines
and Resources.

Dr. H. L. Keenleyside, Deputy Minister, Department of Mines
and Resources.

APPENDICES:

A. Copy of Order in Council P.C. 695, dated 21st March, 1931.
B. Copy of Order in Council P.C. 2071, dated 28th May, 1946.
C. Copy of Order in Council P.C. 371, dated 30th January, 1947.

OTTAWA
EDMOND CLOUTIER, C.M.G., B.A., L.Ph,,
PRINTER TO THE KING’S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY
CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
1947






STANDING COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR

‘ The Honourable James Muroock, P.C., Chairman

The Honourable Senators

Aseltine Donnelly McGeer
Blais Dupuis Molloy
Bouchard Euler Murdock
Bourque Ferland Pirie
Buchanan Haig Robertson
Burchill Hardy Robinson
Calder Horner . ~ Roebuck
Campbell Hushion Taylor
Crerar Lesage Vaillancourt
Daigle Macdonald (Cardigan)  Veniot
David McDonald (Shediac) Wilson
ORDER OF REFERENCE
EXTRA({; f11'0m the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, March
, 1947,

“That, the Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour be authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act (R.8.C. Chapter 93 and
: Amendments) its operation and administration and the circumstances and
‘ conditions relating thereto including (a) the desirability of admitting immigrants

to Canada, (b) the type of immigrants which should be preferred, including
origin, training and other characteristics, (c) the availability of such immigrants
for admission, (d) the facilities, resources and capacity of Canada to absorb,
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WepNEsDAY, 23rd April, 1947.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Immi-
gration and Labour met this day at 10.30 A.M.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Murdock, Chairman; Burchill, Camp-
bell, Crerar, Daigle, David, Euler, Ferland, Haig, Macdonald (Cardigan),
Robinson, Roebuck, Taylor and Wilson.—14.

The Committee proceeded to the consideration of the Order of Reference of
the 13th March, 1947, directing the Committee to examine into the operation
and administration of the Immigration Act, ete.

The official reporters of the Senate were in attendance.

Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Director of Immigration, Department of Mines and
Resources, was heard, and read a prepared statement on the operation and admi-
nistration of the Immigration Act and the organization of the Department out-
side of Canada for examination of prospective immigrants into Canada, and was
questioned by Members of the Committee.

Mr. Joliffe filed copy of Orders in Council P.C. 695, dated 21st March,
1931, P.C. 2071, dated 28th May, 1946, and P.C. 371, dated 30th January, 1947,
with respect to the classes and occupations of immigrants admissible to Canada,
which were ordered to be printed in the record. ;

Mr. Joliffe undertook to furnish for the information of Members of the
vommittee a statement showing the racial origin and country of residence of
immigrants who entered Canada during the year 1946.

Dr. H. L. Keenleyside, Deputy Minister, Department of Mines and
Resourceg, was heard, and gave an outline of the efforts now being made to
secure shipping space for prospective immigrants to Canada from the United
Kingdom and Europe, and the facilities of the Department overseas for exami-

nation of immigrants to Canada, and was questioned by Members of the
Committee.

At 12.30 o’clock, p.m., the Committee adjourned until to-morrow, Thursday,
24th April, instant, at 10.30 A.M.

Attest.

H. ARMSTRONG,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE, :
WEDNESDAY, April 23, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour, which was authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act, met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Hon. Mr. Murpock in the Chair.

The CuamrMAN: Honourable senators, we have a quorum and I think we
might now proceed. As one distinguished senator has intimated, he wanted
to get away rather early. Now, we have with us this morning Mr. Jolliffe,
Director of Immigration, and Dr. H. L. Keenleyside, recently appointed Deputy
Minister, Department of Mines and Resources, who is also interested in the

immigration question. Now, if there are no objections, we will hear from
Mr. Jolliffe first.

Witness: Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Director of Immigration, Department of Mines
and Resources, Ottawa. :

Mr. JoLrirre: I have prepared a statement in accordance with your sug-
gestion which, with your permission, I shall now read.

The CmAmMman: I understand there are not sufficient copies for us all to
have one now, but we will have it in the record a little later. 3

Mzr. Jolliffe:

STATEMENT-OF A. L. JOLLIFFE

DIRECTOR OF IMMIGRATION

~ In giving evidence before this Committee on May 21, 1946, 1 described
In some detail the organization of the Immigration Branch of the Department
of Mines and Resources and explained its functions. I also dealt with the
provisions of the Immigration Act, particularly relating to the authority on
which the regulations governing the admission of immigrants is based, the
cxli}ssejs of persons both admissible and prohibited, the procedure for admission,
rejection, deportation and right of appeal from a rejection or deportation order.
As this information is on record, I presume you will not desire that the same
be furnished again.

_Perhaps it will be useful if I briefly summarize the immigration situation
as 1t existed early last year and then record the developments of the ensuing
eleven months. It will be recalled that from 1930 the number of immigrants
admitted to Canada each vear steadily decreased due to the depression and
the changes. made in the regulations necessitated by the general economic condi-
tions. During the first four years of the war overseas immigration practically
ceased. All this time the regulations provided for the admission of British
subjects as specifically defined, United States citizens from the United States,
the.w1fe and unmarried child under 18 years of age of residents of Canada,
agriculturalists with funds intending to farm in Canada.

g Following the cessation of hostilities the primary activities of the Immigra-
tion Branch and other government agencies concerned with the movement of
people to Canada from overseas were directed toward the return of Canadians
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who had been held in the United Kingdom for long periods owing to lack of
ocean transportation, the bringing forward of the bulk of servicemen’s dependents
from the British Isles and the Continent, and the repatriation of Canadians
from territory freed of enemy control. These movements, together with the
return of service personnel, required the use of all the available shipping until
early in the present year. The movement of 65,000 dependents of servicemen
was in itself a considerable task.

While these various undertakings were being carried out, plans were
formulated for the movement of immigrants when this could commence. The
initial action was a widening of the regulations to include in the admissible
classes certain additional relatives of residents of Canada. Order in Council
P.C.2071, dated May 28, 1946, provided for the admission of the father or
mother, the unmarried son or daughter 18 years of age or over, the unmarried
brother or sister, the orphan nephew or niece under 16 years of age of any
legal resident of Canada. ‘

Recognizing that lack of transportation, the chaotic condition of rail travel
in Europe and the strict frontier controls between countries would prevent
for some time any appreciable immigrant movement, the Minister on May 29
when announcing in the House of Commons the extending of the admissible
classes of immigrants, directed attention to the fact that while every effort was
being made to complete the movements just referred to, it undoubtedly would be
the end of the year before much accommodation would be available for the
ordinary traveller.

The next step taken was to provide immigration inspectional facilities
on the European Continent. Immediately prior to the war Canadian Immigra-
tion inspectors and medical officers examined immigrants at Paris, France;
Antwerp, Belgium; Rotterdam, Holland; Hamburg, Germany and Gydnia,
Poland, but in the early post-war period it was not possible nor was it necessary
to re-establish all of these points of inspection. Last summer authority was
obtained from the Belgian, French and Netherlands governments to re-establish
Canadian inspectional offices in these countries and immigration. staffs were
assigned to them in November, 1946.  Provision was also made for the granting
of immigrant visas at Canadian Missions so that at the present time immigrants
can be examined in Norway, Sweden, Denmark, Switzerland, Czechoslovakia,
Portugal and Greece, in addition to the three countries already named. With
the expected opening of a Canadian Legation in Warsaw within the next two
or three months, immigrants will also be able to obtain immigration visas in
Poland.. Thus at the present time immigrants can be examined in eleven
European countries as compared with five countries prior to the war. The
reason fql' this expansion of inspectional facilities is the fact that prior to the
war immigrants could freely travel from their country of residence to embarka-
tion points for immigration examination, while under present conditions they
cannot move from one country to another en route to Canada without having
first obtained a Canadian immigration visa as evidence of admissibility to this
country.

It has not been possible as yet to provide for immigration inspection in
enemy countries other than to a limited extent in Germany. Normal immigration
activities cannot yet function in Germany, this country being under military
control. The problem of dealing with displaced persons in Germany has been
met by the use of the facilities available to the Intergovernmental Committee
on Refugees. Arrangements were made with this international organization for
their staffs to 1oc;a}tve in Germany and later in Austria displaced persons in these
countries admissible to Canada under existing regulations whose relatives in
this country haye made application for their admission. The IGCR contacts
the prospective immigrants, provides for their preliminary medical examination

i

b R —




.m)

IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR 15

and moves them to selected points of concentration where they can be examined
by Canadian immigration teams now operating in Germany. Following the
issuance of immigration visas, transportation to Canada is arranged by the
IGCR. This procedure has been necessarily slow at its commencement. Difficul-
ties causing delays in individual cases have been experienced—for instance,
immigrants stated by their relatives in Canada to be in certain concentration
camps had moved therefrom before they could be contacted and considerable
time elapsed before they were located. However, the machinery is now working
more smoothly.

On January 30 last by Order in Council P.C. 371, the regulations were
further widened providing for the admission of farm labour, and persons
experienced in mining, lumbering and logging when destined to assured employ-
ment. Provision was also made to admit the widowed daughter or sister, (with
or without unmarried children under 18 years of age) of legal residents of
Canada, and to raise the age of orphan nephews and nieces admissible from
“under 16” to “under 18”.

1 should like to file with your Committee copies of the Orders in Couneil
referred to above, i.e., P.C. 2071 dated the 28th of May, 1946, and P.C. 371 dated
the 30th January, 1947, also a consolidation of P.C. 695 as amended which des-
cribes the admissible classes of immigrants, including those in the Orders in
Couneil T have just mentioned.

The Immigration Branch and the Department of Labour are actively
engaged in determining the labour requirements in agriculture, mining, lumbering
and logging with a view to bringing to Canada from Continental Europe
immigrants in these classes where it is established their services are required. The
matter of the admission of domestic servants is also under consideration. It is
not possible to seleet immigrants in many countries at present; the main source
of supply for any bulk movement of the classes of labour admissible under the
regulations is displaced persons in occupied territory.

The chief obstacle to an extensive immigration movement this year is still

the matter of ocean transportation. While it is not possible to accurately
estimate the number of British subjects in the United Kingdom who are awaiting
the opportunity to proceed to Canada, it is certain that the number coming
forward will be limited only by the steamship accommodation and not by any
lack of prospective British immigrants. The transportation situation is extremely
d'ls,/prOinnbin‘g and every effort is being made to obtain the release of additional
ships for the Canadian service to supplement those known to be available for
the Canadian route this year.
_ While this statement has necessarily been a brief outline of the general
Immigration situation in so far as immigration from Europe is concerned, I
hope the same will be of assistance to this Committee in its study of the com-
plicated immigration problem.

. I have brought twenty-five copies of the regulations as just mentioned as
being consolidated, if they would be helpful to the committee.

Hon. Mr. Roepuck: They will.

Mr. Jorurrre: And I have several copies of the mimeographed Act as well.

: Hon._ Mr. RoeBuck: You mentioned some effort being made to. obtain
shipping in order to supplement that already in service. Can you give us any
n}formatlon as to what the picture is prior to the supplementing; what is the
picture now with regard to shipping?

Mr. JouLirre: The picture at the present time with regard to shipping is
that there are only two vessels from the United Kingdom that will be in regular
service this summer, the Cunard liner Ascania and the Canadian Pacific liner
Empress of Canada. The Aquitania which has been used for troop service
and later in the handling of the dependents is still operating to Halifax, and I
believe it is planned to operate her for one or two more trips.
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Hon. Mr. Hatg: Where is it going then?

Mr. JorLirre: I do not know, sir.

Hon. Mr. Hatc: To Australia?

Mr. Joruirre: I do not know, officially; I only know what has appeared in
the press, where it was proposed that she go to Australia; but there were some
statements made later that that idea had been abandoned or had fallen through.
She is due, I believe to be serapped.

Hon. Mr. Roepuck: It seems remarkable to scrap a ship that will float at
all, due to the shortage. It is claimed in the press that she is uneconomical and
it takes too much to run her. It seems to me that that is a remarkable reason
for serapping a ship at this time. She served throughout the war, and she is
now in service. '

Mr. JoLLiFre: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: The last report of her was in connection with the
tremendous storm which she went through a couple of days ago, in which storm
a number of people were injured due to the very high velocity of the wind; and
the report said however, that the ship herself was uninjured. You have told us
that two ships are now directly engaged?

Mr. JoLuirre: No, they will be; they are now being refitted and it is expected
that they will be in service in May; but there has been a delay for some reason,
and I believe they will not be ready for about a month later.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: What boats are in operation now?

Mr. Jorrirre: The Aquitania and one other small ship that has been
operating. -

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And has that been the total passenger equipment as
between Canada and Great Britain?

Mr. Jorurrre: Right.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: For all passengers?

Mr. JoLuirrE: Yes. :

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: That is, between Canadian ports and British ports?

Mr. Jouurre: Yes.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Then, there is the shipping that goes from British ports
to the United States. -

Mr. Jourrre: That is right, there is the Queen Elizabeth. And the Maure-
tania will, I believe, soon be operating, and there will be a certain movement to
Canada of immigration traffic by both those vessels; but the immediate accom-
modation available is extremely small. I presume that cost would enter into
the factor of using smaller vessels.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And there is some traffic by air, too?

: Mr. Joruirre: Yes, there is some traffic by air, that is, immigration traffic,
mean.

~ Hon. Mr: Roesuck: We will be having the steamship eompanies here, too, I
think, who will probably give us the authoritative information as to what they
are doing; but at the present moment, your department is dependent on the
number of men and women who can be carried?

Hon. Mr. Hare: Has the department ever considered renting the Aquitamia
and using it? .

Mr. JoLuirrg: That really is not a departmental matter; that is a matter
more of government policy.

Hon. Mr. Haa:
that question?

X
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M. Joruirre: No.
Hon. Mr. Haig: It seems to me that is what you have to face.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I understand that Australia has made arrangements
with Great Britain to have a battleship assigned for the carrying of immigrants
from Great Britain to Australia. But there is nothing like that going on here?

Mr. JoLuirre: No.

Hon. Mr. CampseLL: How do immigrants arrange for transportation; is it
left up to the individual immigrant to get here the best way he can through the
companies? 4

Mr. JorLuirrE: Yes; the department is in no way responsible for obtaining
transportation for an individual immigrant. And so far as the United Kingdom
is concerned, the only two things that have to be done are: first, to acquire
transportation, and secondly, to have his medical examination and come forward.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And must they be British subjects?

Mr. Joruirre: Yes, British subjects in the United Kingdom admissible
under the regulations.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Not just anybody in the United Kingdom?

Mr. Joruirre: No; but any admissible immigrant in the United Kingdom.

The CHAIRMAN: In connection with the Polish farm helpers, is not the
government paying their transportation?

Mr. JoLLirre: Yes; you are referring to the Polish movement. That has
been a movement separate and distinet, from the admission of immigrants.
These Polish people are agricultural workers who were in the Polish forces in
Italy and they were removed to the United Kingdom in order to assist in
agricultural work, in view of the shortage of agricultural workers. Then arrange-
ments were made whereby Canada would take 4,000 of these Polish ex-veterans.
The question of transportation has been raised, and we found what actually
happened was this; that these veterans were being moved from Italy to the
Unlteq Kingdom, and the only problem involved in the transportation was the
changing of the ship from Italy to Liverpool, let us say, or from Italy to Halifax.
In othe;‘ words, transport was available, transport for troops, the transportation
end of it. So men were sent to Italy in order to select the men according to the
standards set up for agricultural workers; and there were, approximately,
twenty-nine hundred of them available then. Others had moved to the United
Kingdom and these people were brought to Canada last fall, the twenty-nine
hundred, leaving a balance of eleven hundred, approximately.

: I’II‘?he CHamMAN: Did these twenty-nine hundred have wives or families
at all?

Mr. JoLrirre: No, most of them were single men.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: Were any of them married?

Mr. Jorutrre: 1 do not think so, Senator.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: Anyway, you do not know about any wives or
families?

Mr. JoLuirre: No, they were to be single men.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Then I suppose that applies to those in England
whom they are examining now. It appears that officials of the Immigration
Pepatl“;ment are ‘leaving in a few days by air. Is there something in that
eport?

Mr. Joruirre: Not officials of the Immigration Department; officials of the

Labour Department and they are now over there. I think they arrived a day
or so ago.
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Hon. Mr. Hare: What examination did these twenty-nine hundred undergo
before they were brought here to Canada?

Mr. JoLuirre: They were examined as to fitness in farm work, and there
was a medical examination to establish their médical and physical fitness.

Hon. Mr. Hatie: Have they turned out to be medically all right since
they got here?

Mr. JoLLirre: A number of them were found after arrival to be medically
unfit for immediate work.

Hon. Mr. Hatg: Where are these pepole now?

Mr. JoLuirre: They are now in hospital; I believe, somewhere in the vicinity
of Brandon. 3

Hon. Mr. Haic: And who is paying the expenses of that medical care?

Mr. Joruirre: I cannot answer that question.

The Cuaarman: What hospitals are they in?

Mr. Jorvirre: I believe they are in Manitoba.

Hon. Mr. Hatg: At Brandon; and who is going to pay for them? At the
present time you want the provincial government to pay for them.

Mr. JoLuirre: 1 cannot answer that.
Hon. Mr. Haic: Who can answer it?
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Obviously this witness cannot.

Hon. Mr. Haig: I think I am entitled to know. It was his department
that brought them to this country, so it may be that he can tell me where to get
the answer. He ought to know. He is one of the high officials of the Immigra-
tion Department. Do you say you have no control over it, Mr. Jolliffe?

Mr. Joruirre: The movement is under the direction of the Department of
Labour. "

Hon. Mr. Haig: Then you have no control over it at all?

Mr. Joruirre: No, we have no control over the movement by the Depart-
ment of Labour.

Hon. Mr. Hatc: Then we will have to get the Labour Department here.

~ Mr. Jorurrre: I understand they are suffering from tuberculosis and that
18 a very dangerous thing.

The Crammax: Mr. McNamara’s representative will be here to-morrow.
Mr. McNamara himself is unable to come, but his representative will be here.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: In the selection of these people, that was done by the
Labour Department?

Mr. Joruirre: Yes.

_Hon. Mr. Crerar: And the Immigration Department’s part of the trans-
actlon was to see that they came within the proper regulations, medical and
otherwise?

Mr. Jovuirre: That is right.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: And who paid their expenses, the British government?

Mr. Joruirre: Yes, I believe so.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Do you know how many of them were medically unfit
when they finally came here? :

The Crarman: He has said about 70.

. Mr. Jorurre: It finally developed to 70; they were ex-rayed after their
arrival in Canada, and there was a number of them of whom there was some

suspicion, in fact, a number larger than 70; but the official examinations brought
the number down to approximately 70.
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Hon. Mr. Crerar: And at the present time you say there are a couple of
teams from the Labour Department who have gone over to “vet” some more
of them?

Mr. Jovuirre: Yes. ;

Hon. Mr. Crerar: That is, solely on the basis of agricultural labour?

Mr. Joruirre: Correct.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Can you tell us as to the standard of agricultural labour,
how these Poles come within such a definition?

Mr. Joruirre: Well, he would have to be an experienced agricultural
worker. * The representatives of the Department of Labour who were overseas
last fall and who are now overseas, will examine these men individually in order
to establish that they are experienced farm workers.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Well, they may meet a good husky looking fellow with
a strong back and good physique and they may say: did you have agricultural
experience? And the fellow who wants to get out of Britain, will say: Oh, yes;
I am a farmer. Now, how can they really tell?

Mr. Joruirre: That is a difficult question to answer.

Hon. Mr. Hae: I think you had better ask the Labour Minister.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: I am now coming to another point.

Hon. Mr. Hatc: You had better come to it, because this witness does not

ow.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: My point is this, and I raise it more for the department
than for Mr. Jolliffe, because, after all, Mr. Jolliffe is an official of the Depart-
ment of Immigration, he is Director of that branch; and may I pay this tribute
to him here, in this committee, because we were associated for several years,

' together. He is a very efficient official.

_tteHon. Mr. RoeBuck: That would be supported unanimously in this com-
mittee.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: But after all, Mr. Jolliffe’s job is to carry out the
regulations that he is given. What the proper questions of policy are, are quite
beyond his power, although he may advise upon them, if his advice is asked.
But the point I am making is this: I think the matter of restricting this, help
to Poles, in the way of having them come within some definition of the Labour
Department, and what constitutes an agriculturist is too narrow altogether.
Not only do we need people on our farms, but we certainly need them in our
mines in this country.

Hon. Mr. Haic: And in our lumber work.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: There is a very definite shortage, indeed, in the lumber
work aqd there is presently, in the province of Manitoba, from which the Hon.
Mr. Haig and myself come, a demand for personnel on the part of the sugar
beet growers, and they do not know where they are going to get them at the
present time. And although this is not a question upon which Mr. Jolliffe can
glve an opinion, yet I think the definition is altogether too narrow, for that
purpose; so I would like to get a little information, Mr. Jolliffe, on the position
of these displaced people in the occupied areas, say, in Germany and also as to
the refugees and the expellants in those zones. As I understand it, the first
category of displaced persons, is constituted mainly from those who were
forcibly taken for slave labour from parts of Russia, Lithuania and Poland that
Geljmany over ran in the early period of the war. They have been away from
their ‘ho.n‘les for years; the majority of them, or perhaps all of them, probably
do nob wish to return to the countries from which they came, say Poland or the
Baltic countries, because the Baltic countries are under a form of government

Athey do not like, and so is Poland. And therefore they constitute a real problem.
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And in that group I understand are a very considerable number of Mennonites
and Lutherans, and of racial origins, Ukrainians, Poles and so forth. Then there
are the refugees, which constitute a rather different category, although not
different; they are the people who were driven out of Poland, for instance, after
the German invasion of Russia, and the over-running. No, I am wrong, after
the arrangement of the treaty that was made between Russia and Germany in
the summer of 1939; there was a very large number of people from Lithuania and
Estonia.
The CuaarrMAN: And Latvia.

Hon. Mr. CrerAr: Yes, who were of Germén origin; but under that arrange-
ment they were moved by Germany and settled in Poland which had been over-
run. I am sorry. This was in the summer of 1940, over-run by Germany in the
autumn before. That constitutes one class. Then there were the Germans who
were expelled by Rusisa from these areas and who constitute refugees in the
occupied zone. Then there were the Sudeten Germans whom I think, rather
harshly the present Czech government expelled from Sudetenland where they had
been loyal to the Sudeten government, pre-war or not. Then there were those
in the portion of territories that have been allotted to Poland, east of the Oder.
I'understand that the Poles pushed them out. Then there are the Ukrainians of
various racials origins. It is a hodge-podge of people. I understand there is a
basis for screening those people for their ideology and I understand that the vast
majority of them are anti-Communists and anti-Fascists. But our immigration
regulations are not flexible enough to admit them to this country except under
these very narrow regulations that the government has laid down as a poliey to
guide you. Is it possible to provide machinery whereby to examine these people
medically, should the government change its regulations?

Mr. Jorrirre: The refugee problem as presented to the department is the
admission of refugees or displaced persons, who come within the regulations as
laid down. We deal with those refugees or displaced persons who are admissible
under the regulations.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Quite. :

Mr. Joruirre: And the only possible way we have to deal with them, up to
the present, is through an organization that is funtioning in occupied territory
at the present time, that is, the Inter-Governmental Committee on Refugees.
With the help of that organization we can get these people to certain points to
have them treated, shall I say, and medically examined, that is, medically
examined by our own medical officers. That puts them in a position to be moved
to Canada, if and when there is transportation to move them.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Now, technically, the displaced persons do not come under
the Inter-Governmental Committee for Refugees?

 ‘Mr. Jorirre: Some do and some do not; but if you will pardon me, I was
going to follow that up and really answer your question. What I wanted to do,
was to prepare the ground for it.

- Hon. Mr. Crerar: I am sorry; will you kindly proceed.

Mr. JoLurre: I see no reason why, in answer to your question why
machinery, so far as immigration is concerned, for the medical and civil
- examination of these people cannot be increased in order to take care of larger
numbers; and I think that was the point you were getting at.

_ Hon. Mr. Crerar: That was the point; in other words, the important thing
1s government policy. Now, if the government enlarged its policy and said: for
example, Canadians have a knowledge of Mennonites; Mennonites have invari-
ably made good citizens in this country and therefore the Canadia gover-
ment would say, so far as Mennonites are concerned, again using just an illus-

2 B
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tration: we will admit them to Canada where they conform to the requirements,
physical and mental. If the government decided on that policy, could you pro-
vide the machinery to facilitate that policy?

Mr. JoLLiFFE: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: That has nothing whatever to do with you, how these
people get here. I am opposed to assistance to immigration as far as Canada
is concerned; but I feel very strongly that our regulations are altogether too
narrow to-day and that they should be broadened and enlarged. Now, the
information I would like to have, Mr. Jolliffe, is this: If they were broadened
and enlarged, you could provide the machinery for the medical examinations and
then leave them to themselves and their friends to find their way to Canada.

Mr. JoLLirre: Yes, sir.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I was going to ask how many, so far, have gone through
that routine and have been examined and shipped; first examined and next
shipped; how many have we had?

~Mr. Jorurrre: There are over, approximately, 50 arrived. The first group
arrived recently, 50.
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And that was on the Aquitania?

Mr. JorLirre: Oh, as to the actual number that have been examined, I am
sorry, but I am unable to say.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck » But is the examination going forward?

Mr. Jorurre: The examination is going forward and the teams are in
Gerrqany. The difficulties that we are faced with in this thing and the slowness
of this thing have been due to the fact that a lot of the applicants really do not
know where their relatives live, where they are located; and they furnished the
department with addressses and some of them were incomplete, while others
were absolutely incorrect at’ the moment we got to them. Some of these people
were moved from one camp to another, or released from a camp and the relatives
In Canada had not been furnished with the information as to the change of
address; and that would mean that the representative of the Inter-Government
committee who had been furnished with the information and so on, as to the
addr_%s, and who tried to locate these people, would find that a man had gone;
and in some cases he would find that it would take him weeks to find out where

€ man was; so that has been one of the chief reasons for holding the thing up.
There have been some cases where the man has been located and he was not just
then ready to leave or to go to the concentration point because he had some other
relative there that he thought he would like to have brought along with him and
that he would prefer to wait until this other fellow had his turn come up. You
see, there are all kinds of human problems involved in this thing, which,
unfortunately, do not push the thing forward, but rather they push it backward.

G Hon. Mr. McGuire: Would they operate from concentration camps in
ermany ?
- Mr. J'OLLI.FFE: Not necessarily, sir. Some of those people are at private
ia) resses n different parts of Germany, and that also is one of the difficulties,
ecause these people are scattered all over the country.
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: How do you do it? Do you notify them to come to an

office or to a certain point?
i Mr. J OI.:LIFFE: Yes. the Inter-Governmental Committee arrange a concentra-
]l(in pomé where officers examine them. It would be impossible to send officers
al t(})lvei'1 ermany. The applications are filed in Canada and they are centred
n the head office, the Immigration Head Office; and the particulars are placed
?n_ master lists. Thesq master !ists are given to the Inter-Governmental Com-
nittee. At the same time, the investigation is being conducted in Canada into
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the settlement conditions for the prospective immigrants. The master list is
in the hands of the Inter-Governmental Committee in London and is supplied
to the various agencies in Germany to locate these people. Immediately the
settlement conditions are established in Canada, a secondary list is sent over,
with the corresponding number, to the people who are passed. That is connected
with the master list, and the officials in Germany, who have located these people,
are then in a position to say: go to such and such a concentration point for your
examination. That, in brief, is the machinery. It is quite simple, and, so
far as we are aware, it is the only possible way of dealing with it.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Can you give us any idea of how many are on the
master list, and how many have been approved?

Mr. Joruirre: I cannot give you those figures in detail; there are approxi-
mately 5,000 cases now on the master list.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Do you give a priority to those who have relatives,
or is that master list composed of those for whom application has been made
in Canada?

Mr. JoLuirrE: Yes; these are relatives. Now, there are, in addition to that,
others who would be admissible under the category of displaced persons. There
are a number of applications filed in the department for admission of sugar
beet workers. A number of these people are relatives of residents of Canada,
relatives of the applicant, and they are agricultural workers or are supposed
. to be. Those people are admissible as farm labourers under the regulations,
if it be established that there is employment available for them in Canada.
A number of those applications include people who are in displaced areas, so
that these can be dealt with in exactly the same manner as the relatives are,
but they are not relatives within the admissible classes, as you asked.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Go ahead.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: What countries are they from; they are not all from
Germany ?

Mr. JoLuirre: You mean, the sugar beet workers?

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Yes, the sugar beet workers.

Hon. Mr. JoLLirre: Some are from Holland, some from Belgium, and some.
from Czechoslovakia.

Hon. Mr. EviLer: To what extent does the relationship apply, brothers and
sisters and what? ;

Mr. Joruirre: Brothers, sisters, mother, father, son, daughter, widow when
unmarried, and children under eighteen years of age; brother and sister. I should
say, single, not married.

Hon. Mr. Evier: Does it go to nephews and nieces?

Mr. JoLuirre: Orphan nephews and nieces under eighteen years of age.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Before one of these immigrants can come to Canada,
he must have a degree of relationship with someone in Canada?

Mr. Jouuirre: That is, if he is not admissible on the grounds of occupation.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: That is one condition; and the next condition is: he
must have an assurance of work in Canada?

Mr. JoLuirre: That is not quite true, sir. First of all, a person is admissible
on the grounds of relationship; that is, if he comes within the clause of relation-.
ship which I have just mentioned.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Yes?

Mr. Jorrtrre: Then assured employment is not required in that regard;
the condition is that he shall be a relation within that degree of relationship
who is a resident of Canada, and that the resident of Canada should be in a
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position to receive and care for him. That is a condition. The other clause,
that of farm labourer, is not that he should have a relative, but that he should
be assured of farm employment.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: But he may be a relative?

Mr. Joruirre: Certainly.

Hon. Mr. EvrLer: Is that only with regard to displaced persons.

Mr. JoLuirre: No, that is general.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: There is no category of displaced persons, is there?

Mr. Jornirre: No, insofar as admissible persons are concerned.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: My point is, however, that these regulations are
altogether too narrow and restricted. For example, it is well known that the
Mennonite people in Canada and the United States have been supporting and
sending food and clothing to a very considerable number, if my information is
correct, to about one hundred thousand Mennonites in the occupied zones in
Germany, mainly in the American and British zones, and they have been doing
that for at least the last two years. Yet, during the last year, as you will
probably know, Mr. Jolliffe, the Mennonite fraternity in the United States and
Canada wanted to bring a substantial number of the Mennonites into Canada,
and they agreed to finance them. As a matter of fact, the regulations were so
restrictive that they could not do it. So, within the last four months, they
chartered a ship, the Volodam, at a cost of $375,000 and sent twenty-three
hundred of these Mennonites to Paraguay and South America.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Why didn’t they send them to Canada?

Hon. Mr. Crerar: And they provided the means to get them established
in South America under supervision. My point is: that because of the restric-
tiveness of our regulations, these people were prevented from coming to
Canada. If the regulations had permitted them to come to Canada—and it
is not Mr. Jolliffe’s fault—these Mennonites could have come to Canada and
they would have disappeared when they arrived on our shores, into Mennonite
homes out in Manitoba, where there are a very large number of them, and they
would have been available, for instance, to work in our sugar-beet fields this
spring, out in Manitoba. So it does seem to me that our regulations are
altogether too restrictive. ILet me repeat, again: it is not Mr. Jolliffe’s fault;
it is a matter of government policy.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: I would like to see the restrictiveness removed and
let us say, good citizens whether Lutheran, Mennonite or any other class
whether anti-Nazi or anti-Communist; and they can be screened for their
ideologies; that can be done, I am sure. I do not see why we cannot admit
substantial numbers of those people into Canada where they can find employ-
ment in the mines, in the woods and in all sorts of occupations. My protest is
that the policy is too narrow and restrictive.

Hon. Mr. DaicLe: How many immigrants or displaced persons were
admitted into Canada in 19467 :

Mr. Jorrirre: I cannot give any breakdown of displaced persons; but the
number of immigrants admitted in 1946 was 71,719.

Hon. Mr. Haie: Does that number include soldiers” dependents?

Mr. JoLLirre: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Haic: And they would number 65,000.

Mr. Joruirre: I think the move in 1946 of soldiers’ dependents would run
from 35,000 to perhaps 40,000; those figures are subject to correction.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: Were they all from Europe?

Mr. Joruiree: All these immigrants?

85905—2
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Hon. Mr. EvLer: Yes. :

Mr. Jorruirre: There were 71,000 altogether.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: How many came from Britain of that 71,000?

Mr. Joruirre: Approximately 50,000.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: How many came from the States?

Mr. JoLLirrE: There were 11,469 from the United States. I am sorry but
I !121'\'0 not got them from the countries of origin; I have them here as to racial
origin.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Something over 60,000 came from Britain and the
United States.

Hon. Mr. DatcLe: Could the members of the committee have a copy of those
figures?

Mr. JoLuirre: Yes.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Are those figures not in the report?

Mr. Joruirre: No, not for this year. I could have a statement prepared
of statistics in any form that you want; I could give it by nationality or by
race or by country of last permanent résidence.

Hon. Mr. Haig: That would be best.

The CuarmMaN: Do that, if you will, please.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: You do not know how many came in from the other
European countries; could you give us the breakdown on that?

Mr. Joruirre: I am sorry but I have it here only by origin.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: That would be racial origin, is that it?

Mr. JoLLirre: Racial origin, yes.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: That would be just about as good.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Then let us have it.

Mr. Joruirrg: I could give you that information.

Hon. Mr. Evier: How many came from Holland, Belgium, Germany?

Mr. Joruirre: It does not state that, but I could give you, for instance,
the Dutch race.

Hon. Mr. EuLer: Yes.

Mr. Joruirre: There were 2,431 persons of the Dutch race admitted to
Canada; of them 285 came from the United States. That leaves 2,146 from over-
seas; most of them, no doubt, came from Holland.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Some of them would be war. brides.
Mr. Jouuirre: Some of them would be war brides and soldiers’ dependents.

Hon. Mr. Haie: Could you give us the countries of origin and separate
the soldiers’ dependents from Holland and so on.

Mr. Joruirre: No, but I could give you the total number of soldiers’
dependents altogether.

Hon. Mr. Hatg: Very well, give us that; that would be something.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: Soldiers’ dependents were largely from Britain were
they not?

Mr. Jorutere: Yes, sir; probably the majority of them were; I do not
suppose there would be 2,000 or 3,000 from other countries.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: You could give us the racial origins, say, from Holland,
Belgium, Germany and Poland.

Mr. Jorurere: T could.
Hon. Mr. Eurer: Have you got them with you now?

L4
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Mr. Joruirre: Yes, for 1946.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: Yes.

Mr. Joruirre: I have them.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: How many Mennonites were included in that 71,0002
Mr. Jovurrre: They do not show here as Mennonites; they show as racial
ﬁ) origins.
N Hon. Mr. EviLer: Give us the numbers according to racial origin.

Mr. Jouirre:  The total, not separated from the United States and from
overseas, but the total.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: Yes.
Mr. JoLLIFFE:

IMMIGRATION TO CANADA, SHOWING RACIAL ORIGIN, FOR THE:
CALENDAR YEAR 1946

Via From
Ocean Ports USA. Totals
A aBaRT e Sl T SRR e o e A A 2 2
Bamenian . R e s 11 1 12
BRIl ot v A e R R 724 27 751
Boheran 7 250 Yoo e e 13 18 31
British
N RS R S b S 38,370 3827 42,197
AP P A e ST ey Sy R 3,218 1414 4632
R SN S G R S 8,647 1,562 10,209
WISl sl Sk el o Sty 1,173 121 1,294
Bllehriane <o o S e el e et s 3 3
ORINESE |\ e O s ) s e 8 e 8
Bronhian " et Sl A B A IR 4 6 10
) D S O Ly 187 20 207
ek pdian: oo X o e S e 1 s 1
IR RS S Stk S 2,146 285 2431
T S R N S 4 1 5
T T e s B S e B LA 8 i 8
MBSk | At b e T 22 34 56
G A B R 1,767 1462 3,229
IRt T B S e sy 449 849 1,298
|5 TR N i Rl v e ST 61 47 108
eyt S e L S e 1517 583 2,100
R e 145 175 320
R RN SRR 1 2 3
R e s e iy s 16 18 34
B 5 1 6
Mbboian o 19 9 28
R SR ATy o e 83 69 152
R R SR 12 2 12
N R 2 1 3
£S5 L I R 1 - 1
e RN 125 48 173
Nonth  Setitan Trding ... . 10 27 37
Fermgtl S a7 2 1 3
Polish cofiaipier o oM 565 165 730
Portugiese sl S-S 38 9 47
Roumanian ol Soagg fe oo 19 25 44
Russion - i e fioniahiait -9 x| 154 59 213
Ruthenian

...................... 114 57 171
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IMMIGRATION TO CANADA, SHOWING RACIAL ORIGIN, FOR THE
CALENDAR YEAR 1946—Con.

Via From

QOcean Ports US.A. Totals

Scandinavian—
05 0T AN S L S e 83 85 168
[T T e A R N s S 15 9 24
D OTWERIRT o Si st e An o s Vo e ha s 269 187 456
IWEEh: St i S i s e s A 86 145 231
it s e T T T Y e L e 5 13 18
ST 7Y e e R ST e SRR R S 14 19
SORTABRY - T s s A i st P 5 s 48 % 49
Spanish AMEriCan . ..esvc. v donosmions 9 12 21
Iy e e O I T e Y 72 48 120
Byiian) et i St s B s 1Y 26 37
5 by RS SR s S b = Mt S G 6 1 7
27070 kST S e S S SRR 60,250 11,469 71,719

The CuarMax: That is the total admission in 1946.

Mr. Jorurrre: That is the total admission for the calendar year 1946; that is,

the total was 71,719.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: I thought that the Russians did not let anybody out at all.

Mr. Jouuirre: This means the Russian race, not the Russian personalities.

Hon. Mr. Hare: They may have come from the United States.

Mr. Jorrirre: That is right; as a matter of fact, 59 of those of the Russian
race are United States citizens.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: This shows more than 1,000 of the German race; did many
of them come from the United States?

Mr. Joruirre: Probably they did; I cannot answer that question at the
moment until we get the other statement that you are asking for.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: What is the situation in Italy; have we got an immi-
gration office there?

Mr. JoLLirre: Not yet, sir.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I understand, over a year back, that you were going to
send a team to Italy.

Mr. Joruirre: These teams are operating in Germany now.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: There are no teams in Italy?

Mr. Joruirre: Not yet. '

Hon. Mr. McGuire: We are still at war with Italy, are we not?

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Well, perhaps technically.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: I think it is technical enough to suit the Immigration
Department.

Mr. Jouuirre: Most of the people in Italy who would come within the
purview of our regulations are of enemy alien citizenship, and enemy aliens are
not admissible.

Hon. Mr. EuLer: You are letting the relatives of those who are in Canada
come 1n, even if they are of enemy citizenship.

Mr. Joruirre: The regulations provide for it.

Hon. Mr. Evcer: Even though they are of that citizenship.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: That would include immigrants from say Italy, Hun-
gary, Austria, Germany and all such countries?

i aalie AA_Jd
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Mr. JoLLirre: Roumania and Finland.

The CuarMAN: Unless they could advise the Minister of Mines and
Resources that they were opposed to the war, they are debarred from coming
to Canada, no matter what they have put up with.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Isn’t that carrying on the war? I thought the war
was over.

Hon. Mr. Haic: But the peace treaty has not yet been signed.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Will this continue after the peace treaty has been
proclaimed? The order in council would then become inactive would it not?

Mr. Jovuirre: I cannot say.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: There is no limitation in the order in council as to how

long. it will apply, that anybody in the group who fought in the war is not
admissible.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: A farmer in Hungary or Italy would have a tough

time to prove to you that he was opposed to the governments of his own
country,

Hon. Mr. Evrer: What sort of proof would you insist upon?

Mr. JoLuirre: So far as the actual operation of the thing is concerned, the
application for admission of a Bulgarian or an Italian would be rejected because

€ 18 an enemy alien. The proof that he was opposed to an enemy government

would have to come from him because we could not investigate his case in Ttaly.
Hon. Mr. Evrer: It would be pretty difficult, almost impossible.
Mr. JoLurre: Yes, of course.
. Hon. Mr. McGuire: I was cut off by some of the other honourable members
I my questioning a while ago. You say, Mr. Jolliffe, that your medical depart-
ment examined these 2,900 Poles?

Mr. Jourtrre: That is right.

Hon. Mr. McGumre: And those same medical men are now examining over
there, the same type of men.

Mr. JorLirre: Yes.

Hon. Mr. MoGuigre: They let 70 men through who were suffering from T.B.
Mr. JoLuirre: That is a fact.

Hon. Mr. Rogsuck: Was it only-T.B.?

Mr. JoLLirre: Yes, there were some cases.

The Cuammax: Of venereal disease?

Mr. Jouuirre: Yes, of venereal disease upon arrival at the port of entry.

b.n.ﬂon.. Mr. Hate: But, the 70 are T.B. and the row now is: who will pay the
U5 1t will be a long bill; T.B. means a long bill.

T Mr. Jovnrre: Not necessarily, senator; it all depends on the conditions;

m not a medical man myself, but there are cases of people certified for T.B.,
0 Inside of four months are finally certified as being cured. _
Hon. Mr. Hate: I have heard it said that only an ex-ray examination of

i}ﬁ;tcgfiz?wm tell you whether an individual has T.B. in its incipient form; is

wh

Mr. JoLLrrre: That is a medical question.

11\14011- Mr. Hate: Have you got such ex-ray examinations going on now?
r. JOLLIFFE: These people will all be examined.

Hon. Mr. RorBuck: I am interested in the number of young women, Mr.

g'ogf% Zgho léa.ve young men that they want to marry. I know of one case where
85905_3a yer in Canada during the war and became engaged to him. When
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the flyer was sent to England this girl followed him to England and married
him there. Now the Immigration Department has refused to let him come to
Canada and the wife also was refused admission. But sinee I made a statement
about it here in the committee a change occurred, so far as the wife is concerned,
and I have been advised that she has not forfeited admissibility to Canada when
married to an alien and that she could come back and that they were going to
examine the husband as well with a view to allowing them to come back. I was
very pleased at the change in the department but I have quite a number of these
cases. I have a young woman in Canada at the present time whose prospective
husband is already in Canada on a visit. She went to New York to meet him
and T advised her not to marry him there because they might not let her in again.
Is there any latitude or laxity or sweet reasonableness on the part of your
department with regard to people of this kind? :

Mr. JoLurre: Senator, it would be very difficult for me to discuss some
individual case here, such as the merits of the case you have mentioned, a
particular case.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: No, I did not mention the names and 1 do not propose
to do that; but I could not introduce the subject in any other way.

Mzr. JoLuirre: You mentioned that you had taken the case or that there
had been a change in the department’s attitude. There may have been a change
in the department’s decision; there may have been a mistake in the individual
case, in the original decision that was given to you, and it may have been
reviewed and changed. The policy on which those cases should have been based
ig this: first of all, the law does not admit a male fiance as such; those are
regulations which the officers administer. Secondly, we were faced with this
situation: that a number of our Canadian girls during the time that the members
of the Allied forces were in Canada, fell in love with some of the lads and became
engaged to them. Those men left Canada and served overseas and then went
to their own country. I have in mind the Norwegians. As soon as the men went
overseas, or rather as soon as they were freed from their service, the girl went

- over to them. They either went over or married them before they left Canada;
so application was made for the re-admission of the men and their wives. Now,
in the case of many Canadian girls, they married an alien and thus became aliens
and left Canada for permanent residence abroad.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: But that was only up to the first of January when the
new Citizenship Bill came into force.

Mr. Jorrirre: So far as the department was concerned, the application was
made for the admission of an alien and his wife and was inadmissible. The
policy laid down was this: That where those circumstances were in effect or
existed, that provision would be made for the admission of a man and his wife,
because any other policy would be virtually saying to a Canadian girl: you
are not going to come back to your own country.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That is all I wanted to know.

Mr. Jovuirre: That is so.

Hon. Mr. Haie: She can now come back and bring her husband with her.

Mr. Joruirre: Yes, by special action being taken.

Hon. Mr. Haie: It is possible to take that action.

Mr. Joruirre: Yes. That has been done and repeated. And there is another
class of case where a Canadian girl has not yet married the man. Let us take
the case of a Canadian girl engaged to a Pole in the United Kingdom or in
Holland or in some other country. She goes over to the country for the purpose
of marrying that man and coming back to Canada. That woman is not in the
same class as I first mentioned; she does not lose her right to return to Canada
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i i i i tion of
and is re-admissible to Canada as a matter o.f right, so there is no ques
refusing her admission, and she is given admission; and we deal with her husband
in the same way as in the first category that I mentioned.

t : In the case of an immigrant who wants to come to
Cana%g?.b&\{.[ I;;rhEUéf:s not meet with the requirements of your regulations, is ;tf;
possible in any individual case, to obtain admission to Canada by means of
an order in council; an exception can be made? : s

Mr. JoLuirre: The only exception that can be made to people not a,-dimS,S{ble
under the regulations, is by order in council. The regulations say ;c ﬁt 1ml-
migrants are not admissible to Canada unless they belong to the following
classes. Néw, if all orders in council were wiped out to-day or to-mor;ow, evg(%
person would be admissible to Canada if he were in good health and of g

aracter and was not liable to become a public charge.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: These regulations are not really statutory?

Mr. Jorurre: Yes. :

Hon. Mr. Evrer: So that is why an order in council can -a;dzm_t them? :

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I want to clean up this business of the girls and their
sweethearts because it is awfully important for them. It may not be so m}porba,_nii,
to our country, although that is important too. Do I understand that if ?) %u'
who is locally or legally resident in Canada goes abroad and marries somebody,
she does not lose her right to return. .

Mr. J OLLIFFE: That is, unless it is her intention to reside abroad. '

Hon. Mr. Romsuck: Oh, yes; then if she is not a native born Canadian, she
loses her citizenship. ; :

Mr. Joruirrm: Yes; by her marriage, she becomes an alien. That does
Dot necessarily mean that she is not re-admissible into Canada. : :

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: T know. Now, under the Citizenship Act, if she is a
Canadian born, she does not lose her Canadian citizenship and she can return
to Canada at any time. _

Mr. Joutirre: Tt is not her citizenship that establishes her rights to return
to Canada; if she is locally resident in Canada and leaves for a temporary
burpose, she has to be re-admitted into Canada as a matter of right. It 1s not
citizenship; it is domicile. She might marry a man overseas, still with the
Intention of coming back, hoping to bring him back with her.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: And you cannot keep her out?

Mr. Jovrrrre: No.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: And you do not refuse her?
Mr. JoLirre: No:

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: Then, so far as her husband is concerned, I understand
that it is the

: policy of the department to admit him if all conditions are
complied with,

Mr. Jorurrre:  If he is admissible under the regulations.

Hon. Mr. Haw: You mean, medically fit?
Mr. JoLLirre: Not, only medically fit, but admissible under the regulations.
Hon. Mr. Rompuck: What do you mean by that? Do you mean a farm
labourer?
Mr. Joruirre: No.
: kI‘;Ion. Mr. McGuirg: If he were an Italian or a German he could not come
ac

Mr. JoLLirre: If he marries a girl, we provide for his admission. That is
what I told you. _

85905—33
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Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: I wanted to be more than clear because there are
some girls who are going to act on what you say to-day.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: No restrictions at all?

Mr. JoLLirre: I do not get your point.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: If he has married a Canadian girl, be he an Italian,
Hungarian or whatever you like, he can then come in without being subject to
these various restrictions?

Mr. Jouuirre: That is right; of course, he must be in good health and of
good character. We waive the present restrictions of law that would otherwise
prevent’ him from coming to Canada.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Then it is a matter of discretion?

Mr. JoLuirre: Yes, and to-day, generally speaking, that is done by order in
council, the waiving of those restrictions which affect him.

Hon. Mr. Romsuck: I am extremely interested because there are girls, and
just to cite one case, where they came to see me about it; I know that some
girls are going over after this meeting this morning, to marry someone in some
other country. It might be in Great Britain, or the United States, or in Europe.
Is it possible to arrange in advance so there is no doubt or question, to have a
man like that examined and so on, and the wedding take place rather than let
us suppose, to allow the girl to marry him and then to find that he has T.B. or
something of that kind; then they are in an awful mess. Is it possible to do
that?

Mr. Jouurrre: I think we would have to consider that, Senator; I would
not care to give a quick answer.

Hon. Mr. RoesBuck: Then you would prefer to consider a specific case?

Mr. JoLuirre: We might find that we have got ourselves into the matri-
monial business; I do not know.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: We are in it and I hope we are never going out of it.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: To clear up this other subject, as long as this order
in council is on the books with regard to enemy aliens, for all practical purposes,
the people of Italy, Hungary, Austria and so on are not admissible and cannot
come to this country as ordinary immigrants?

Mr. Joruirre: That is right, sir.

The CualrMaN: Now, gentlemen, we have heard from Mr. Jolliffe for a
little better than an hour. Is there anything further?

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I want to ask one more question: with regard to farm
labourers and the mines and so on, I have one instance in mind. I do not mean
Instance, but rather incident. It may be that an application is made for admis-
sion of a lumberman, in that category, and the answer is that while he is
admissible under the regulations, conditions are such at the present moment
that he cannot be admitted. Now, what is the picture? Are you admitting
those‘ people or are you not? I mean those people who are within the category
of miners, lumbermen and farmers,

Mr. Joruirre: Well, yes; we are bound to admit people who are admissible
under the regulations.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Yes.

M. Jovrirre: If an application is made for the admission of a lumberman
and he is coming to assured employment in this country, then he is admissible;
but that does not mean to say that somebody says: I have got a job somewhere

for some man, that that means assured employment. Assured employment has

to be there; he has got to be coming to a job in that particular industry.
Hon. Mr. Rosuck: I see.
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~ Mr. Jouurrre: There are lots of applications; the department is flooded
with applications from all over Canada from industrial areas by people who
say: I have got a cousin and I will give him a job and I will get a job for him
as a miner. Now, that does not meet the requirements of the regulations at all.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: It has got to be somebody who is running a mine who
has got to say that?

. Mr. Jorurre: He has got to be assured of employment by a miner or a
mining company.
Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: But if those regulations are satisfied then you have to
comply with them?

Mr. Jorrirre: That is our duty.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: Is anything done about such a case as this? If a man
goes mnto a mine and leaves his job in a week or a month?

Mr. JoLurrer: That is an old question; you will pardon me, but rather an
old problem, Senator; so far as the law is concerned, if a man complies with

glett?onditions of his entry, there is no further action that we can take in the
atter.

Hon. Mr. EvLer: They could easily avoid it, if they wanted to.

_Mr. JoLurrre: If he came to Canada as a miner and then took a job as
president of a company, or in some other occupation, he would easily be the
subject of deportation proceedings.
~ Hon. Mr. Evrer: No, I mean that if he comes in as a miner, and in good
aith enters upon employment as a miner and after a week or so he leaves it;
would you follow that up? :

: Hon. Mr. Roesuck: But you could deport him; he is subject to deportation,

18 he not?

Mr. Jourirre: Tt is very doubtful.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I am through now, Mr. Chairman.

; The CHARMAN: We are very much obliged to you, Mr. Jolliffe; we have

gg tf’; lot of valuable information which I know will be beneficial to the members
€ committee and we wish to thank you.

Mr. Jovurwe: It has been a pleasure to appear before you.
= I‘Hon..Mr. BurcHiLL: I was very much interested in Senator Crerar’s line

eree?‘sonmﬁ this morning, which I think is the only reasonable line to take
is 7t Iin_ Canada at the present time. I am not thinking of anything else; but
ey alll‘ to ask this question: Are any discussions taking place at the present
roadz ong the lines of Senator Crerar’s ideas, that the regulations should be
Stk ned, so that Canada might accept a little fuller share of her responsibility
I‘espJect to these displaced persons?

. T JOLLIFFE: T can an in this w i d : that th i
of L PR nswer you in this way, sir, and say: that the question
1 c::llﬂ;;;;ratlon 1s under very active review at the,present time. That is all

i—I/Ion. Mr. Roreuck: Have you any more copi'es of that consolidation?

Hr. JOLLIFFE: What is that? :

M(:'n.J Mr. RoeBuck: Of the consolidated report?

Th. C?LLIFFE: No, but, I will be very glad to get some.

€ UHAIRMAN: You mean this thing?

Hon. Mr. RorBuck Yes, I would like to have half a dozen.

> thlg’lk(;{f)LLmFE: I brought up twenty-five or thirty and I brought some copies
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The CuAIRMAN: Now, gentlemen, we shall invite Dr. H. L. Keenleyside,
who has recently been appointed Deputy Minister of the Department of Mines
and Resources, to take the stand, and we will try questioning him. I do not
imagine that any members of this committee will be unduly resourceful in
questioning Dr. Keenleyside, on questions affecting immigration, although, a year
from now we hope to have him before us and to be in a position to question him,
it may be, more thoroughly; but we would like to have his viewpoint of the
immigration question.

The Witness, Mr. A. L. JoLLirre retired and Dr. H. L. KeeNLEYSIDE took
the stand.

Dr. KeenxveysipE: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, it is a privilege to be
present and to be allowed to attend a meeting of this Senate committee. This is
the first time I have had this honour, and if I do not in all ways comply with the
proper procedure, I hope you will put it down as ignorance and not to any other
cause.

In a letter you were good enough to address to me, you suggested that I
attend this morning primarily for the purpose of listening to Mr. Jolliffe’s
presentation and to inform myself, as a result of the discussion that opens from
that. Thus I have not prepared any statement of my own to make in regard to
the problem of immigration, but I should like to comment on one or two of the
points raised in the discussion with Mr. Jolliffe, and perhaps to supplement what
he has already said to you. ° :

First of all, with regard to shipping. Mr. Jolliffe pointed out very clearly -

the difficulties that we are faced with in that matter. I should like to say,
however, that we are doing everything that we can, through the Canadian High
Commissioner in London, to ensure that additional shipping facilities are made
available, and made available this year. We do not know yet how successful we
are going to be in our representations, particularly to the British Ministry of
Transport; but we are making representations and we hope that eventually they
may result in some benefit.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: That is the best news we have heard yet.

Dr. KeenrLeysipe: Then, to submit what was said with regard to the policy
of immigration and Senator Haig’s questions. First of all, on the matter of

screening these immigrants: Something was said as to the matter of their health, -

but no reference was made to the fact that they are sereened also under the
Security Act. In other words, we are looking into their record as far as we
possibly can, to ascertain that they are not Communists and also that they were
not collaborators, in any way, with the Germans, the German regime, fascism,
either of the German or Italian or Polish variety.

Hon. Mr. Tayror: What about the police records?

Dr. KeenLEysipe: Those are also being obtained.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Do you consider them immigrants? I do not think so.

__ Dr. Keenveysme: They are immigrants in fact, but whether they should be
included in the normal immigration movement of this country is a problem.

Hon. Mr, McGuire: So far, evidently they are not aware that we are just

bringing them here for certain work, to work on the farm and that we are con-
sidering them as to how well they can work, and as Senator Haig has said, what
their strength was, and their health. Now, how long are you going to keep them
when the person who is taking them now is through with them and is anxious
for them to leave the country? We are not taking them for their own good at
all, but rather for our own benefit to do the hard work; and we are checking
them just as we would check on army horses, to look to see how healthy they are.
So, how long are we going to keep them here? They are coming here unmarried,
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and we are distributing them across the country and giving them work and
seeing to it that they do that work. Do we expect them to stay in Canada for
the rest of their lives? If they were immigrants, we would expect them to stay
here and we would have to consider what part of the country they were-going
into, whether they could settle down and become citizens or not; but we are not
thinking of that. England is trying to encourage them to go back to Warsaw,
but as they themselves know more about it than do the people in England, they
do not want to go back to what they would meet here. Most of us are of the
opinion that they are showing good judgment. We are obliging England by
bringing them here just to do the hard work; but there is no mention from any-
body as to how long they are going to stay. If they get out of work, are we going
to deport them, and if so, to what country? I think the whole subject is one for
the study of this government. We are inviting 4,000 men over here who have
done as much as the people of any country, and more, to win the war at a greater
cost to themselves and their country, yet, as I say, we are just, so far, arranging
to treat them like a lot of horses. I think the government of Canada will have
to get a little better vision on the subject. We know that they are not Commu-
nists and we know that they are not allies of Germany. They have not the right
to be either one or the other and they are not; but they do not dare go back
where they came from, yet Britain is too small to keep a couple of hundred
thousand soldiers who were brought to Britain for their own salvation; so the
British are trying to get rid of them. Canada will have to change its policy with
regard to these people. We are looking for immigrants, but we do not get any
better immigrants than the Poles. We have an order in council now which was
read here to-day, which prevents Germans, Austrians, Hungarians, and Italians,
from coming here; and they have, as applicants, Canadian citizens who applied
for their release in this country and have been refused and quite properly under
that order in council. I think, in suggesting these problems for the government
of Canada, I do not know anyone better qualified than you are, Dr. Keenleyside,
to see to it that the government of Canada gives the matter some attention.

Dr. KeexvLeysioE: I greatly fear that the problems you have raised are not
ones on which I can comment publicly, at least.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: I do not expect any solution; but I do not know of
any better man in the country to see that the government of Canada acts and
provides a solution. I think they should get rid of that order in council by means
of another order in council. I do not think either of the various nationalities
should be kept out of Canada because they were on the other side of the wall.
England is bringing Germans and Italians to England to do their work now.

Dr. Keexreysior: That is another matter I would like to comment on, but
before doing so, I would refer to the fact that Polish soldiers are being screened
for security reasons. It is not certain that it was left entirely clear in the minds
of the committee with respect to the difficulties that arose in regard to
their health. In the first case, those 2,900 who have already come in, it arose
from the fact that they were given ex-ray examinations not before they left the
other side of the Atlantic, but only after their arrival in Canada. Now, with
respect to the 1,100 who are still to come, they are being ex-rayed before they
leave England; and in consequence there should be no problem of T.B. in the
case of these 1,100 who are now about to be brought forward.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Is there any suggestion in the regulations or anywhere
else of a limitation as to the time that these Polish boys can stay in Canada?

Dr. KeexLeysme: No; the only point where time comes into it at all, and
I speak subject to correction, is according to my understanding, that they are
brought here and found places on farms in this country, and then they are

~ expected to enter into an agreement with whoever takes them on, for I believe,

one year’s work after that; it may be two years, but I am not sure.
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The Cuamrman: I think it was two years.

Dr. KeenLEysiDE: It may be two years, but I am not sure. In any event
the situation, legally, is that after they have carried out the terms of their
initial admission, then they are free like anyone else now, so far as their arrival
in Canada is concerned.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And they are legally entitled to stay here?

Dr. Keenieysipe: They are legally entitled to stay here and are not
subject to deportation except for reasons which would make them ordinarily
deportable.

Hon. Mr. McGuige: And what country could they be deported to?

Dr. Keenveysme: 1 am afraid that I am not competent to answer that.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: I know some Polish girls who are going to marry
them; that is to say, I mean Canadian girls in the Polish group; they are going
to be married and there will be a lot of trouble if there is any difficulty in that
regard. There is not, is there?

Dr. KeenvLeysoe: I should not think so, at all. 'We would hope, that after
a period of two years, they would have become so accustomed to the Canadian
}\;Vvay of life and way of doing things that they would be very anxious to stay

ere.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: They will!

Dr. Keenveysipe: I was going to make one reference to the matter of
enemy aliens. The question was raised, I think, by Senator Roebuck, that when
the war is over we would still continue to bar enemy aliens from admission to
Canada under the terms of an order in council No. 2071. I think the answer is
that when the war is over, there is no such thing as an enemy alien. Secondly,
the order in council does not apply, and consequently they would be admissible
under the terms of the ordinary immigration act and its terms and regulations;
S0 we can assume when the government declares that the war is over—

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Well, it has already done that.

Dr. KeeNLEysmE: Only for certain purposes, as I understand it.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: But the treaties have not yet been approved.

Dr. Keenveysme: No.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: It has been quite a while now since those treaties
were signed, but the Parliament of Canada has not approved them as yet, so in
thg,dmeant-ime all these people are enemy aliens unless this order in council be set
aside. '

_ Dr. Keenveysioe: My point is that when the war is over the order in council
will no longer apply and they come within the terms of the ordinary immigra-
tion aet and regulations. Onme other matter. The question was raised as to
h.ow we could tell whether individual Germans or Italians had been in opposi-
- tion to the regime we were fighting in their respective countries. That is, of
course, an extremely difficult thing to decide. As, in some cases, and there have
been a good many instances of it, if a person can be shown to have been in a
concentration camp, or to have had his property confiscated because of opposi-
tion to the Hitler regime, then that would be proof that would be accepted by
the Immigration branch of his opposition to the Hitler government, and, in
consequence, the person in question would be admissible to Canada and not
be subject to the terms of that order in council.

Hon. Mr. CampseLn: What about the naturalized Canadians who happened
to be in an enemy country at the time of war and became conscripted into their
army; is there not some provision whereby he can appear before a commission

to show that he was conscripted and therefore is protected and permitted to
return to Canada? ;

@
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Dr. KeenveysipE: I am afraid that I cannot answer that; but he would be
admissible to Canada as a naturalized Canadian, if he could prove to the Cana-
dian authorities that his failure to maintain his Canadian domicile, which would
be the operative point, is due to causes over which he had no control. I suppose
that enlistment by conscription in a foreign army would be one of those causes.

Hon. Mr. CampBeELL: Would the Education Department enter into a matter
such as that?

Dr. KeenNLeYSIDE: No, not in the ordinary way.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: Is there any other federal department that looks after
that, in respect to teaching them or providing education?

Dr. Keexreysipe: I am not sure just what has been done by the Secretary
of State’s office since the Canadian Citizenship Act has been brought into forece.
I understand that they do make an effort to impress upon the applicants for
naturalization something of the characteristics of the country to which they
f{en«d to ally themselves. To what extent that has been undertaken, I do not’

NOW.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: There ought to be some offort. I have heard of a case
of two or three who have come here fairly recently from Europe. Unfortunately
they said that they thought they were coming to a land of absolute freedom
where there were no prejudices or anything.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: You'd think they would be mistaken, if they had that
idea.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: Well they felt it to be a little disquieting in some
respects.

Dr. Keexveysipe: During the war certain steps were taken in conmection
with the English and Scotch brides of Canadian soldiers. Classes were
organized in England under the aegis of the High Commissioner’s office there.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I think some girls made an effort to do something for
them in Toronto.

Dr. Keexveysipe: Now there is something else I would like to speak about
although I do not know if it is wholly appropriate here.

The CuarMAN: Go right ahead, Sir.

Dr. Keexveysioe: One of the problems that faces the department is the
organization and operation of the Immigration branch as an effective going
concern. As you are all aware, during the period of the depression and then of
the war, it was unavoidable that the immigration services should suffer from lack
of opportunity to use all of its facilities, because those were periods when
immigration was almost at a standstill. Now, with the return of more normal
conditions, which we hope will last, it is important that the Immigration branch
should be so organized that it will be a flexible instrument for the carrying on
of government policy; in other words, an instrument that can be used to stimulate
and handle the accelerated movement of immigrants into this country when
conditions here make that advisable, and that can be slowed down when
conditions here make it inadvisable. The problem therefore is so to orgamize
the branch that it can meet these two phases of government policy. Steps have
already been taken under the present Minister of Mines and Resources to
move in that direction, and further steps are in prospect. And in that connection
I would say that I appreciate very much indeed the reference made by members
of the committee to Mr. Jolliffe. 1 have been in touch with the affairs of the
Immigration branch here for the last eighteen years, partly as an agent of the
branch when I was stationed abread and partly through contact with it when
I was stationed in Ottawa. I do not think there is any public servant who is
more conscientious, careful, and humane than the present Director of the branch.
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Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And you can add: industrious.

Dr. Keexveysme: Yes, and industrious; and I was very much pleased to
find that that was the opinion, and seemed to be the opinion of the members
of this committee. The officers of the Immigration branch, as you are all aware,
are very often subject to pretty severe criticism, that, to my mind, might almost
be described as abuse, by people outside who feel that they are not operating the
immigration service as it should be handled and they are not letting in people
who should be allowed to come in.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck:. I should like to add two more adjectives: courteous and
thoughtful.

Dr. Keenveysoe: I would substantiate both of those; and it is very satis-
factory to those of us who are his colleagues to find that his services are being
appreciated, and to find that the criticism to which he is sometimes subjected
outside is not shared by the members of this committee.

The CraarrMAN: We all know that he and the department are doing the best
it can under the instructions that they are permitted to carry out.

Dr. Keexvteysipe: That is certainly so.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: It is the instructions that we are complaining about.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: I would like to say a word. The Immigration branch
suffered pretty severely during the war. There were enlistments from it, and
there was practically no immigration. - There were certain retirements too. So
after six years of war, Dr. Keenleyside and the Minister have a job’ in
reconstructing the department again.

The CuamrMAN: And we are looking to you, Dr. Keenleyside, to do a real
job of “revoluting”.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: It is Dr. Keenleyside’s and Mr. Jolliffe’s job to carry out
the policy and regulations of the government.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: My criticism is that they do it, but they are both
sticklers for regulations.

, Hon. Mr. Crerar: That may be a matter of opinion; I sometimes share that
view myself.

The Cuamrmax: They know there will be a come-back it may be, if they
do not do so.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: But the real and crucial thing it seems to me in this
whole business, is the widening of opportunities to bring people to this country.
I am not much in sympathy with the regulation that: provided everyone must
hgve an assured job before we will admit him. This country is a country with
wide opportunities. We know, from our daily observation, that in certain places
there is a definite shortage of workers and labourers on farms, in mines, and in
the woods; and it is not sufficient answer to say: that a given time in the city of
Toronto, or Winnipeg or Vancouver you may have a few thousand people out of
work. Those few thousand people won't go into those jobs, or they are not
competent to go into them; but there is a deal of work with one’s hands that has
to be done all over this country; and unquestionably to-day there is a shortage,
a very serious shortage of workers of that type. I am among those people who
believe that this is definitely retarding the development of this country. And
aside from the sordid or practical side, if you like, there is another side to it,
the humanitarian side. I equally share the view with those who believe that it is
not right for a country with tremendous opportunities such as Canada to adopt
a dog-in-the-manger attitude with respect to immigrants from other countries.
A big part of the problem in Europe to-day is due to overcrowding and we have
here hundreds of thousands, yes, millions of refugees and displaced persons
ninety per cent of whom, I am convinced are anti-Communist and anti-Nazi
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and who want the democratic way of life and who would think that they had
reached heaven if given a chance to come to Canada and to work with their
two hands. That states my creed very definitely on this question.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: You told us that arrangements were being made with
the Transport Department in Great Britain for the allotment of shipping to our
needs in this regard. Would that be only from England to Canada; what about
Europe? ,

Dr. KeexLEYsIDE: If that is the impression I gave you, then I should modify
it slightly by saying that negotiations are under way; I do not know whether
arrangements can be made or not, but we are trying to make arrangements.
What was your question again?

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: My question was that it would help us so far as immi-
gration from Europe is concerned.

Dr. KeenveysipE: What we would like to have would be additional shipping
to handle immigrants from the United Kingdom itself and also from the European
continent as well. The great part of our effort at the moment is directed towards
sereening and developing a movement from the displaced persons areas on the
continent, but that is being held up by the fact that there is no shipping available.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: The next subject I want to touch on with you is the
question of relatives. Many times I have said here and in the House, that the
best immigrants that we can possibly have in this country are the relatives of
those who are already here and who have established themselves. They are the
ones who are most likely to learn most quickly our ways and the Canadian way
of life and who are the least likely to become public charges. The very best
immigrant possible is somebody born here, and the next best is a relative of
somebody who has come here and become established and is in a position to
guarantee the success of his relative coming in after him. And there are the
other elements on the humanitarian side. Then there are very large numbers—
I withdraw the words very large; but there are a number of people in this country
who are in keen distress over their brothers and sisters and others in Europe,
whom they are unable to bring here for one reason or another; and one of my
serious objections to your regulations is that a man must be single; and that if
he has committed the sin of marrying somebody, you do not admit him. That
to me seems outrageous. I do hope the department is applying its mind to this
feature and that it will give to these relatives priority over everything else,
industrial requirements included. ;

The CHARMAN:. That is a sample of the “revoluting” that we want you
to do.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That’s right.

Dr. Keenreysioe: I think everyone will agree with Senator Roebuck that
the relatives of a person who has already made a success of life in Canada is the
most desirable kind of immigrant that we can have; but as to whether the
government policy-should be altered to make admissible or more admissible such
relatives than it does now, is of course, a matter that I could not decide.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: But you are in a position to give it priority and to do
everything possible to help that feature of the immigration work and the rules
that will be laid down for your guidance.

Dr. Keexreysipe: Under those rules as now laid down, we do admit every
relative that is admissible; there is not any question of trying to keep anyone out.

Hl()n. Mr. McGuire: The question is to change the rule and order in
council.

Hon. Mr. RorBuck: I venture to say that nobody’s advice will go farther
than yours. :
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Hon. Mrs. Wirson: I think some consideration should be given to the hus-
bands and finances of the Canadian women. We have a case of a man who is
married to an Ottawa girl. He unfortunately did his war service in the United
States, for reasons, I presume, that he was not allowed to do it in Canada. He
now’ cannot acquire his Canadian citizenship until another three years. His
wife made a point the other day: she said: any Canadian man can bring in a
wife. Yet she is a Canadian citizen so why is her husband excluded?

Hon. Mr. Roeuck: We discussed that question very fully; it is too bad
that you were not here. Mr. Jolliffe gave us some real information in connection
with that. As I understand it, a girl who lives in Canada who is legally a resident
here does not lose her right to return by her marriage, even to an alien, and
that the departmental policy is to make an exception for the husband of those
girls, if that is within their power; I mean, if a man’s health is all right and his
charactér is good, and that sort of thing. They do it in each individual case
on its own merits. 4 :

Dr. Keereysme: They recommend to the government that the rule be
abandoned in the case concerned, and we prepare a draft order in council and
send it up and then it is up to the government to decide whether to do it. They
always do.

. Hon. Mrs. Winson: I have seen in the English papers where the wife of a
United Kingdom citizen at once acquires a status, whereas the English girl
married to an alien would not, which is rather curious.

Hon. Mr. CampBELL: Are you familiar with the regulations in Australia
and New Zealand?

The CuammaN: I know something about them in general.

Hon. Mr. CampeeLL: I wonder if they had similar restrictions, which pro-
hibit anyone from entering this country unless he was going to a specific job.

Dr. Kepnvpeysmoe: I think I know the answer to that, but I am afraid that I
am not sure enough to put it on the record.

At this point the discussion continued off the record.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Are we all through now? We shall meet to-morrow?

The CHAmRMAN: Yes, to-morrow we shall meet again at 10.30 when we will
have before us a representative of Mr. McNamara’s office and we will also have
Dr. MacKay who has recently been in Germany, and who has, I think, some
valuable information to give up. Now, we are very much obliged to you, Dr.
Keenleyside and we wish you would look with sympathetic consideration on every
q};gstlon involving immigration into this country, of valuable and much needed
citizens.

Dr. Keenveysme: Thank you very much, sir. T am sure that sympathetic
consideration will be given to every case that comes up.

The CramrMAN: The meeting now stands adjourned until 10.30 a.m. to-
morrow, Thursday, April 24.

_The Committee adjourned at 12.20 am. to meet again to-morrow, Thursday,
April 24 at 10.30 a.m.

0
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APPENDIX A
/ P.C. 695
The 21st day of March, 1931.

(As amended by P.C. 885 dated the 23rd day of April, 1937,
" P.C. 5024 dated the 30th day of June, 1944,
P.C. 2071 dated the 28th day of May, 1946, and
P.C. 371 dated the 30th day of January, 1947).

g T

From and after the 18th March, 1931, and until otherwise ordered the
Janding in Canada of immigrants of all classes and occupations, is prohibited,
g except as hereinafter provided:—

The Immigratlon Officer-in-Charge may permit to land in Canada any
w immigrant who otherwise complies with the provisions of the Immigration Act,
’ if it is shown to his satisfaction that such immigrant is:—

1. A British subject entering Canada directly or indirectly from Great
] Britain or Northern Ireland, the Irish Free State, Newfoundland, the United
States of America, New Zealand, Australia, or the Union of South Africa, who
has sufficient means to maintain himself until employment is secured; Provided
that the only persons admissible under the authority of this clause are British
subjects by reason of birth or naturalization in Canada, Great Britain or
Northern Ireland, the Irish Free State, Newfoundland, New Zealand, Australia,
or the Union of South Africa.

2. A United States citizen entering Canada from the United States who has
sufficient means to maintain himself until. employment is secured.

g 3. The wife, unmarried son, daughter, brother or sister, the father or mother,
: the widowed daughter or sister with or without unmarried children under
eighteen years of age, the orphan nephew or niece under 18 years of age, of any
person legally admitted to and resident in Canada, who is in a position to receive
and care for such relatives. The term “orphan” used in this clause means a
child bereaved of both parents.

4 4. (a) An agriculturist having sufficient means to farm in Canada.

(b) An agriculturist entering Canada to farm, when destined to a
father, father-in-law, son, son-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, uncle
or nephew engaged in agllculture as his prlnc1pal occupatlon who

is in a position to receive such immigrant and establish him on a
farm.

(¢) A farm labourer entering Canada to engage in assured farm
employment.

(d) A person experlenced in mining, lumbering or logging entering

Canada to engage in assured employment in any one of such
. industries.

5. The financee of any adult male legally admitted to and resident in Canada
who is in a position to receive, marry and care for his intended wife.
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6. A person who, having entered Canada as a non-immigrant, enlisted in
the Canadian Armed Forces and, having served in such Forces, has been honour-
“ably discharged therefrom.

And provided further that immigrants, as defined in paragraphs 2 and 4
above are destined for settlement to a province which has not signified its
disapproval of such immigration.

The provisions of this Order in Council shall not apply to immigrants of
any Asiatic race.

¢
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APPENDIX B
P.C. 2071

PRIVY COUNCIL
CANADA

AT THE GOVERNMENT HOUSE AT OTTAWA
TuEespay, the 28th day of May, 1946.
PRESENT:

His EXCELLENCY
THE GovERNOR GENERAL IN CouNcCIL:

WHEREAS it is desirable to permit a somewhat increased movement of immi-
grants to Canada and at the same time provide for the admission of a number
of refugees or displaced persons;

His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the recommendation of
the Minister of Mines and Resources, is pleased to amend Order in Council
P.C. 695 of the 21st day of March, 1931 as amended by P.C. 885 of the 23rd
day of April, 1937, and P.C. 5024, of the 30th day of June, 1944, prohibiting the
landing in Canada of 1rnm1grants of all classes and oocupatlon with certain
exceptions, and it is hereby further amended by addmg after paragraph 3 the
following:

(@) The father or mother, the unmarried son or daughter eighteen years of

age or over, the unmarried brother or sister, the orphan nephew or niece .
under sixteen years of age, of any person legally admitted to and
resident in Canada, who is in a position to receive and care for such
relatives. The term “orphan” used in this clause means a child
bereaved of both parents.

(Sgd.) A.D.P. HEENEY,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

The Honourable
The Minister of Mines and Resources
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APPENDIX C
P.C. 371

PRIVY COUNCIL
CANADA

AT THE GOVERNMENT HOUSE AT OTTAWA
THURSDAY, the 30th day of JANUARY, 1947.

PrESENT:

His ExceLLENCY

THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN CoUNCIL:

His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the recommendation of

the Minister of Mines and Resources, is pleased to amend Order in Council
P.C. 695 dated the 21st day of March, 1931 (as amended by Orders in Council
P.C. 885, P.C. 5024 and P.C. 2071 dated the 23rd day of April, 1937, the 30th
day of June, 1944, and the 28th day of May, 1946, respectively) prohibiting the
landing in Canada of immigrants of all classes and occupations, with certain
exceptions, and it is hereby further amended as follows:—

1. Paragraphs 3 and 3 “a” are rescinded and the following substituted

therefor:

3. The wife, unmarried son, daughter, brother or sister, the father or
mother, the widowed daughter or sister with or without unmarried children
under eighteen years of age, the orphan nephew or niece under 18 years of
age, of any person legally admitted to and resident in Canada, who is in
a position to receive and care for such relatives. The term “orphan” used
in this clause means a child bereaved of both parents.

2. Paragraph 4 is rescinded and the following substituted therefor:
4. (a) An agriculturist having sufficient means to farm in Canada.
(b) An agriculturist entering Canada to farm, when destined to a
father, father-in-law, son, son-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, uncle or
nephew engaged in agmculture as his prlnmpal occupation who is in a
position to receive such immigrant and establish him on a farm.

(¢) A farm labourer entering Canada to engage in assured farm
employment.

(d) A person experienced in mlnlng, lumbering or logging entering
Canada to engage in assured employment in any one of such industries.

(Sgd.) A.D.P. HEENEY,
Clerk of the Privy Council.
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR

The Honourable James Murpock, P.C., Chairman

The Honourable Senators

Aseltine Donnelly McGeer
Blais Dupuis Molloy
Bouchard Euler ' Murdock
Bourque Ferland Pirie
Buchanan Haig Robertson
Burchill Hardy Robinson
Calder Horner Roebuck
Campbell Hushion Taylor
Crerar Lesage Vaillancourt
Daigle . Macdonald (Cardzgan) Veniot
David MeDonald (Shediac) Wilson

ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, March
13, 1947.

“That the Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour be authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act (R.S.C. Chapter 93 and
Amendments) its operation and administration and the circumstances and
conditions relating thereto including (@) the desirability of admitting immigrants
to Canada, (b) the type of immigrants which should be preferred, including
origin, tralmng and other characteristics, (¢) the availability of such immigrants
for admission, (d) the facilities, resources and capacity of Canada to absorb,
employ and maintain such immigrants, and (e) the appropriate terms and con-

~ ditions of such admission;

And that the said Committee report its findings to this house;
And that the said Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
records.”

L. C. MOYER,
) Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, 24th April, 1947.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Immigra-
tion and Labour met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators  Murdock, Chairman; Bouchard,
Buchanan, Burchill, Campbell, Crerar, Daigle, Donnelly, Euler, Ferland, Haig,
Hushion, Macdonald (Cardigan), Molloy, Robinson, Roebuck, Taylor, Veniot
and Wilson—19.

The Committee resumed consideration of the Order of Reference of' the
13th March, 1947, directing the Committee to examine into the operation and
administration of the Immigration Act, ete. |

The official reporters of the Senate were in attendance.

Dr. Allon Peebles, Director, Research and Statistics Branch, Department
of Labour, was heard, and read a brief on employment conditions in Canada,
and was questioned by members of the Committee.

Mr. James Colley, Canadian Resident Representative, Inter-Governmental
Committee on Refugees, was heard with respect to resettlement of refugees and
displaced persons of Europe.

Reverend Tan MacKay, former U.N.R.R.A. worker in Germany, was heard
with respect to the problem of displaced persons of Europe, and was questioned
by members of the Committee.

At 12.35 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the rising of the Senate this day..

At ‘430 p.m., the Committee resumed. :

Reverend Ian MacKay, former UN.R.R.A. worker in Germany, was again
heard.

Mr. James Colley, Canadian Resident Representative, Inter-Governmental
Committee on Refugees, was again heard.

Reverend Tan MacKay filed a Table of Occupational Classification of
D. P. Skills, which was ordered to be printed in the record.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Burchill, it was—

Ordered that the Honourable Senators Halg, Murdock and Roebuck, be
appointed a Sub-Committee to arrange an appointment with the Prime Minister,
the Minister of Mines and Resources and leaders of all other parties in the
House of Commons to hear Reverend Ian MacKay, former UN.R.R.A. worker
in Germany, on the question of refugees and displaced persons of Europe, with
the view that Canada admit a number of these displaced persons without delay.

At 6.00 p.m., the Committee adjourned until Wednesday, 30th April, instant,
at 10.30 a.m. .

Attest.

H. ARMSTRONG,
Clerk of the Committee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE,
Orrawa, Thursday, April 24, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour, which was authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act, resumed this day at 10.30 a.m.

Hon. Mr. Murpock was in the Chair.
The committee got underway at 10.40 a.m.

The CuaRMAN: Honourable senators, we had asked Mr. McNamara of
the Department of Labour to be present to-day, but he was unable to come on
account of illness; so we have with us Dr. Allon Peebles, Director of Research
and Statistics, Department of Labour, who will present to us the views of the
Labour Department.

Dr. Allon Peebles, Director of Research and Statistics, Department of
Labour called:

Dr. PeeBrEs: Mr. Chairman and honourable senators:—
LABOUR SHORTAGES IN RELATION TO IMMIGRATION

In outline, this brief is in three parts, as follows:
(1) comments on the general manpower situation;
(2) an outline of the assumptions to be made in discussing shortages
of labour in particular fields in relation to immigration;
(3) discussion of the main labour-shortage fields.

Pagr I—GENERAL MANPOWER PICTURE

For many months, Canadians have been enjoying all the advantages of a
high level of employment and income. In fact, with the single exception of a
few months late in 1945 and early in 1946, unemployment in Canada has been
at a minimum for the last five years, at least. Even during the brief wave of
unemployment about a year ago, very few qualified workers were not able to
find jobs after a month or so.

The outlook for 1947 suggests a continuation of these “good times”. This
may even be a year of greater labour shortage than was most of 1946. Last
year, the construction industry built about sixty thousand homes. This year,
it is planning to build eighty thousand. Last year, investment in physical
durable assets by the non-governmental sector of the economy reached about
$1,100 millions; this year, business enterprises forecast that investment will
reach approximately $1,700 millions. Last year, the problems of physical recon-
version tended to hinder full-scale operations in many firms. This year, physical
reconversion ig complete. :

During 1946, total civilian employment in Canada reached its highest peace-
time level. At the same time, unemployment never exceeded 5 per cent of the
labour force and was considerably lower during most of the year. Even now, at
a time when there is a seasonal lull in employment, only 38 per cent of our
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civilian labour force is out of work. It is safe to say that this is unemployment
arising out of seasonality, occupational and location immobility, or out of the
lapse of time between a worker leaving one job and finding another. It is quite
consistent, therefore, with a full employment situation.

That is the end of Part I, dealing with the general manpower picture.
Going on now to Part II:

ParT II—ASSUMPTIONS

These facts are of serious importance in weighing the significance of present
labour shortages. These shortages have arisen against a background of
generally high employment. If the present prosperity should be succeeded by
depression, many labour shortages would be turned into labour surpluses. The
following estimates of shortages in particular fields are based, therefore, upon
the assumption of a continuance of high employment.

There is another fact to be considered when discussing specific labour
shortages. There are cases in which shortages in some industries and some
localities exist simultaneously with surpluses in other industries and localities.
. There are at present, for instance, many unskilled male labourers out of work

in the Maritimes while in Ontario a very definite shortage exists for this type
of worker. This condition is partly a result of the maldistribution of labour
arising from the transition from war to peace. People who have worked during
_the war years in a certain industry in a certain province are unwilling to move
quickly to another industry or another province, although their prospects of
employment might thereby be improved. But, this situation to some extent
corrects itself with the passage of time. Labour becomes more mobile, the
longer the period taken into consideration. Some of these adjustments have
already occurred. The estimates in the following discussion make allowance for
additional adjustments of this kind which may occur in the next year or so.

There is a final consideration. An examination of the current labour
shortage fields shows that many are characterized by relatively low wages or
unfavourable working conditions. In other words, as long as other jobs are
available, people will hesitate to accept these jobs. As a result, the rates of pay
in these labour-shortage fields are being slowly increased to levels in line with
those in other fields of endeavour.

In many cases, low wages or poor working conditions have been almost
permanent, characteristics of these jobs. In the case of domestic servants, for
instance, wages during the Thirties averaged about $15 a month with board and
accommodation. The shortage of domestics over the last few years has raised

~ their wages to about $50 a month with board and accommodation. In other
instances, the recent years of labour shortage have tended to cause considerable
improvement in working conditions. :

All of these points dictate caution in making estimates of the actual man-
power shortages in particular fields. In addition, there is another more practical
reason for being conservative. Other things being equal, it is better to bring
in too few people at first than too many. More immigrants can always be
allowed to enter later on. It is not so easy, however, to offset the effects of
bringing in too many people.

For these reasons, therefore, the following estimates of labour shortages
are conservative. = Other considerations, including humanitarian ones, may
modify this conservative view. In any case, the following estimates do provide
a point of departure from which the present labour scarcity situation can be
viewed in relation to immigration.
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~ The following analysis is based on all the information which it has been
possible to assemble. In most cases, a starting point has been provided by the
data on unfilled vacancies and unplaced applicants as reported by the National
Employment Service. These data, however, have certain qualifications.

In the first place, employers do not report as vacancies all the jobs they
would actually like to fill, and some small employers may not report their
vacancies at all. Other employers may be pessimistic regarding the possibility
of obtaining their full requirements through the Employment Service. It follows
from this qualification that there may be occupations in which a labour shortage
exists and in which nevertheless the number of unfilled vacancies reported is

somewhat less than the number of unplaced applicants.

Secondly, a proportion of the unplaced applicants reported for a given
occupation may not actually possess the qualifications demanded by employers.
There may be reported in such a case, therefore, a large number of unplaced
applicants and also a large number of unfilled vacancies. As many of the
applicants are not suitable for the corresponding vacancies, however, the figures
would not give a true picture of the abundance or scarcity of labour in that
occupation. ~ 5 ;

These are two main qualifications of the data. Neither of them, however,
prevents us from concluding that, when the number of unfilled vacancies exceeds
the number of unplaced applicants, a definite labour shortage exists in the
occupation concerned. Their importance varies from occupation to occupation,
and for that reason they will be mentioned in each specific discussion. The
remainder of this brief is a discussion of labour shortages in specific fields. The
estimates given cover the next one to two years. :

Part I11I: Serectric Fienps or LABOUR SHORTAGE

Agriculture

There appears at first sight to be the prospect of a considerable shortage
of agricultural labour in Canada in 1947. Adequate harvest labour was provided
only with difficulty during the war years. Production targets have been raised
above 1946 production for such important commodities as hogs, milk and milk
products, eggs, coarse grains and other fodder, flaxseed, and sugar beets, while
the only large decrease anticipated is in wheat acreage.

However, the greater part of the agricultural labour shortage is seasonal,
oceurring only at harvest time. This does not appear to be a shortage that could
suitably be met by immigration. It has been met in the past by organized
movement of labour to the harvest areas, and should be so met in the future.

The present estimate also excludes farm operators brought to Canada to be
placed on farms of their own. This question involves a survey of the supply of
unoceupied land suitable for settlement. and is a long-run proposition.

The present estimate is therefore concerned only with agricultural labourers
to be admitted to Canada for year-round employment. : i

The figures of Unfilled Vacancies and Unplaced Applicants furnished by
the National Employment Service are of relatively little value in the case of
farm labourers, due to the small proportion of farm lahour placed through this
channel. These figures, however, do show a considerable seasonal variation in
the demand for labour, and a considerably greater shortage of farm labour in
Ontario than in other parts of the country.

The relatively large number of vacancies in October, 1946, was due partly
to requests for Polish veterans.
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Estimates of the dormant demand for agricultural labourers, not registered
as Unfilled Vacancies, were obtained from the Regional Offices of the National
Employment Service as follows:

Maritimes—No immigrants required.

Quebec—500 (provided they can speak the local language).
Ontario—4,000 to 6,000.

Prairies—700.

British Columbia—300.

However, consideration of the response to the offer of Polish veterans as
farm hands suggests a more modest estimate of the demand for year-round
agricultural labour. The Poles brought to Canada in the autumn of 1946,
numbering 2,876, were all placed, but there was no large unsatisfied demand for
their services. In the near future, 1,124 more Poles are to be brought, and all
are already placed, with an additional unsatisfied demand of about 600.

The demand for Polish veterans might be considered a fair indication of the
demand for immigrant farm labour in general, little of which would be English
or French-speaking. One would conclude that there is a demand for immigrants
as year-round farm -labour, but not a large one. The figure might be about
2,000 per year, assuming the continuance of a high level of employment in
general.

This estimate is in addition to the Poles already brought or to be brought.
From it should be subtracted any immigration of agricultural labourers under
other arrangements, such as the bringing of relatives from Europe by people
already in Canada.

In support of this modest estimate, it may also be pointed out that more
than half of the labour now employed on Canadian farms (excluding farm
operators) is unpaid, according to the D.B.S. Labour Force Survey. This unpaid
labour no doubt consists chiefly of young people working for their families, and
therefore not in the labour market. However, its presence suggests a relatively
limited demand for paid agricultural labour, except on a seasonal basis.

Regarding sugar beet production, the Regional Employment Office at

Winnipeg says:

Employment, in the sugar beet industry in Manitoba and Alberta is avail-
able only on a contract basis which ties the worker to the job for about 63-7
weeks in the summer and 4-4% weeks in the fall. The average time actually
worked is somewhere near 65 days in a year. The worker is under a necessity
to take other employment for about two months during each summer and 7-7%
months each winter and spring. Under these conditions we (and this is the

Winnipeg Regional office) do not favour supplying immigrant labour for this
industry.

Logging

The large totals of Unfilled Vacancies reported in logging correctly indicate
a shortage of this type of labour, but greatly exaggerate the extent of the
shortage. Due to the heavy labour turnover in logging (13 per cent per week
at the height of the season) the total of vacancies reported by employers allows
for a high percentage of replacements.

The following information comes from the Woods Labour Committee of
the Pulp and Paper Industry:

Although employment in logging in the 1946-47 season was at an all-time
peak, and an increase in production of pulp and paper of approximately 5 per
cent is forecast for the coming year, there is no particular demand for immigrant
labour for logging in most parts of the eountry. This is due chiefly to the poor
results usually obtained from inexperienced labour. It was estimated that in
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1946-47 the best 25 per cent of the loggers employed produced 50 per cent of the
output, while the worst 25 per cent produced only 5 per cent of the output. There
is a desire therefore to increase output by getting men into the bush earlier in
the autumn, when the weather is favourable, rather than by employing more men
at the peak of the season.

There is however a definite demand for immigrant labour from one particular
region, the Lakehead area in Northwestern Ontario where three new pulp mills
have been opened in this area. As the labour supply is small, labour for logging
must be brought in from other areas. Transportation of labour is said to have
cost the companies $400,000 in the last year. These companies estimate that they
could guarantee employment to from 6,000 to 8,000 immigrants, ten months in
the year, for two years. Due to lack of housing, the men would have to be
unmarried. Experienced labour is not expected, provided the individuals are
rugged. Union wage rates would be paid, at the following rates per day:

Apprentices: $4.65 less $1.20 board.
Skilled men: $6.20 less $1.20 board.

Some demand for immigrant loggers is also anticipated in the Ottawa valley
region of Ontario. Labour here is not unionized and wage®rates would be lower.

This might raise the total estimate for Ontario to from 8,000-10,000.

Immigration into Ontario would reduce the demand for loggers from Quebec
to a point at which there would probably be no demand for immigration of
loggers into Quebec. :

The Maritimes have sufficient surplus labour to supply their own needs.

Since the above total estimate of 8,000 to 10,000 men comes from employers,
and probably allows for some decrease in the seasonal employment of Canadian
labour, it seems best to give a conservative estimate of 5,000 to 6,000 single,
unskilled men as the total of immigrants who could be absorbed in logging.

Mning

In the mining industry, the picture across Canada is again one of labour
shortage. At present, the strike in the coal mining industry in the Maritimes
makes this region a temporary exception. Over the whole year before this strike,
however, there had been a shortage of certificated coal miners in the Eastern
provinces. E

If the Maritime provinces are excluded, there are at present over 800 jobs
in mining firms on hand at Employment Service offices. To meet this demand,
there are 470 workers registered for this type of work. Many of these are
unsuitable; about 125, or 27 per cent, for instance, are over 45 years of age.

Young workers are not turning to mihing as a vocation. In a great many
cases, the miners of to-day are decidedly against ﬂ}en‘ chllvdzren entering that
occupation. Even in 1941, 54 per cent of all the miners in Canada were over
35 years of age. Since that time, this proportion has undoubtedly increased.

There were about 56,000 miners in Canada in 194‘1. During the war years,
many of the young men in this industry were drawn into the armed forces and
some left for other types of work. Employment in mining, therefore, dropped
and only now is it approaching its pre-war level. The future heralds expansion
if the workers can be found. .

Mining is hard, dirty, dangerous work. Jobs, however, are relatively free
from seasonality and wages are comparatively high. In Quebee, experienced
hardrock miners are receiving about 85 cents an hour f_or a 48-h_qur week with
board provided at $1.40 a day. Rates are higher in Ontario and British Columbia.
If native Canadians refuse to become miners in larger numbers, the immigration
of skilled miners seems a logical solution.
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At present, many employers are not listing their openings for miners with
the Employment Service because they believe that the existing shortage precludes
the possibility of any referrals being made. For this reason, the actual scarcity
of workers in this industry is greater than that suggested by the figures quoted
above.

It is difficult, however, to estimate the exact number of workers that could
be absorbed: by the mining industry if they were available. The chairman of
the Canadian Congress of Mining recently said that the mining industry could use
50,000 to 100,000 immigrants. This is obviously far too optimistic.

Even if high employment continues, however, the future of the Canadian
mining industry is not at all clear. No recent discovéries of large coal fields
in Canada, which could be economically mined, have been made. The Maritime
fields have been greatly depleted. 'Mr. N. F. Parkinson, Manager of the Ontario
Mining Association, has recently said that, unless the price of gold is increased,

the gold mining industry will be in a difficult position. This is not likely unless

the Canadian dollar is devaluated. In fact, the current price of gold is only
- maintained because the United States is willing to pay that much. The major
markets for base metals are foreign countries, and the ability of many of them
to buy is only being Uipheld by Canadian foreign credits. :

: It seems likely, however, that about 300-400 experienced coal miners and
2,000 hardrock miners could be absorbed at current wages if agreements were
made with the unions concerned. These figures would include the shortage
indicated above in N.E.S. figures. Since housing would have to be provided n
the form of bunkhouses, these workers would need to be single men. It should
be added that any positive action by the government to stimulate the hardrock
mining industry would raise the above estimates considerably.

Finally, the employment of this many additional experienced miners would
open at least an equivalent number of jobs for unskilled mine labourers. The
labour situation for workers of this type is discussed elsewhere in this report.

Construction

A shortage of most types of construction labour is indicated by the figures
of Unfilled Vacancies and Unplaced Applicants. Due to the high seasonality of
the industry, it is difficult to estimate the deficit or surplus in any one oceupation.
The totals of Unfilled Vacancies and Unplaced Applicants for October 3, 1946,
during the active season, show deficits of approximately 800 bricklayers, 1,100
carpenters, 70 cement finishers, 160 plasterers, and 2,700 unskilled labourers.
At the same time there were surpluses of approximately 600 painters and 400
plumbers. At March 27, 1947, during the slack season, all the deficits had been
replaced by surpluses, except in bricklayers and plasterers, the shortage of which
therefore appears to be most acute.

Estimates of dormant demand, in addition to vacancies reported, were
received from the Regional Offices. These amounted to 150 bricklayers, and
stonemasons for the Maritimes, 160 of the same trades for the Prairies, and 50
for British Columbin. No precise figures were given for Quebec or Ontario.
~_The demand for construction appears certain to be still greater in 1947 than
in 1946, assuming the continuance of business activity at a high level. The
target of the housing program is 80,000 dwelling units for the year. The
Department of Reconstruction has estimated an increase of 53 per cent in
mvestment in industrial plant and equipment, if all plans ean be carried out.
This includes an increase of 17.3 per cent in construction, from the estimated
actual total of $492 million in 1946 to the forecast total of $577 million for 1947.

g On the basis of the preceding data, it would seem that approximately 500
bricklayers and 100 plasterers, at a conservative estimate, could be absorbed
immediately in Canada, if qualified immigrants could be obtained. But in
view of the needs of Europe, it seems unlikely that they would be available.



AT WY

_' e aa "w&e&-.—.—'j.-: f

u‘%ﬁ

-IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR 49

Male Heavy Labourers

The fact that Canadian workers are shunning jobs where wages are
relatively low or where working conditions are relatively poor has also created
a shortage of husky workers willing and able to perform heavy labouring tasks.
During the war years, the shortage of this type of worker was very acute, at
times amounting to 50,000 men. In the brief interval when reconversion had
slowed industrial activity considerably, there was a temporary surplus of these
workers. Over the last year, the picture has again been one of labour scareity.

A shortage situation is not indicated by a cursory glance at the records
of the Employment Service. At present, for instance, there are 11,000 jobs on
file while about 54,000 applicants are registered as seeking this type of work.
An analysis of these figure, however, will give some indication of the true picture
in this field.

It is probable that in no other field is the reporting of vacancies by
employers so incomplete as it is in respect to male unskilled labour. “Block”

-hiring at the “gate” is the most common method of recruiting this type of worker.

On the other hand, in the case of the applicants registered with the
Employment Service, a large proportion are unsuitable. Of the 54,000 currently
registered, about 35 per cent are 45 years of age and over. Many others do not
measure up to the physical requirements of the jobs which need to be done.
And many others are almost unemployable in the sense that they cannot be
relied upon.

Our mines, our foundries, our packing plants, an.d our other he'a'»y manu-
factunng plantu need young, husky workers who will stick Wlth their jobs. This
is again a case where immigration might meet a need.

How many men could be placed in this type of work? Taking into
consideration the expansion of Canadian industry during the war, as well as
the great shortage of this type of worker which existed during the war years, a
conservative estimate is that about 5,000 physically fit young men who are
willing to work could be placed as heavy labourers. This is in addition to
estimates of miners, construction %orkers ete. made in other sections of this
report.

Women in Service Work (domestic servants and waitresses)

Under this heading are included domestic servants, waitresses, kitchen
workers, as well as all kinds of skilled and unskilled help for hospitals, hotels,
restaurants and laundries. Female domestic servants obviously form the
largest single group.

Since most of the work in this whole field makes use of experience which is
gained by the housewife in the performance of her everyday duties, almost
all of the workers are women.

There are labour shortages in all of these individual occupatmns

The two largest groups, domestic servants and waitresses, will be discussed
in some detail, however, before the service group as a whole is dealt with.

We are all familiar with the widespread shortage of domestic servants in
Canada. Even during the war, but more particularly since its end, there have
been many more jobs in this type of work registered at the offices of the
National Employment Service than there were applicants. Owver the past year,
this excess of jobs above applicants has been continually around 3,000.

Hon. Mr. Hate: How does he get at that figure of 3,000?

Dr. Peesues: That figure is based on the records from the individual offices
of the National Employment Service. They report every week by occupation
the number of jobs open, and the number of workers there are available to fill
those jobs, or who have asked for jobs of this kind.
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Hon. Mr. Haig: Allow me to suggest that, for example in the city which
I know most about, I think there is about one in one hundred of the people who
would like to have domestic help who ever apply.

Dr. PeeBres: I would agree with the honourable senator that there is a far
greater demand than is shown by these actual figures of 3,000; but we do
endeavour to find out from the Regional Offices what the additional demand
which has not been registered with them, would amount to. 1 am certain it
would be a larger figure, much larger.

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: There is a feeling that domestic help, that is, that
the demand for domestic help is available but that they do not make application
to the offices.

Dr. PeesLes: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Haig: And the type that is sent to fill the position is so disastrous
that people are afraid to apply again at all. I can give you some very pertinent
instances and of its effect. So that I think your estimate would really be only
about one to one hundred.

Dr. PeeBres: I am very glad that you brought up that point.

Hon. Mr. Hate: I quite acknowledge that my experience in life has taught
me that the domestic servant was given rotten treatment right through the piece,
and if we hope to fill those positions we have to reorganize that whole thing and
to make a domestic person feel that he is a person and not a slave. Thank you.

Dr. PeeBLes: In order to meet this shortage, especially with respect to light
household work, the Department of Labour, through its National Employment
Service, inaugurated a Home Aide service some time ago. This plan was designed
to bring together the prospective employer and the woman who would undertake
the lighter housekeeping duties for short daily periods. From September, 1945
to December, 1946 over 7,600 placements have been made under this scheme.
Despite this measure, however, an extensive shortage continues,

In 1941, there were about 150,000 female domestic servants in Canada.

During the following years, when our manpower resources were mobilized
" towards the prosecution of a ‘“‘total” war, thousands of women left domestic work
in favour of war jobs and in order fo replace men in other jobs in civilian
industry. For much the same reasons, domestic service did not obtaln its usual
complement, of younger workers over thls period.

When the war ended, many women retired from the labour force. In
addition, the war had given the woman worker an opportunity to demonstrate
that she could do many jobs just as efficiently, if not more so, than a man. And
finally, jobs in industry were more attractive to women because of their higher
rates of pay.

The wages of the domestic servant have always been relatively low. During
the ’thirties, the typical domestic servant received about $15.00 a month with
board and accommodation, and worked long hours with little personal freedom.
At present, however, wages are considerably higher, about $50.00 a month with
board and accommodation, and working conditions are much better. Even these
improvements, however, have not been sufficient to attract women from other
fields of employment.

In many ways, the labour market situation for waitresses is parallel to that
for domestic servants, :

During the war, many women left this type of work in order to take
. industrial jobs. Since the war ended, they have not returned to jobs of this
kind in nearly the same extent. The war-time shortage, therefore, continues.

~
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Before the war, rates of pay for waitresses, like those for domestics, were
relatively low. Even in 1941, the 22,000 waitresses in the country earned an
average of only $8.00 for each week that they were employed. On the whole,
they were employed an average of only 36 weeks during that year.

The seasonality of this work is further confirmed by the number of jobs
listed at the offices of the Employment Serviee. During the summer, the surplus
of jobs for waitresses reaches 3,000, while in the late winter it drops to about 600.

The demand for waitresses is bound up with the level of business activity
in hotels and restaurants. For this reason one should be conservative in
evaluating the current shortage. There is little doubt but that there is an
increasing tendency for the Canadian people to obtain their meals in restaurants.
During the war, however, this trend was greatly speeded up due to the vast
shifts which occurred in the gainful activities of the country’s population and
the resultant changes in their living habits. Since the war ended, this abnormal
situation has persisted, primarily because of the general housing shortage. As
homes become more plentiful, therefore, it may be that business activity among
restaurants will recede slightly.

There is one genereal problem which pervades all kinds of service
occupations, and that is the social stigma which people seem to attach to this
type of work, and to domestic work in particular. This stigma and unsatis-
factory working conditions account for the disinclination of Canadian girls to
enter domestic service, a disinelination which foreign immigrants might not
have to the same degree.

What is the extent of the current shortage of service workers in Canada?
Many thousands of young, single girls could be placed in permanent work in
this field at current wages. With all the above considerations in mind, and
making allowance for the seasonality of some of the work, the number might
be from 10,000 to 12,000.

Hon. Mr. Haic: Before you leave that, had Dr. Peebles been reading the
papers, he would have noticed where a waitress in Winnipeg had just been left
a large estate. I pass that on for an example of what a waitress can accomplish.

Dr. Peesres: I suppose the waitresses in cities which are less favourably
treated than Winnipeg would like to be included.

Women in Manufacturing

A shortage of women, both skilled and unskilled, for manufacturing in
Quebece and Ontario appears in the Unfilled Vacancies and Unplaced Applicants
figures. In other parts of Canada, there is a small surplus of female labour. '

According to these figures, at March 27, 1947, the shortage in Quebec and
Ontario totalled approximately 5,500 skilled and 6,000 unskilled women. The
greater part of the shortage in both was in secondary textiles. The shortage
of sewing machine operators was about 4,000 (classed as skilled).

Other industries in which the demand is relatively large are food and
tobacco; boots, shoes, and leather products; radio manufacturing; and laundering,
cleaning, and pressing.

The possibility of filling positions with unemployed women is reduced by
the fact that the majority of female applicants are married, and by lack of
housing in the centres where jobs are available. ;

There is probably a large unreported demand for female labour to be added
to the Unfilled Vacancies total. On the other hand, many of the vacancies
reported are for low-wage jobs, which will not be filled as long as better
opportunities are available.
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Perhaps 5,000 to 6,000 female immigrants could be placed in industry in
Ontario and Quebec without encouraging the payment of substandard wages.
To fill lower wage jobs also, including dormant demand, an additional 5,000 to
10,000 female immigrants might be absorbed, making a total of from 10,000 to
16,000.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I have a summary of the figures arrived at in the
previous part of this report.

Summary—
The fields of major labour shortage which might be provided for by
immigration over the next one-to two years are:

Estimated Shortage

Industry or Group Minimum Maximum
Males
Agriculture 2,000 2,000
Logging ...... 5,000 ~ 6,000
Mining | ... .. 2,300 2,400
Construction 600 600
B 20T o U7 17317 e S e e g R 5,000 5,000
(11777 7. RS REae e e o UL S S £ S ST S 14,900 16,000
Females
Women in service Work ..........c.coeceevenens 10,000 12,000
Women in manufacturing ............ccooo.nn 10,000 16,000
4 iy o e SR e R R O AR Tl 1 g 20,000 28,000
Crand Fobal oo a b by s st s 34,900 44,000

A NOTE ON SPECIALIZED FIELDS

Many other more specialized fields exist, of course, which are also charac-
terized by manpower shortages. At present, for instance, the demand for people
with technical or adminstrative training far exceeds the supply.

With respect to technical personnel, however, it is possible that there are
enough students in training in Canadian universities to eventually satisfy this
dormant, demand. This assumes, however, that the departure of technically-

trained persons from Canada will be kept to a minimum. In this connection, -

one region reports that, as an example of the demand for technical persons, all
of the seventy graduates in engineering from the University of Manitoba this
Spring have been spoken for by industry. Minimum wages appear to be about
$2,400 per year with a considerable promise for rapid increases by at least 50
per cent within six months and 100 per cent within a year to eighteen months
as the graduate acquires knowledge of the particular business in which he is
placed. A similar situation exists in this university for those who are graduating
in physies, geology, geophysies, and agriculture.

In the case of executive persons, there have been a few importation requests
by firms establishing new branches in Canada. In these cases, it has been
necessary to cencur in the request because the persons concerned were fully
conversant with the products and general policies of the parent company.

First-class garage mechanics is another type of worker who is in great
demand. Employment in that trade, however, is controlled by collective agree-
ment and competency certificates are also required. No direct importation of
workers, therefore,. could be absorbed.

There are other examples. Tip Top Tailors require 100 trained tailors
and have made requests to import such workers. The Arvida plant ‘of the
Aluminum Company of Canada anticipate requirements for about 1,000 men;
about 500 of these could be immigrants. :
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In conclusion, a word might be said about contract labour. Under the
Contract Labour Law, admission to Canada has been asked for a total of 352
workers from January 1,.1947, to April 1, 1947. Of these requests, 55 were for
executive and managerial workers and 18 for engineers. In addition, the requests
for admission ineluded 131 skilled and semi-skilled workers in various trades,
no one predominating. The total of 352 included the 100 tailors asked for
by Tip Top Tailors in Toronto.

That, Mr. Chairman, finishes the presentation. Now I would be glad to
answer any questions that I can.

The CuARMAN: I do not know whether Senator Buchanan wants to
bring up the matter concerning the beet fields in connection with where it is
indicated in this statement that there is work for only about two months a year.

Hon. Mr. BucaANAN: I am familiar with the operation of the contract
system; a family, that is, parents and children employed during the months
from spring to fall would earn a considerable amount of money as a whole.
They are provided with a home and most of the furnishings for it and a plot
of ground where they can raise vegetables and they may also raise some
chickens and some other live stock on that plot of ground; and I know from my
experience, from the opening of this sugar beet industry, for instance, that a very
large number of Hungarians came in to work in that sugar beet industry.
They rented land and saved their money and now about 80 per cent of those
Hungarians either own or operate the land themselves, or are leasing land.
They must have been able to make some money. In the season from spring to
fall they can make enough money to provide themselves for the whole year.
Now, while we are on the subject of sugar beets, you-were speaking about the
Poles. The Poles are single men and they do not fit into this picture that T am
speaking of. It would be the family type of labour not the contract. The Pole
would be a single man and while he would be provided with some of the
facilities, he would be working only for himself and not for a family, or rather
would not have a family working for him, and I understand it would mean
merely a temporary arrangement. Am I right?

Dr. PeesLes: 1 understand that the commitment would have two years
or about that, on the part of the Polish immigrant.

The CmamrmaN: Now, we have got two other speakers here this morning.
Are there any further questions that you wanted to ask of Dr. Peebles, or shall
we proceed?

Hon. Mr. BucHANAN: You spoke about waitresses particularly. In how many
provinces have they got a Minimum Wage Law for that type of labour?

Dr. PEEBLES: I cannot tell you that, offhand, Senator.

" Hon. Mr. BucuaNAN: But it is fairly general, is it not?

Dr. PeeBres: I would say so.

Hon. Mr. BucHaNaN: And they are organized in a good many provinces,
as a union made up of workers or waitresses, and by which they have been able
to get considerable increases in recent years.

Dr. PeeBres: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Harg: In Manitoba it is mostly done under the Minimum Wage
Law.

The CuAamrMmaN: What is that?

Hon. Mr. Hatg: I do not know the figures, but it is the most effective way
and it is generally considered quite satisfactory. In faet, the troubles that oceur
are conditions rather than wages; I mean, the surroundings in which they work
the sleeping accommodations and the off-hours and that kind of thing, These
are the objections, but the wage itself is not a strenuous issue.

88049—2
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The CualRMAN: Now, are there any other questions?

Hon. Mr. Crerar: I would like to ask Dr. Peebles if this brief represents
the views of the Labour Department in regard to this question?

Dr. Peesres: The brief has not been seen by Mr. McNamara because he
has been out of town, so I cannot speak for him, personally; but the brief has
been gone over by the acting deputy minister, who is in agreement with it.

The CaamrMaN: And who is he?
Dr. PeesLEs: Mr. Arthur H. Brown.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Then, in your view, generally, the policy in regard to
immigration should be based on the number of jobs that are available.

Dr. PeeBLes: No, I would not say that, Senator Crerar. What we were
asked to do was simply to present the picture in so far as labour shortage
existed, actually, or what we thought was potential, and to relate that to
immigration. There was one sentence in the brief that mentioned humanitarian
considerations. We did not try to do a complete job covering the various
phases of immigration, but merely with respect to the labour shortages, and that
aspect of it.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Because there are two approaches, I think, to this
question. The first approach, which is currently held and has been held over
several years: that we should not seek to bring this country more people than
could be placed in jobs. And the other view, which frankly I share, is that
it is not an important consideration. I do not think there is an argument that
can be made in support of the first view today that could not have been made
with greater force fifty years ago, when immigration really started coming
into this country, because I am old enough to recall the conditions of that kind.

Hon. Mr. Hate: Go carefully now, go carefully; age is a bad problem.

Hon. Mr. CrerAr: Now, the second view obtained in the shaping of govern-
ment policy between, I would say, 1890 and 1895, over the next twenty or
twenty-five years when immigration to Canada was at the highest point it has
ever been, running into several hundred thousand a year, I would think, on an
average, offhand. Now, these people came here; they did not have jobs in
sight, but they were willing to work and they soon became very definite factors
in production in this country. I am thinking particularly about one group,
the Ukrainians, who started to come here before the end of the last century.
They brought no capital, but they went into districts and made farms for
themselves. To-day our high unit in production are those very farms and
from their descendants have come members of the professions, school teachers
and people in business all over the country. Now, my point i8 this, Dr. Peebles,
that if we had, fifty years ago, adopted what I think is the current attitude
towards immigration to-day, namely, that only jobs that are available, that is,
that immigration should be limited, roughly to jobs that are available, which
I rather got the impression was the view that you expressed in your statement—

The CramrmAN: Might T interject a word. Possibly I am responsible for
the form that this brief has taken. T said, when inviting Mr. MeNamara to
the committee, that the committee had proposed that he be asked to come to
give us his views on the labour scarcity situation.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Yes, but I am not finding any fault with the brief which
Dr. Peebles has presented. I think he has presented it very admirably and in
accordance with your request; but I am referring to what might be termed as
general policy and I repeat: that if that view had been held fifty years ago,
this country would not have developed in any way like the way it has developed.
It would h;wq been wholly unable to play the part in the first and second great
wars that it did play and we would be lagging away behind where we are to-day.

)|
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So it seems to me that if we limit, if we shape or frame our policy to-day on
the basis of present needs, that we will be falling short, because I am one of
those who believe that the same opportunities exist to-day in Canada for develop-
ment that existed fifty years ago.

The CramrMaN: In short, take a chance and aim high.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: On the matter of procedure, Mr. Chairman, undoubtedly
what Senator Crerar has said needed to be said at the close of this brief so that
nobody will understand that the Labour Department is coming here with such
an argument; they have done what we asked them to do and they have given
us useful information and a very thoughtful and admirable brief which is full
of information; but I would point out to the committee that we have two other
speakers here to-day and also that we have to adjourn to-day at 12.30 because
of a luncheon, so we must bear that in mind. I would like to ask a lot of
questions arising out of this brief, but I simply cannot do it.

The CramrMAN: Well, after the brief has been analysed by us, it may be
that we might want the witness to return.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Yes.

The CrAmRMAN: So. good-bye for the present, Dr. Peebles.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Senator Crerar suggests that we do that, so let us
make an arrangement later on; let us go on with his brief realizing that all that
Dr. Peebles has done now is tell us of the jobs that are available in accordance
with the records of their department, estimated to the best of their ability in
that department.

The CuAlRMAN: In other words, as set out in the brief.

Dr. PeeBres: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Peebles at this point retired.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: I would suggest that we call on Mr. Colley now. He
is the local representative of the International Committee for Refugees. Have
I phrased it correctly?

Mr. Correy: No, I am not the representative in Canada of the Inter-govern-
mental Committee on Refugees.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Yes. Mr. Colley holds an official position and is
looking at it from the inside out, while Dr. MacKay looks at it from the
outside in. Therefore it seems reasonable that Mr. Colley should speak first.

James Colley, Canadian Representative, Inter-governmental Committee
on Refugees, called:

Mr. Correy: I am very glad to be here to-day. I have had experience in
immigration over the last 35 years. I have had practical experience with the
sugar beet workers. :

Hon. Mr. BucuaNan: I think you should first inform the committee that
you were with the Canadian Pacific, Department of Colonization for a consider-
able time and also with the Lethbridge Irrigation Distriet in its early days.

Mr. CorLey: Yes; I have been with the Canadian Pacific Railway and I
was assistant commissioner of the Department of Immigration and Coloniza-
tion, until February 1st of this year. Then I went to Montreal in 1929 and
was Superintendent of the department. Previous to that I was district super-
intendent at Calgary, and I had a lot to do with colonization and settlement in
the province of Alberta. And I was for many years Secretary of the Western

88049—2%



. 56 i STANDING COMMITTEE

Canada Irrigation Association, which was an association dealing with the

development of the irrigated areas in southern Alberta and British Columbia. -

Then in 1921 I was secretary of the commission appointed by the Alberta govern-
ment to survey the drought areas in southern Alberta; and following the report
of that commission I was colonization manager for the Lethbridge Irrigation
district for some years until a re-arrangement of the rates when I returned to
the Canadian Pacific Railway in 1925, and took a part in getting the sugar beet
factory established in Raymond. One of the problems that we realized in
connection with the settlement of irrigable land was the provision of a sugar
beet factory so that the land could be used to its fullest economical value and
so that it would afford us an opportunity to place settlers. On the other hand,
we afforded the industry an opportunity to get their raw product. So, before the
factory was erected, we interviewed the farms and the sugar companies and that
finally resulted in our bringing and settling those Hungarians as colonists in
that neighbourhood. The first men who were brought in were not what we
wanted. We brought in Hungarian single men, whose families we brought out
later. These men started in as labourers. Many of them owed the money for
their transportation to somebody on the other side; but they have become the
owners or lessees of land and are now the ‘mainstay of that industry. I consider
that the sugar beet proposition offers the best opportunity for settlement that
exists in Canada at the present time; because if you take a family during the two
or three months of the year in which that family is employed, they can earn
sufficient to cover all their expenses and to enable them to purchase, first of all,
equipment and then to make arrangements for renting land. That has been
done in the past and it can be done in the future. On the other hand, single
men would not be a success. It does not matter if you tie them down to a two-
year contract, they will not be a success unless there is the possibility of bringing
their families out to them later. But with a family, a man has his wife and a
couple of children, say, and they earn quite a substantial sum.
Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: And there is lots of land?

Mr. Correy: Yes, and beyond that there are 300,000 acres of arable land,
now under cultivation, that the provincial governments are putting millions of
dollars into. They will need these settlers; and the best kind of settlers have
been those who came in with nothing and have earned from production on the
land. That is possible to be done again. Unfortunately, the labour officials
have not understood that possibility or taken it into consideration. There is no
doubt that if families are brought in there they can make good for the future
development of this country.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: You apparently do not agree with our present immi-
gration ban against married people?

Mr. Courey: I would not say there is, so far as I know, a ban against
married people. '

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Oh, yes there is.

Mr. Correy: Among the displaced persons we have families who, if they .

had been brought over in time for this year, would have been suitable and they
would have been recruits or candidates for settlement, in two or three years
time, when these 800,000 acres are ready for settlement. And beyond that, there
are probably 500,000 acres more than that that can be brought under irrigation.
I do not know of any land settlement opportunity in Canada equivalent to the
1rr1ga:ble land opportunities that I have mentioned and that has something to
do with my present work, because this IGCR organization may be interested in
promoting land settlement opportunities later on.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: You are speaking now of Alberta?

Mr. Correy: Yes, mainly of Alberta.
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Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: And he has been expanding on what I said.
Mr. Correy: Yes.

Hon. Mr. BucHaNAN: Your work now, Mr. Colley, is with the Inter-
governmental Committee on Refugees?

Mr. Correy: Yes, and if T may, I would like to read you some notes. They
are not my own notes, but I will read them to you:

“TICTES ON DISPLACED PERSONS AND REFUGEES AVAILABLE
FOR EMIGRATION

1. The concern of the Inter-governmental Committee on Refugees with the
resettlement of refuges and displaced persons through migration dates from
the inception of the Committee in 1938, when it was created to care for refugees
from Germany and Austria.

The following 35 countries are members of this Committee: Argentine
Republic, Australia, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Czecho-
slovak Republic, Denmark, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Egypt, Eire, France,
Greece, Haiti, Honduras, Iceland, India, Luxemburg, Mexico, Netherlands, New
Zealand, Nicaragua, Norway, Paraguay, Peru, Poland, Sweden, Switzerland,
Union of South Africa, United Kingdom, United States of America, Venezuela.

In 1943 it was reorganized and its mandate was extended to include all
persons who have had to leave, or may have to leave, their countries of residence
because of threat to life or property arising out of their race, religion or political
belief. During the war, help was given wherever this was possible to nationals
of the United Nations as well as to stateless persons and refugees from Nazi
persecution who came within the mandate. Subsequent to the end of hostilities,
without any change being made in mandate and pending further clarification
of the problem, the program of activities was, in practice, confined to the
following classes:—

(a) Austrian and German refugees from Nazi persecution.

(b) Spanish refugees.

(¢) Some other stateless persons.

On July 16, 1946, at the instances of the Governments of the United
Kingdom and the United States of America, the Executive Committee sanctioned
an extension of the practical activities of the Committee within its mandate.
The main objects of this extension are to facilitate the work of the new organiza-
tion (the International Refugee Organization) which it is proposed to establish
as a specialized agency related to the United Nations, first, by undertaking
certain measures preliminary to resettlement, and second, by undertaking re-
settlement itself so far as this is practicable. These measures relate to all
persons otherwise eligible who come within the mandate of the Committee,
including displaced persons not otherwise disqualified who are unable, or
definitely unwilling, to return to their countries of nationality or habitual
residence. The Committee will observe the principles contained in the Draft
Constitution for the International Refugee Organization.

2. Subject to these principles, the effect of the decision of the Executive
Committee above mentioned is that the Committee has undertaken the responsi-
bility for making every effort to find new homes for those refugees and displaced
persons who are unwilling or unable to return to their own countries. Since
the end of hostilities in Europe, approximately 6,000,000 displaced persons and
refugees have been repatriated. Repatriation still continues, and every effort
is being made by the Governments concerned and UNRRA to encourage as many
persons as possible to return to their countries of nationality or former residence.
It is estimated however, that there are to-day in various European countries
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approximately 850,000 refugees and displaced persons. It is thought that a large
proportion of this number are candidates for emigration overseas. The majority
are in Germany, Austria and Italy, but there are also scattered groups in various
countries of Europe and elsewhere.

These countries are members of the Executive Committee:”

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: You have not told us of your present position and
what it is.

Mr. CoLLey: I am Resident Representative of this Committee with which
I am dealing. :

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: What is it?

Mr. Correy: The Inter-governmental Committee on Refugees. And this brief
explains what we are doing; I mean, it explains what the Committee is and
what are its functions.

3. Approximate figures of the composition by nationality of these 850,000
are as follows:

Poled zo 5 ansis 400,000 Lithuanians .... 70,000
Balba: b e 200,000 Latvians: ¢ ..vis. 100,000
Yugoslavs ...... 75,000 Estonians ...... 30,000
thers s b 175,000

850,000

The figure for Poles, as also the gross total of 850,000 does not include
those who are members of General Onders’ Forces, in regard to whom the
government of the United Kingdom has accepted primary responsibility.

With regard to religion, it is estimated about 10 per cent to 15 per cent of
the total of 850,000 are Jews; the overwhelming majority of the remainder are
Catholics, some of whom belong to the Orthodox Church, but the predominant
number to the Roman Catholic Church. There are some Protestants, but they
probably do not exceed 10 per cent of the total.

4. The sex and age composition of the principal groups among the displaced
persons and refugees expressed in percentages is as follows:

3, (-0 R 48 per cent Children
Women ...... 34 per cent under 16.... 18 per cent

These averages are substantially accurate for the Polish and Baltic groups
of refugees, but the percentage of men is 56 among the Jewish group and 61 in
the Yugoslav, and there are only 7 per cent of children under 16 among the
Jewish refugees and displaced persons.

5. Occupational professional skills are very widely represented among the
refugees and displaced persons and appropriate selection would provide large
numbers of skilled workers for any trade or profession. A very rough and
partial analysis of occupations made by UNRRA in the displaced persons
assembly centres in Germany shows that agriculture, forestry and dairy and food
processing is the largest occupational category accounting for 45 per cent of the
employable men and women in the Polish group, 26 per cent among the
Yugoslavs and 16 per cent respectively in the Baltic and Jewish groups.

Other major occupational categories which are well represented are com-
munications, supply and transportation, the metal trades, construction and
maintenance trades, health and sanitation services, administrative clerical
and commercial occupations and the professions and the arts. Personal service
trades such as shoemakers, tailors, dressmakers, etc. account for perhaps 25 per
cent of the employable persons among the refugees and displaced persons.
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It will thus be seen that the field of selection is very wide, that there are
roughly a quarter of a million practical agriculturists that may be available for
emigration and settlement and that there is a large supply of skilled and semi-
skilled labour suitable for various industries.

6. The methods of settlement which the Intergovernmental Committee on
Refugees is pursuing are, apart from rapatriation, first, the settlement by immi-
gration of individuals and family units, and second, the resettlement of persons
by groups on a larger scale, It is prepared to assist with the costs of transporta-
tion by individuals and family units, and 1s anxious to enter into negotiation
with potential Governments of reception regarding resettlement of the larger
groups. It welcomes the opportunity of sending representatives to countries
of reception for the purpose of discussing the requirements of such countries and
the best practical means of meeting them, and it has found from experience that
preliminary discussions of this kind are the most satisfactory method of
ascertaining the exact types and classes of emigrants and settlers who will best
promote the interests of their countries of adoption.”

Hon. Mr. BucHaNAN: As a result of this organization, has there been a
movement of refugees into these countries which are members?

Mr. CoLLey: Oh, there has been some, to Brazil, to Paraguay, and to some
of the other South American countries.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Do you know how many?

Mr. Correy: Offhand I would say perhaps 5,000 altogether.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Have you got ships?

Mr. CoLrey: Yes; this organization got ships to send them over to Brazil.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And could you get ships to bring them here?

Mr. Correy: We have had an opportunity, on two or three different
occasions, that would have brought people here, had we been able to bring
people over in bulk; but we have not had the authority to bring people over in
bulk. We mould have to go over them and sort them out and in order to do
that it takes time and then we find that the shipping is not available; but if we
?vslzd a}tllthority to take them in bulk, we could have had a shipload over here in

arch.

Hon. Mr. Evrer: And what would you have done with them after you got
them here?

Mr. CorLey: The organizations here would have taken care of that.

The CualrMaN: Is your organization an established and working organiz-
ation?

Mr. Conpey: Oh, yes.

The CmamrMaN: I notice that you say here: “International Refuge
Organization which it is proposed to establish as a specialized agency relating
to the United Nations.”

Mr. Correy: Intergovernmental Committee was fmjmed in 1938; it is
performing those functions preparatory to the IRO which will function in
relation to immigration and resettlement when it is formed. UNRRA has not
been responsible for immigration and resettlement.

The CrarvAN: Are you in the meantime, an established organization?

Mr. CorLey: Yes, the Canadian governmernt helps to support this organi-
zation; the United Kingdom and the United States are probably the largest
supporters. y

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Do you know how much we have appropriated for the
expenses of this committee?

Mr. Corniy: I have not the figures at the moment.
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Hon. Mr. BucaaNAN: And who is the head of it?
Mr. Correy: Sir Herbert Emerson; he is the Director-General.
Hon. Mrs. WiLson: Britain is taking 15,000 Balts.

Mr. CorLey: Yes, Britain is taking 15,000 Balts and they are ready to take
a regular number every month, a set number monthly.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: The first group of them arrived the other day. Matthew
Halton spoke about it a couple of nights ago.

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: Do you co-operate with the Department of Immi-
gration here?

Mr. CoLLey: Yes, we do; our department has the master list and receives it
from them; which contains the applications from close relatives; and as the
people on this list are approved, I notify them and I pass it on to overseas where
they set to work and sort these people out and get ready to ship them. We
brought over 50 on the Aquitania on the first of this month, and there will be
another 50 on the 28th.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: How do you work with our Immigration Committee
over here? Do you bring the proposed immigrants to the Immigration office?

Mr. Correy: The immigration team work with the IGCR in the camps over
there.

The CrarvAN: But the Immigration Department says that an enemy alien
does not come within the mandate of the IGCR.

Mr. CorLey: These are displaced persons that I am talking about.

The Caammanx: Well, if they are Austrians, or German refugees?

Mr. CorLey: Well, that is referring to the time when we were formed.

The Crammax: I cannot quite understand the difference between your
contention and the contention of the Immigration Department.

Mr. CorLey: The Austrians and German refugees referred to here are
mostly Jewish refugees who were in trouble before the war.

The Cramman: What about Spanish refugees?

Mr. Correy: This dates from before the war and it is what we were formed
for originally; and this committee is still responsible for the Spanish refugees
but has not tried to place them in Canada. I suppose their final hope is to get
them back to the countries of their origin.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: But were not the Jewish refugees that you refer to from
Austria and Germany?

Mr. CouLey: The Jew, no matter to what country he belongs, is considered
as a displaced person.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: How is that considered by your organization?

Mr. Correy: Well, as T have explained in the second paragraph, we are
}V:’é)é‘ll.ﬂng on the mandate of the IRO which was drawn up at Lake Success last

. Hon. Mr. McGumre: That does not say how you can say that a Jewish
citizen of Hungary is not a Hungarian.

Mr. Correy: No, I do not suppose it does; but Jewish refugees or displaced

persons are considered by this organization as people for whom we ought to have
some concern.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Was that the feeling in 1938 before the war began?
Mr. ‘COLLEY:, The refugee was an international problem before the war
began, and the United Kingdom and the United States and other governments

thought they had to do something about it; so they formed this committee. It is
not a private committee.

=
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Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And the goverments are financing this committee?

Mr. Correy: Yes. :

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And the Dominion of Canada has contributed its
share to this committee?

Mr. CoLLEy: Yes.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: In a very considerable amount?

Mzr. CoLLey: Considerable in a way, but in proportion to the others; I think
it iz about four per cent of the Funds. The object of establishing a representative
in Canada was to deal with the present problem not with the past problem,
but the problem of the displaced person and the refugee in camps in Germany.

The CuammaN: That is why you use this language: “which it was proposed
to establish as a specialized agency related to the United Nations.”

Mr. CoLLEY: Yes; we are carrying on under their mandate until such time
as they are ready to carry on. This organization is meeting in Geneva at the
present time to arrive at final arrangements for the establishment of the IRO
which it is expected will be arrived at by the end of June. In the meantime the
problem is one of resettlement or repatriation, and somebody had to carry on
with it; so this committee is carrying on that particular work.

The CuARMAN: Are you located in Ottawa.

Mr. CoLLEY: Yes.

The CuairmaN: Then we may want to see you sometime again before we
get through with this inquiry.

Hon. Mr. CampserL: I take it from your remarks that you feel, yourself
that as the present policy is carried out, it is almost impossible for you to do
anything to bring a large number of these displaced persons to Canada?

Mr. CoLLey: Yes, to assemble a large number of people together and to
make arrangements for chartering a ship, it is practically impossible.

The CHAIRMAN: Have the immigration regulations anything to do with it?

Mr. CorLLry: No; the immigration regulations at the present time permit
people to come here.

Hon. Mr. CampBerL: But I gathered that you did not think so because you
said that the Immigration Department would give you.a list and you would
sort them out, but that there was no way under the present policy for you to
get them to Oanada

Mr. Correy: This latest order in council permits the bringing forward of
people who are assured of employment. If this committee were authorized to
select people on the other side without reference to any relative on this side or
without reference to a particular job, we could do that, but we have not had

* an authorization to do so. I think the order in council would not permit that, as

I understand it.

The CrAIRMAN: Now we are very much obliged and we may want to hear
from you later.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Is the witness of the opinion that his organization
should bring a man from Austria, from Hungary or from Germany say who is
not a Jew.

Mr. CorLey: Oh, yes.
Hon. Mr. McGuire: Well, the order in council here says not.

Mr. CorLLey: Not if he is a Hungarian. I do not want to be misunderstood
about this. I do not think we could bring anybody from Austria or Hungary.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Or from Germany?
Mr. CorLey: Or from Germany, who is not a displaced person.
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Hon. Mr. McGuire: But there are more people who are displaced who are
not Jews, in those countries; there are people who are displaced persons who
are not Jews in those countries to-day; can you bring any of those people here?
Can your organization do so?

Mr. CorrLey: We are limited by the mandate set out by the United Nations
and we are also limited by the Canadian laws as to what is an enemy alien. The
Jews that we would bring over would be, practically, called stateless persons.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: I think the question is: they are not Jews; they are
displaced persons, although Austrians and Hungarians; would they be allowed
to come over?

Mr. CouLey: No, an Austrian or a Hungarian or anybody; it is a long
story; any enemy alien or one who is assumed to have assisted them is precluded.
I could read to you what the IRO says in its mandate about this thing. This
was drawn up in a discussion at Lake Success and there were all sorts of
objections to be overcome so there had to be a compromise arrangement.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: But how can you get past this order in council of the
government, of Canada?

Mr. Correy: The people we would bring in would not be Hungarians or
Germans or Austrians or Roumanians; we cannot get by that.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Who are you bringing from those countries then?
Mr. CorLey: We bring people only from the displaced persons camps in

Germany, Austria and Italy; some of those people, many of them, may be
Yugoslavs, or Czechoslovaks, or citizens of other countries, but nobody in those
displaced persons camps at the present time who belong to those nationalities
which were former enemy aliens, we cannot touch them at all at the present
time.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Irrespective of whether they be anti-Nazi or not?
Mr. Correy: Irrespective of whether they be anti-Nazi or not.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: There are five thousand people on your master list?
Mr. CoLLEY: Yes.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And they all have relatives here in Canada?

Mr. CoLLey: Yes.

Hon. Mr. RogBuck: Is there any reason why you should not gather those
five thousand people together and get a couple of ships and bring them over?
Mr. CoLrey: Of course, they are not all approved; the approvals go over
at the rate of three or four at a time; and lining them up is a little bit difficult.
~ Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Why cannot you take those who are approved and
bring them over?
Mr. CoLLey: Our men are working on that as fast as they can do it. We
have teams over there selecting them, and they have to be brought from twenty
to thirty different districts. :

The Cramrman: We are glad to have heard from you and we may have
to ask you to come back again.

Mr. Cortey: Thank you and I will be glad to come back.
Mr. CoLLEy, the Witness, retired at this point.

~_The Cuammax: Now we have Mr. Ian MacKay, a former UNRRA worker
in Germany, called:

Mr. MacKay: Honourable senators, I am not here in any official position,
yet I should like to think that I had in one sense of the word, an official position,
because I am here representing some 800,000 displaced persons in Europe and
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in particular the displaced persons in the British zone of Germany which I know
pretty well, and several hundred UNRRA workers who made a great contribu-
tion to the work of UNRRA in Germany for the relief of the suffering of the
displaced persons.

I had the privilege a month or so ago of speaking to a group of senators
and members of Parliament, but I shall not enlarge on what I said at that time,
because my time is short.

Hon. Mr. Haie: Who is this gentleman, and who does he speak for?

Mr. MacKay: I was with the Canadian Air Force as a Protestant Chaplain
and in 1945, 1 went to Germany with UNRRA, where I worked with them for
several years and served until the first of this year. I do not represent any
particular group; I am here at the request of Senator Wilson and I would like
you to think of me as representing the displaced persons in the British zone of
Germany and I would like to make a plea for them, in addition to the several
hundred UNRRA workers who have made a magnificent contribution to the
relief of suffering in Europe.

The problem of the displaced person is one which has confronted us for
some time and one which still remains unsolved. As time goes on, the urgency
for its solution becomes all the greater. The position of the displaced person in
Europe is not getting better, it is becoming worse; and I would like to read to
you an excerpt from a letter I received last week from Germany from Miss
Elsie Moyle. She writes as follows:—

. . . .You will not be at all surprised to learn of course that things are
worse than when you withdrew. The D.P’s sit on in their camps and we
appear to do so little for them. I think that most of us struggle along
hoping that occasionally we manage to get something over that helps
someone, but it is pretty deadly business. During the early months of
winter, most of our D.P’s were shunted unmercifully around the country
under a plan to hand back as much accommodation as possible to house
refugees. Necessary, but hardly humane, as some of them suffered five
moves in three months. Repatriation in this region topped the zone, and
some heavy wars went on to maintain a reasonable standard in repatria-
tion trains. Repatriation was finally stopped until the weather improved,
just after Christmas, because several people were frozen to death both on
the boat from Lubeck and the trains from Hesslingen. As the Germans
take over more and more responsibility for their own economy, the effort
to maintain any of the D.P’s rights, if you can call them that, is inten-
sified, and life seems to be a constant inquiry as to why this or why that.
The D.P’s are on exactly the same rations as the Germans, except that
their issue of food is regular and that of the Germans is not, and very
shortly they will be required to pay for their food and lodging and go
to work:. . i,
* Excerpt from letter to Mr. Ian MacKay,

from Muiss Elsie Moyle, UNRRA, H.Q.,

North Rhine, Westphalia Prov., Iserlohn,

Germany.

The reference to the refugees was in respect to the German refugees coming
from Poland and Sudetenland and so on. Our refugees were shifted all around
the country to make room for the German refugees. That is a letter which
came out from Germany and which I received last week. You can see from
that the urgency to find some solution for these people.

Now I would like to say a word about the types of people. Since I returned
from Germany, I have been doing a great deal of speaking to various bodies
and groups; the opinion of the majority of the people in Canada, I think, is
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not quite clear as to the types of people which we have in Germany. I think
I had the same opinion when I went into Germany, thinking that I was going
to work with an undesirable group of people who had been exploited and looted
by the Nazis. To my surprise I found that was not so. I have met many of
them, some of the most cultured and some of the finest people I have ever
met in my life. Morally their standards are extremely high, despite the horror
which they went through on the part of the Nazis. They come from all walks
of life, from the peasant labourer to the highest walks of university life. Par-
ticularly do I have in mind one person who came from Lithuania where he was
a Research Professor of Botany in a particular university there, and he was
also Dean of the Faculty and writer of note, not only in his own country, but
abroad as well. I have letters from him striving to make some contact with

people who can get him out of the country. For instance, in Hamburg, we

were able to set up a Baltic university which was completely staffed by Baltic
professors and the equipment used was equipment which was looted by the
Germans out of those Baltic countries; and we secured that equipment and
set it up: We have several hundred Baltic students who are undergoing
university courses. The same thing can be said of the Ukrainians and of the
other people.

One of our problems with the Poles was the fact that we had no teachers
fully qualified to teach them because there was a mass repatriation of educa-
tional people back to Poland. You can go on all through the various categories
and walks of life and you will find the leaders there in Germany; you will find
skilled and unskilled labour. We expected that a country would come and
ask us for persons of certain skill, so, with that in mind, we built up an
employment index in which every displaced person in the camp was classified
according to a personnel record which gives you not only the particular trade
or skill, but also the degree of skill obtained in those particular trades. I
have a sample of this here, if any of you would like to see it, because it was of
the utmost importance. Anybody requiring skilled or unskilled labour can
go into any UNRRA camp in Germany and say: I would like to know the
number of people you have who are skilled people; and you will find it there
on this index, on these index cards.

We did that, first of all, to get a very clear picture of the type of people
we had to deal with so far as the occupation was concerned. Previously we
could not get displaced persons employed at all in Germany. Then the German
shortage of labour came along, due to the lack of food, so we were able to get
displaced persons work. Practically every male was employed around the
city of Hanover working either with the military government, some with
UNRRA and some in logging industries; some in the peat bogs, and a number
in the German economy, where they worked under the supervision of one of
their own nationals. And the second reason for developing the employment
index was that we expected that the country would be calling for labour and
that we should have full information for them. When this was finished, all
these people were sereened for their political views. Teams consisting of
UNRRA personnel and military government personnel ‘went throughout the
camps and every person in the camp was screened. Each person was required
to fill out a form, a questionnaire, which was highly secret. Nobody knew
what it was. But the key to the solution of any particular questionnaire
was held by the Director of the team. If there was any doubt at all as to a
man’s eligibility, or for his UNRRA care or for his political views, a further
kpy was held by a person at a higher level; so you just transferred the ques-
tionnaire to that person, and so it went on. So, at present, in any camp in
Germany, so far as UNRRA is concerned, and those associations working with
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UNRRA, they have been thoroughly screened as to their political views. They
are definitely anti-Nazi and most certainly anti-Communist in every sense of
the word. It is an extremely urgent problem and I present it to you who are
sitting in ecommittee on this particular problem. . :

It is easy to find reasons why we cannot accept people in Canada; we can
say: labour services and shipping, but it goes beyond that. In my humble
estimation, we have a very definite moral obligation towards those people who
have suffered at the hands of those whom we have defeated on the battle fields
and we, who live in this great and glorious country that has been blessed, by God,
have a very definite obligation towards these people to accept them, where we
can, and to place them in our industries. And I venture to say, if this case were
placed before our Canadian people as a whole, I have no doubt that our Canadian
people would receive whole families, they would accept full and complete
responsibility for any number of people coming to us from Europe, just
because they feel a moral obligation towards them. Now I would be happy to
answer any questions that I can answer.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: Of these displaced persons, how many would be
complete families; would the father, mother and children be there in the camp,
the whole group together?

Mr. MacKay: Yes, where they were able to locate each other; but there
are numerous cases where we are still seeking and searching out the relatives
of families of certain people. And where we were able to locate them, we gave
them as much of a family environment as possible in those particular conditions.

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: You have not got the figures as to complete families?

Mr. MacKay: No.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: But there are plenty of them?

Mr. MacKay: I would say that the majority of them would be in favour of
their being families, although there are large numbers of single people, and we
have a number of persons whom we call unaccompanied children, whose parents
could not be located, and whom we assumed were dead or had been killed. I
would think that in the whole of Germany there are five thousand to eight
thousand of them; they are definitely unaccompanied children. In the British
zone we located, roughly, two thousand of these children. With many of them,
if you traced back as far as you could, you found no information about them:;
so vou labelled them: nationality unknown.

Hon. Mr. Camesern: Have you questioned these people as to whether they
wish to emigrate? Do you know where they wish to emigrate to?

Mr. MacKay: These people would emigrate to Canada and the United
States.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: That is their desire?

Mr. MacKay: Practically every desire but one. When I went into a camp I
was continually asked about Canada and the possibility of coming to Canada;
and upon occasion, petitions giving, perhaps, two or three hundred names of
single people and families who want to come to this country, were handed in.

Hon. Mr. CampBenn: And would they have had relatives in Canada?

Mr. MacKay: I would say that some of these Ukrainian people would have
relatives in Canada, but not a great number of those people from the Baltic
countries.

Hon. Mr. CampserL: So, under the present regulations and government
policy, it is almost impossible to bring them in.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: There are very few Balts in this country.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Can you say whether many Balts are going into
Germany and living there and leaving their own country? '
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Mr. MacKay: The Baltic people suffered under two occupations, both by
the Soviet people and by the Germans.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: They were fleeing from both.

Mr. MacKay: Yes, UNRRA’s policy was always repatriation for the Poles.

Hon. Mr. McGume: Why mass repatriation for the Poles; I thought
that the Pole would be the last man in the world to go back home to his former
home.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: You mentioned mass deportation for return to Poland
from Germany. :

Mr. MacKay: Yes, UNRRA’s policy was always repatriation for the Poles;
1 though that the Pole would be the last man in the world to go back home
to his former home.

Mr. MacKay: In the early days we had no information whatever from
Poland; there was very definitely a curtain drawn at the Polish border. Then
we began receiving into Germany a part of the Warsaw Red Cross who came
te us with very definite information as to what was happening in Poland;
and it was then that UNRRA and the military governments took a very definite
stand on repatriation, and gave, I believe, encouragement to those people to be
repatriated. 1 would say that Poland has a greater population now than ever
before. At the end of last year Poland was receiving back into Poland the
people of the first and third categories. They would not receive back people
who were Nazi and who were of very definite German sympathy. Those were
the only people whom the Poles would not accept. But in one week alone some-
thing like two hundred of the non-acceptable people went back into Germany.

Hon. Mr. Brvcaanan: Would they make application to go back?

Mr. MacKay: Yes, and they went back as displaced persons, although in the
true sense of the word they were not displaced persons.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Was the territory they went back to former German
territory and not Polish?

Mr. MacKay: Some of it was; they were given every encouragement to go
back. :

Hon. Mrs. Winson: Brigadier Drury has just come back; and he said that
whereas conditions are very hard, he was not altogether hopeless about the
situation in Poland. He has been over there as the UNRRA officer in charge
and he thinks there is a little more freedom. He said that the Y.M.CA. is
operating and that the Roman Catholies are operating too, but to a limited
extent.

Mr. MacKay: The great majority of the Polish people who were in Germany
were of the peasant type and they were farmed out on these large estates, so
jcherq was no reason why they should not go back, because they were not
implicated politically at all; and besides that, the large estates were"taken
over by the government and subdivided; and as farmers went back, they got a
plot of land of their own.

Hon. Mr. Camesern: Has the UNRRA organization made definite
approaches to the government of Canada and the United States with respect to
the mass immigration?

Mr. MacKay: Yes, I would say they had.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: And with what result?

~ Mr. MacKay: There has been practically no result. Any recent information
swhich T have had from Germany was that the only representative of any
government which had made any definite effort in Germany, so far as going
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into the camps and seeing the type of people there, and so on, in an official
capacity, has been Brazil. So far as immigration to their country is concerned,
Brazil 1s the only one. ,

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Would you consider that your work would be assisted
if the government of Canada were to set aside the order in council which
prevents nationals in Germany, Austria, and Italy from coming here at the
present time?

Mzr. McKay: I do not think so.

; Hon. Mrs. Wison: That is an international agreement and we cannot
alter it.

Hon. Mr. McQuire: No, but I am referring to the order in council.

Hon. Mr. CAmpBELL: But that is not the barrier to it.

Mr. MacKay: No.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: The barrier is the policy which is laid down by the
government, that no one can be admitted without permission.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: I heard about a suicide just the other day. .

Mr. MacKay: Yes. These people from the Ukraine and the Baltic
countries, if there is any effort made to send them back and to recognize them
as citizens of the Soviet, all these people have suicide pacts, and they carry
razor blades with themy; and if the time ever came when we said: you are
citizens of the Soviet and under the Yalta agreement you must go back, we
would have nothing but mass suicides in Germany.

The Cramrman: The Immigration Department says: in the first place, they
are citizens of Hungary and thus they are enemy aliens.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: There are many applications with the Department of
Immigration to-day from Italy, Hungary and many other countries, and they
are refused and cannot be considered. So, if your organization can bring them
in, notwithstanding that, I would consider that you had some special under-
standing with the government of Canada.

Mr. MacKay: UNRRA does not assume any responsibility in the case of
enemy nationals.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Then, who can you bring from Germany to-day?

Mr. MacKay: Well, you have got Polish people, Yugoslavs, Lithuanians,
White Russians, Jewish people who are definitely not ex-enemy nationals.

Hon. Mr. McGuire: Those who have come just of late, the last fifty or
sixty odd, would they come under that clause?

Mr. MacKay: They were displaced persons; that was the first group that
arrived in Canada, I think; and I think I am quite right in saying that the
Ukrainian people and the Mennonites in Canada will assume the full respon-
sibility for those people, when they come in.

Hon. Mr. HusHion: It seems to me with respect to the government’s
restrictions, that most of those people were good meaning people and highly
desirable people, and it seems unfair. You may have a very desirable citizen
from Germany, but we cannot get him in here. If we took some from Germany
that would relieve some of the pressure. It seems to me that the government
should take that off and leave it to the Germans as a whole; or the people.
They are not responsible for what happened, I believe.

Mr. MacKay: It is a matter of relatives. These are the people who suffered.

Hon. Mr. Husurion: They all suffered.

_Mr. MacKay: Any suffering in Germany was brought upon the Germans
by themselves; and after a year and half in Germany, I do not think the
Germans are prepared to accept one bit of responsibility for what happened.
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In the early days our biggest trouble was to maintain any rights whatsoever
for our allied nationals In comparison with the rights and privileges of the
Germans who were the defeated people; and we are the people who liberated
these persons from slave labour camps and from concentration camps, and
we have got them in Germany and have kept them there for several years
now and we are giving them absolutely no consolation or no solution to the
problem; so they are becoming frustrated and hopeless and they are becoming
demoralized, because they have no hope. If only we could go to them and say;
we will take a certain number of you in a year’s time, it would give them
some hope.

We did send certain numbers of them back to the Sovlet Union at the
point of the bayonet in the early days. We should not force them back. Under
the Yalta agreement, the Soviet people are the only ones who can be forced to
go back.

Hon. Mr. Husaion: The Soviet seems to have had a lot to do with this;
but the German people as a whole, from a humane point of view, it was hard
for them to resist Hitlerism or Nagziism that they were up against. Now
that it is over, and in order to make the world peaceful and happy, they
should be allowed to carry on with the rest of them as much as possible.
That is just my point of view.

The CrAlRMAN: It is now 12.35 and we are sorry, buf we have to conclude
and are sorry that we cannot give you more time, Mr. MacKay.

Hon. Mr. CampBerL: I would like to have this witness return because
there are a lot of very important questions that might be asked and I think
that he could give us a lot of information. I gather that he has a very clear
understanding of these problems of displaced persons, and it is one of the
duties of this committee to try to find a solution for this specific problem and
to make very: strong representations to the government to have it fully adopted,
and in the Chamber, and to give it some publicity.

The CmARMAN: My understanding is that this gentleman, Mr. MacKay,
is a minister from Toronto, now, and that he came down here at the request
of our colleague, the honourable Senator Wilson, and it is just too bad that
he has not had more time to present his views to us today, but we want to
complete this hearing at 12.30.

Hon. Mr. CampeBeLL: Could we not hear him after the adjournment later
this afternoon?

The Caamrvan: If that is agreeable to you?

Hon. Mr. CampeLL: I should think we would be through by 4.30, when
the Senate rises or whenever the Senate rises.

The CuatrmaNn: Very well, we will now adjourn until Senate rises this
afternoon, when we will meet here again. Thank you.

The Commlttee adjourned at 1240 p.m., to meet again today after the
Senate rises from its afternoon session.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE,
Orrawa, April 24, 1947.

The Committee resumed at 4.40 p.m.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Mr. Chairman, I think we have a quorum now; we
have eight senators here.

The CrAlRMAN: Noj there are only five members of the committee present,
so we shall wait for a minute or two.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Mr. Chairman, we heard a few minutes’ address by
Mr. MacKay before we adjourned, and then our time being very limited, you
suggested that we should reassemble this afternoon to hear a continuation. Now
there are quite a number of senators here who did not hear the opening remarks.

Hon. Mr. Haic: Do not look at me; I heard them.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck:. Yes, I know; so I would suggest to the speaker that
he give us some idea of what he said this morning, not necessarily to repeat all
of it, but to give us an idea. So, if he would just tell us again what he knows
about these displaced persons camps in Europe and so on, commencing more
or less ab initio.

The Cuamrman: Would you just give us a brief outline indicating the
length of your term of service in Germany and telling us what you were doing.

Hon. Mr. CampeperL: Would the witness explain just who these displaced
persons are because there seems to be some doubt in the minds of some of us
as to whether they are Germans or just who they are.

Hon. Mr. Hate: And let us know their ages and sex, whether they are young
women or older women and so on.

Mr. MacKay: Displaced persons are persons of allied nationality who had
been displaced by reason of the war; and the ones to whom I was referring
particularly were the persons in Germany who were brought in there by the Nazis
to carry on their slave labour policy. Many of them ended up in concentration
camps and we liberated them in May, 1945. They cover, predominantly, the
Poles, the Ukrainian people, the Yugoslavs, and the Baltic people; and in that
group I have not included the Jews who are considered as a separate group.
Despite the fact of their countries of origin, be they Polish or Yugoslavie, they
are considered as Jews; and that is the way they consider themselves; those are
the displaced persons.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And the actual number of them, outside of the Jews, is
850,000?

Mr. MacKay: Including the Jews.

The Cuamman: How many Jews are there? |

Mr. MacKay: It is difficult to give you an accurate estimate of the Jews,
but I would say, perhaps, 150,000 of Jewish personnel.

" Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I have heard it stated as being ten per cent.

Mr. MacKay: Yes, of the 850,000.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Ten per cent of the 850,000 represent Jews and the
balance would be Protestants or Roman Catholics?

69
88049—3



70 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. MacKay: Yes, and a lot of Jews have come into Germany from Poland
and other parts of Europe, whom we call infiltrees, not displaced persons. They
came after the war under apparently a very definite scheme, that they would
leave their countries of origin and enter Germany. At the present time there are
about 10,000 of them in Belsen.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: You mean they are in the concentration camp at
Belsen?

Mr. MacKay: No, not in the concentration camp, but in the military bar-
racks of the concentration camp, and they number roughly 10,000; and of that
number, I could not say how many infiltrees and how many were actually dis-
placed persons.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Were you connected with the Inter-Governmental Com-
mittee?

Mr. MacKay: In no way, sir. I was connected entirely with UNRRA and
I acted as Chief Welfare Officer for the province of Hanover, and latterly Field
Supervisor with Headquarters inHanover.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And you are a Chaplain?

Mr. MacKay: No, I was a welfare worker which had nothing whatever to
do with the religious side of the work, although religion is part of welfare.

Hon. Mr. Haic: Under UNRRA?

Mr. MacKay: Under UNRRA, yes.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Senator Haig asked you what sort of people these were.

Senator Haic: Yes, I wanted to know the age and type and that sort of
thing. .

Mr. MacKay: The ages vary, of course, but there are large numbers of
young people, single and married, and I would say that the majority of them
are in the middle-age group, families.

Hon. Mr. Roesvck: What would you say about their gkills?

Mr. MacKay: Their skills cover practically anything you can suggest. As I
mentioned this morning, we had this employment index drawn up which gives
you an indication of the type of persons we had. It is drawn up into ten
classifications covering all the trades, hoth skilled and professional, and that is
broken down again.

The CaamMAN: That document will be included in our records, will it not?

Mr. MacKay: Well, if you wish it; it is not a complete report; it is a report
concerning my own area in Germany.

The Cramrman: Well, it would be interesting to us.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: It concerns individual men, does it not?

Mr. MacKay: No, it is in statistical form. For instance, under adminis-
tration, clerical, commercial, I would look at “A-1” and then I would turn over
here where I see “A-1" where I have 80 Poles, that 80 men, and 46 women who
are accountants and auditors or bookkeepers. Then I go along and I see
Latvians, for instance, 215 men and 21 women; Lithuania, 123 and 121, and so
on; it goes through all the classifications of skills, clerks, salesmen, draftsmen,
electricians, engineers, farmers, dairymen, and so on. It would be a study of
about 300,000 people. This report covers roughly, 300,000.

Hon. Mr. BucuaNAN: It does?

Mr. MacKay: Yes; this covers all of Hanover province. This covers only
the employable males and females. :

Hon. Mr. Haie: It does not cover children?

Mr. MacKay: No. >

Hon. Mr. Hag: Just displaced persons?
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Mr. MacKay: Yes; and this was drawn up my an American Employment
officer who knew the routine from end to end; and the cards were kept in the
various camps and all you had to do was to ask for the number of gkilled people
in a particular field and they would look up the proper cards and tell you every-
thing about them. They would tell you the degree of skill and everything.- That
service is available to anybody who desires to go into Germany and to select
these people.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I think you have stated to-day the only people, as a
government, who have made any use of this service was Brazil.

Mr. MacKay: Yes; that is the only government who have been seen in
Germany with that end in view. ;

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: And has there been an actual movement of the
people from these displaced persons camps to Brazil?

Mr. MacKXay: No, not in- any large number; Brazil was going to take
20,000, but I think the number finally got cut down to say 3,000 or 4,000.

Hon. Mr. Haig: I believe that this report ought to be filed; it is a survey
from Hanover province of 300,000 people of® working age and it gives the |
skills and possibilities within that area.

The Cuamman: If we could get somebody to analyse it and put in down,
so that it would be simplified. Do you see how that could be done?

Mr. MacKay: It could be done and condensed into-a more readable form
than it is at the present time; there will be no diffieulty in doing that, but it is
a very interesting document and if you would like to see it, I should be happy to
pass it over because it gives you-a complete picture of the type of people that
you have in Germany.

The CHaRMAN: Let us know later what you think about condensing and
printing it. Now, will you proceed please.

Mr. MacKay: I think, if you would like to understand something about
conditions under which these people are required to live at the present time, you
will be interested to know that there were three types of accommodation used for-
displaced persons. The first type was the military barracks of the Germans, and
there are many of them in Germany. By and large they were good; some were: .
bombed very badly, for instance, Belsen, which is a very large military barracks,
but nevertheless it is in very good condition, and such a camp offers very good
facilities for the care of the displaced persons, as far as feeding was concerned,
but @s to housing except for one instance the rooms tended to be too small and,
. when there was a fairly large family it brought about fairly erowded conditions.
We lost some of those barracks because the British began training their own
troops in Germany, so we had to vacate some of them; but we did keep the
bombed barracks and we did keep the Belsen barracks. The second type of
accommodation which is most usual in Germany was the slave labour camps,
which were just long low wooden huts, very much the shape of this room. Some-
times they were in quite good condition and other times they were in very very
bad condition. These were camps in which the Germans required the slave
labourers to live during the war and, naturally, they were not very much con-
cerned about repairs. Foreign labour was living in there and the repairs would
not be kept up at all. The majority of them have been repaired to the extent
so far as supplies were available; but glass was not available; lumber was not
available; nails were not available in any quantity with which to repair these
buildings, with the result that they were scarcely liveable.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: You mentioned slave labourers now.

Mr. MacKay: They are the same group of people; these are the people
whom the Nazis brought into Germany to work in their factories and mines.
88049—3%
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Hon. Mr. BucaANAN: What proportion of these displaced persons in
Germany now would you call slave labourers.

Mr. MacKay: Outside of the Balts, you could call them all; and there were
about 150,000 Balts.

The CmarMAN: But you call them refugees now?

Mr. MacKay: No, they are all displaced persons.

Hon. Mr. Haic: They are the same people who were the slave labour
people? ‘

Hon. Mr. BucuaNAN: You say that the Balts were not slave labourers?

Mr. MacKay: Not to the same degree as the Ukrainians and the Poles;
they did not come into Germany until late in 1945, the Balts.

Hon. Mr. Hatc: These people won’t go back home?

Mr. MacKay: Our policy was repatriation for the Poles, and I gave you
the reason why Poland requires her people; and they have been prepared to
accept for some time the people, that is, those Poles who may have had a German
father or a German mother, and they will accept them in classes or categories
No. 2 and No. 3, but not in the first class which is really a German, one who is
considered by the Nazis as being a pure Aryan, as far as the other groups are
concerned. For instance, the Yugoslavs, they will not go back because of the
political situation and implications in Yugoslavia; they are Royalists, and as you
know, there is no monarchy in Yugoslavia; and because of their fear of the
political regime in Yugoslavia, they absolutely refuse to go back. And when
you come to the Balts, the same thing holds true there; three Baltic countries
have been occupied by the Soviets since 1944, so they are now considered as
the Baltic Republics of the Soviet Union; and these people refuse to go back
while the Soviets are in control of those countries. We have not as yet recognized,
as United Nations, the occupation of the three Baltic countries by the Soviet
Union. Whether we do or not, I do not know; and these people absolutely
refuse to go back.

Hon. Mr. Hatg: We have not dared to do so?

Mr. MacKay: We have, apparently, ignored it so far; these people have
refused to go back.

Hon. Mr. Datgre: What is the physical condition of these people?

Mr. MacKay: The physical condition of the displaced persons is very,
very good; I think it is quite true to say of the Poles that their health in
Germany is better than it was, that is, the average in Germany is better and
higher than it was in their own country because they have been cared for not
only by their own medical people, but by the medical peaple under supervision
of UNRRA; and the same is true of the other groups.

Hon. Mr. DateLe: And do they do any kind of work?

Mr. MacKay: In the early days it was quite impossible to get displaced
persons to work. In the first place they were not so keen on working themselves;
they had been working for six or seven years, fourteen to seventeen hours a day,
for the Germans on a diet of a bowl of watery soup, so they felt that they ought
not to work; but through the type of program we built up in our camps, they
came to a stage where they were ready to work; but we could not get them work
because of the German situation. Then, when the German rations were so
reduced that the Germans themselves could not work there went out a cry
from the military government for displaced persons labourers. Then we came up
against the problem of their working in the German economy because they
refused to work under the supervision of a German national. So, when we
got them work in the factories or on some project of some kind, which was
purely German, we had to put in as a supervisor over that group a straw-boss
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who was a Pole and who in turn took his orders from Germans and passed them
on. That solved that particular problem. At the present time practically every
employable male who can work is working in Germany, and that also includes
your doctors, your nurses and your welfare people. There are some people, if
you go through that document, whom you just could not place in a position of
any kind because of their particular training and skill; so they are working in
positions of responsibility in the camp, or they are working with the UNRRA
teams, or with the military government. For instance, I had a labour office in
Hanover where I had the resident engineer for the government of Latvia,
who was in charge of all repairs and construction of the displaced persons camp
in that area; and he had two of his chief assistants from Latvia as well who
were working with him. But what the displaced person feels is that, although he
may work and realize that work is good for him, he sees no future in it because
he is assisting in the rebuilding of Germany, by which he has suffered and for
him it has no security or future. Therefore, those who are working and con-
tinuing to work do it because they realize that there is a certain dignity that
comes to one who does work. Besides that at the present time, the rations have
been cut down to something like 1,500 calories a day. The German ration was
1,150 calories a day up to October, when it went up to 1,500; and while displaced
persons were getting around 1,800, they had to come down to the German 1,500,
so now there is no difference in the rations they are getting; they are the same
rations so far as caloric strength is concerned. Miss Moyle spoke in her letter
about the only difference in connection with the displaced persons was the fact
that they receive their rations regularly, because of the German production, the
first claim is food for displaced persons; but they are practically on the same
level in every other way; and in many instances they are underprivileged, and
are required to meet the regulations of the camps.

Whereas the German can get out and live in his own home or in rented
quarters, he has that freedom to build up and continue his family life; on the
other hand the displaced person cannot; and while the German person can
go out under the German economy and buy from the stores or whatever there is
in the line of foodstuffs, and in accordance with his ration card, on the other
hand a displaced person.cannot do so; he just receives his ration.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: This is all administered by the UNRRA organization?

Mr. MacKay: Yes, but assisted by the British Red Cross, the Guides and
Scouts, the Salvation Army, and the Quakers.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Why would there be that restriction on the displaced
persons? g

Mr. MacKay: Well, up to July, 1945, he could live outside the camp,
provided he could find accommodation in the German town, city or village, and
he could draw his ration from the nearest UNRRA camp. But in July, a
regulation came out from the military government that all displaced persons
must give up accommodation in town and move into the camp; that there must
be no more living in private; and the only people excluded from that were the
people working with UNRRA, the people working with ’ghe _m;hta;*y government,
and people working at some picce of work whereby their living in the camp or
going into the eamp would limit the contribution or effectiveness of the_]ob;
or the people who were able to get a medical certificate that they were not in fit
condition to live in the camps.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: What was the purpose of that ruling?

Mr. MacKay: To keep displaced persons in a group separate from the
Germany economy completely; and another was, I think to stop all black market
operations, where that was rife. The displaced persons would get a certain
amount of rations and he would exchange with a German for something which
he might have, such as fresh fruit or vegetables, something which he was not
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always getting himself. Now, if we had a camp here, and there was accommo-
dation for say, thirty people, and you have seventy-people working outside, or
living outside, you told those people and you gave them seven days within which
they must get into the camp; and if they refused to come into the camp
accommodations which were available, then they lost their displaced persons
status. And you may recall having seen an item in the newspapers about that
time which had to do with or affected five hundred Jews in the eity of Hanover,
who were under my supervision, because they refused to move into the camps,
and they lost their displaced persons status and so were considered as German
civilians.

The CuarmaN: And did they later sail for Palestine? Is that some of them?

Mr. MacKAy: Not that I know; I should not think so, in that group, but I
do not know; I would imagine perhaps some of them might be on their way.

-Hon. Mr. Bucaaxan: Have these people any resources of their own; should
we bring some of them to this country, would they have any resources, or would
they have to be a charge upon the government here? :

Mr. MacKay: They have no resources, because they have lost them. The
bulk of the people came with nothing except the clothes that they wore. The
Ukrainians and the others, when they worked for the Germans were paid with
German marks which have value only in Germany; they cannot be paid in any
other currency; they could not open up accounts and hold them in reserve in
Germany and then transfer them out of that country. They get paid in German
currency which is of no value to them; and they cannot spend it because there
is nothing to buy in GGermany. Therefore, they do not see why they should
work. But if there was some way by which we could credit them or give them
eredit in Canada or the United States, or even South Ameriea, or if they could
hold it as a reserve and bring it in to our country as a credit, it would be quite

different; but it is just a waste of money so far as they are concerned.

Hon. Mr. Hate: What do you think the solution of the whole problem should
be; and remember, you do not have to answer this question unless you want to?

Mr. MacKay: My solution of the whole problem—the only solution to the
problem, as T see it, is for the countries who can accept people, such as Canada,
to do so, because they are morally obligated to aceept them; and if we cannot
place them in Canada in jobs immediately, then I am quite convinced that the
Canadian people are big enough and great enough to assume that responsibility,
if the ease is put to them fairly and squarely.

Hon. Mr. Rousuck: What has been done up to date to shoulder our share of
the responsibility, or to signify our willingness to do so?

Mr. MacKay: As far as I know, there is little.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: And what is the alternative?

Mr. MacKay: Either leave them in Germany or send them back to their
countries by foree. .

Hon. Mr. Crerar: And if you should send them back to Yugoslavia or to the
Baltic countries at the present time, what happens to them?

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: You said this morning that they are prepared to
commit suicide.

Mr. MacKay:" That is right; they won’t go back.

Hon. Mr. Hata: If he had met the representatives of Yugoslavia at the

United Nations, he would-know what would happen; I met them and I have to

tell you that I wouldn’t like to meet them after dark.
" The CuAmMAN: Siberia and slave labour?
Mr. MacKay: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: What is your title, is it Major MacKay?
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Mr. MacKay: No, it is really Squadron Leader, but they call me Mister,
usually. :

Hon. Mr. Crerar: Well, I shall call you Mister. What, in your judgment,
would be the fate of these people, if they were to be sent back to Estonia and
Lithuania? They are anti-Communist and anti-Nazi? :

Mr. MacKay: Only one thing would happen to them, I think. If you
gentlemen have not already read it, you might read a recent article in “Time”
magazine which gives the story of some of the refugees, some of the people who
have escaped from those countries.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: I have read it.

Mr. MacKay: Well, that is the answer. I think we have to face the fact,
whether we can get proof or not, that Russia is a totalitarian country, where the
individual amounts to absolutely nothing except inasmuch as he is of value to
the State and as long as he falls in line with what the State wants him to do
These people are free thinkers. Their whole attitude towards life is one of
democracy, and they cannot possibly live under such a regime. That is why
they are in Germany and that is why they refuse to go back from Germany.

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: You do not mean to say they are free thinkers as we
use the term?

Mr. MacKay: No. They use their own minds. They are educated and
cultured people; they will think through a problem with all of its implications
and come to a decision of their own; they are not the type to whom you can say:
you sit on that pedestal and I will tell you what to do.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: They are not Atheists?

Mr. MacKay: No, not in that sense of the word; they are most devout, the
most religious people I have ever seen. I shall never forget the first service that
I was able to arrange for a group of Ukrainian people outside the city of
Brunswick, which was the first service they had been able to have for years
without interruption and without fear of persecution of any kind; and to see
them walk into that building which was set up as a chapel, that was something
I shall never forget, and their joy at being able to participate in their own form
of worship. I happened to see them some months later, and that was the only
thing they remembered about me, that I was the one who got them their priest
and gave them their chapel.
= Hon. Mr. Crerar: I understand there are 700,000 or 800,000 of those people
in the British zones.

Mr. MacKay: Yes. There will be that number after the repatriation of all
the Poles who can be repatriated, and that should be finished T think, about the
middle of the summer, in June or July. In October or November of last year,
over 60,000 were repatriated.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: They went back voluntarily to Poland?

Mr. MacKay: Voluntarily. You might be interested to know that large
numbers of military personnel from Poland were going back.

Hon. Mr. Turceox: Do you know how many Poles have been repatriated in

the last six months? e Bl 2
' Mr. MacKay: I have the figures for October, November and December;
about 70,000 people went back. : :

Hon. Mr. Turgron: In those three months.

Mr. MacKay: Yes, We initiated a programme in November whereby
Polish persons who were going back would get 60 days of rations; and they got
their rations at the Port of Gdynia. UNRRA set up warehouses, where each
person who was going back could get sixty days rations; and that happened to
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speed repatriation. But because of the severity of winter, that process was
stopped, and according to the letter which I read to you this morning, several
people got frozen to death en route because of the weather. I have that letter
with me now and I will read it to you again. This letter is from a New Zealand
lady who worked with me as a welfare officer and in whom I have the utmost
confidence as far as her judgment and wisdom are concerned. I received this
letter last week and it was written in the latter part of March. "She writes as
follows:—
...You will not be at all surprised to learn of course that things are worse
than when you withdrew. The D.P.’s sit on in their camps and we appear
to do so little for them. I think that most of us struggle along hoping
that occasionally we manage to get something over that helps someone,
but it is pretty deadly business. During the early months of winter, most,
of our D.P.’s were shunted unmercifully around the country under a plan
to hand back as much accommodation as possible to house refugees.
Necessary, but hardly humane, as some of them suffered five moves in
three months. Repatriation in this region topped the zone, and some
heavy wars went on to maintain a reasonable standard in repatriation
trains. Repatriation was finally stopped -until the weather improved,
just after Christmas, because several people were frozen to death both on
the boat from Lubeck and the trains from Hesslingen. As the Germans
take over more and more responsibility for their own economy, the effort
to maintain any of the D.P’s rights, if you can call them that, is inten-
sified, and life seems to be a constant inquiry as to why this or why that.
The D.P’s are on exactly the same rations as the Germans, except that
their issue of food is regular and that of the Germans is not, and very
shoxl'(tly they will be required to pay for their food and lodging and go to
work. . .

I explained that the reference to refugees was that the thousands of people
being sent into Germany, or coming into Germany and they are the respon-
sibility of the German Administration and Welfare Organization. They are
housed in German villages where that is possible, and by now there are so many
of them they just take over any accommodation whatsoever, so our displaced
persons were shunted back and forth into various camps, so that there would be
room for the refugees. Miss Moyle was writing from what we used to call
No. 1 Corps, the north line, Westphalia province. The Germans were assuming
the full responsibility for the railroads in Germany and even when I left there,
it was a struggle to keep up any kind of standards on these trains. Remember
that people would be on them for three or four days at a time and there was
not even straw to sit on.

“Hon. Mr. Crerar: How many of them are in the American zones?

Mr. MacKay: The figure for the British zone was roughly 400,000; but
there were not that many in the American zones. I think it was roughly around
300,000; and the French is less than the American.

Hon. Mr. CampeBeLL: Was the UNRRA organization looking after these
people, and have they formulated any plans for handling the matter beyond the
present, time? :

Mr. MacKay: No; I think they have worked in with the government who
are interested and so on, but they themselves have no such authority under the
charter.

The Cuamrman: When does their supervision end?

Mr. MacKay: They close at the end of June when the International Refugee
+ Organization, which is the organ of the United Nations, should take over; but
how far they have got on even with the organization of the IRO, I do not know.
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They have not begun to record personnel, according to the last that I heard, so,
they will fold up at the end of June; and my information from Germany is that
they just do not know what is happening.

Hon. Mr. McInTyre: Was it not extended from the 31st of March on down?

Mr. MacKay: TRO was supposed to be ready at the end of the year 1945,
?{ but it was not; and it has been extended to June. .
b Hon. Mr. CampBern: June. Unless some other organization takes over,

these people are left at the mercy of the Germans?
|- Mr. MacKay: Yes.

Hon. Mr. CampBeELL: What is the attitude of the Germans towards the
displaced persons?

Mr. MacKay: The general attitude is: they are foreigners, and when are
they going home. They feel no responsibility for them whatsoever, just as they
feel no responsibility towards their own refugees coming in.

4 Hon. Mr. Haig: What do they call them?

Mr. MacKay: Expellees, that is, people who have been expelled from
Poland, from Yugoslavia, and so on.

Hon. Mr. DatGLe: Are there any figures available as to how many displaced
persons have been accepted by other countries since the war has been over?

Mr. MacKay: Oh, I would say it was negligible; some of them; there are
no figures available, but I think that England has taken 2,000 or 3,000 Baltic
girls as domestics or as ward aids in sanitaria and so on; and I think that is
something which ought to make us hang our heads in shame to think that
England, with its terrific problem, has gone and taken these people, despite the
,, fact that she has millions of displaced persons who went to England and whom
b she accepted long before the war began. I remember standing on an important
13 - street corner in London and I was astounded at the number of persons who came
Ui through who were refugees in England, and who came to inquire about relatives
i and conditions on the continent, while we in Canada have taken practically
A none. We ought to be thoroughly ashamed of ourselves in this great dominion
; of ours. We like to call ourselves great, but we forget that with greatness goes
responsibility.

v Hon. Mr. BucHaNaN: This morning, I think, some mention was made of
the Mennonites, or displaced persons? :

Mr. MacKay: Yes, they would come under the Ukrainian group, or those
of undetermined nationalities.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanax: I asked a moment ago about the-movement out of
Europe to some other country and we mentioned Brazil. Have you heard of
a movement to Paraguay of displaced Mennonites?

Mr. MacKay: I think it was Senator Crerar who mentioned that to me
last time I was here.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanax: I am familiar with it. I know one of the Bishops
of the Mennonite church in my own district who accompanied that ship-load
of Mennonites down there. And the Mennonites in Canada and the United
States were quite prepared to take them in here and find homes for them, so
that they would not be a charge, but they were not allowed to come in here; so
they had to go to Paraguay; and I talked to one of the officials who told me
that he had no difficulty whatever in getting a boat, and that he could take
another boatload and bring them to Canada, if Canada would allow them to
come in. They are displaced persons. ‘

Mr. MacKay: Oh, yes; they would be of the Ukrainian group.

TR
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Hon. Mr. CampeeLL: Has anyone from UNRRA organization made any .

effort to persuade the governments to take these people in?

Mr. MacKay: All T can tell you is that while in Germany I was in a
position of responsibility at various levels, and we did our utmost to impress
on those who came to see us. We have a good many people who inspected
our camps, both belonging to UNRRA and official visitors. I do not know how
far it went with UNRRA, but I was astonished the last time that I addressed
the members to find that they did not even know about this document here,
and I think T am right in saying that the Minister, the Hon. Mr. Glen, did not
even know about it.

Hon. Mr. CampserL: That is my very point; te make this problem known to
Immigration officials abroad is nothing; it seems to me that has got to get to
the top government officials.

Mr. MacKay: I know that as far as the classification and the employment
index is concerned, that was ready and completed up to August, 1946.

Hon. Mr. CampseLL: Is that the only solution of this problem? If the
country is going to accept any of these people, could you not allot certain
numbers to the various countries who are seeking immigrants, and then let
them do the selecting? Canada would take 10,000 to 20,000 over a period.of
time and the other countries would take some as well.

Mr. MacKay: If we allotted displaced persons in Europe on a percentage
basis, on the basis of the contribution of the various paying nations to UNRRA,
our problem would be solved. Now, Canada pays, let us say, $5,000,000; and
another country would pay $1,000,000; so Canada would take five times as
many displaced persons as the one who pays but $1,000,000, and we could work
it out on a contributory basis.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Do you know how many that would involve for
Canada?

Mr. MacKay: Perhaps Senator Turgeon would know.

Hon. Mr. Turcron: It would go fairly high on that basis, particularly
unless the United States should set aside her quota of regulations and take
in her full number that would be given her, because the United States pays
away over half of the ordinary sum; so if the United States would act on that
basis and take her full percentage, those required to be taken by Canada
would not be overly great; but it would not be possible if the United States
would not accede.

Mr. MacKay: We have been payirg into UNRRA now for three or four
yvears and we shall continue to pay into the IRO, but that does not solve the
problem so far as displaced persons are concerned. The only solution is to
get them out of Germany.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: It is just operating a soup kitchen, I suppose.
Mr. MacKay: Quite.
~~ Hon. Mr. Burcam: It seems to me that it would take an interminable
time to get the other nations to agree with them, and we would all be dead

first. It seems to me that Canada should start out on her own and say: we
are prepared to take so many of these people.

Mr. MacKay: That was the root of the resolution that was passed and
endorsed by the Liberal Federation when it met here several months ago. I
remember that I was with Mr. Walter Tucker at the time the resolution was
drawn up and endorsed.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: What were the terms and the prineiples?

Mr. MacKay: We did not get down to principles at all.
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Hon. Mr. Turceon: You think there are about 700,000 to 800,0007

Mr. MacKay: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Turcron: In the European area?

Mr. MacKay: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Turceon: And if you gave the United States sixty per cent, even
that would leave the Canadian government about ten per cent, would it not; and
it could be worked out very easily on that basis?

Mr. MacKay: Yes.

Hon. Mr. BucHANAN: You mean, ten per cent of the whole, or ten per cent
of the balance?

Hon. Mr. Turgeon: Of the total.

Mr. MacKay: If we went to Germany and took our quota of skilled
farmers and placed them on some of the vacant farms in the Maritime prov-
inces, it would solve the problem. As you drive through the Maritimes, you see
thousands of farms that are vacant, and although the houses on them are not
in good condition, they are much better houses than these people are living in,
and I think you would see a big difference in a short time.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: How long were you over there?

Mr. MacKay: Over eighteen months.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: And «you had an opportunity to chserve them and
you think they would make good citizens, Mr. MacKay? :

Mr. MacKay: I am quite safe in saying that they would. I do not mean
that every displaced person is a paragon of virtue; you cannot go into Poland,
among several million people, and get all the saints, and neither would you in
Canada.

Hon. Mr. Haic: Were you born in Canada?

Mr. MacKay: Oh, yes. -

Hon. Mr. Harg: Whereabouts in Canada?

Mr., MacKay: In the Maritimes.

Hon. Mr. Hata: Where did you receive your education?

Mr. MacKay: In the Maritimes.

Hon. Mr. Harg: And where did you graduate from?

Mr. MacKay: I graduated from Mount Allison University in Sackville,
New Brunswick and from Pine Hill Theological school of Dalhousie University
in Halifax, Nova Scotia.

Hon. Mr. Hate: And you joined the forces as a chaplain in the Air service?

Mr. MacKay: Yes, sir; I was a navigator in the Canadian Air Force until
they transferred me over to the ehaplains’ branch in 1941; and in May, 1945, the
Air Force released me in order to work with UNRRA as a Welfare Officer; and
I returned to this country at the first of the year because of ill health.

Hon. Mr. Harg: 1 think we should thank this gentleman for the wonderful
presentation he has made to us to-day. :

Mr. MacKay: I have done a lot of speaking on this subject before large
and small groups and I found the people in Canada to be totally ignorant of
the problem and the type of people that we have been dealing with in Germany.

Hon. Mr. CameserL: Have you spoken to anybody of the Cabinet?

Mr., MacKay: I spoke to about 25 or 30 members of the-Senate and House
of Commons on one occasion here, and I have talked with various members of
the government. | '

Hon. Mr. Tureron: Have you been in British Columbia or Alberta?
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Mr. MacKay: Not recently.

Hon. Mr. Bucuaxan: You say that the Dominion Government contributes
to UNRRA? '

Mr. MacKay: Oh, yes.

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: Who is the link for the Dominion Government in
the UNRRA organization? Is there not some official representative who would
be top man in the UNRRA organizatign on behalf of Canada?

Mr. MacKay: I do not know the liaison officer. I do know that a lot of
their work is being done between UNRRA, that is, the headquarters ?n
Washington; it is being done through the Embassy, the Canadian Embassy in
Washington. ;

Hon. Mr. Bucuanan: I think you indicated that the report which you
have, so far as you know, has not passed into the possession of the govern-
ment. Is there any official representative of the government, who is supposed
to get the report of Canada’s part, or who can make recommendations?

Mr. MacKay: T do not think there is any, to the best of my knowledge. I
know that I went to Canada House, before I came home, and I found that they
were totally disinterested. They said it was not part of their responsibility.

Hon. Mr. BucuAnaN: But we are contributing money to the organization
s0 we must have a representative on the organization, and that representative or
representatives should be making reports to the Canadian government on the
expenditure of the money, or as to what they think should be done.

Mr. MacKay: I do not think there is any set-up like that at all.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Mr. Colley is here with us and he is an official
representative.

Hon. Mr. CampeeLL: I have been very much impressed with the presentation
made, and I know how these things go; a report is made to a body like this,
and then it takes so long for the machinery to move that it seems to me, that
in view of the emergency here, where this UNRRA organization is going to come
to an end this year, in June, that Mr. MacKay should have an opportunity of
presenting his case some place where it might receive a little better consideration
and be dealt with more quickly than would be done through making a formal
report; so it has occurred to me, that this committee should suggest to the Prime
Minister that he, along with the leaders of the other two parties, such as
Mr. Bracken and Mr. Coldwell, might be prepared to hear Mr. MacKay for a
few hours and discuss these problems with him, and at least get the information
and know the situation. I feel perfectly certain that they do not know. It seems
to me that this thing has to be dealt with at the very top level. ’

The Cuamrman: My understanding is-that might embarrass your commit-
ments; would you care to set any date on which to meet the Cabinet?

Hon. Mr. Hate: I would support the Hon. Mr. Campbell’s recommendation,
that we, as a committee, recommend to the Prime Minister and the leader of the
Opposition and the leaders of the other groups, that they invite Mr. MacKay
to give them the facts about this situation and let them ask him all the
questions they like; so, while it is nothing official, they will have the facts
direct, while we have them to-day. I know the three or four gentlemen,
personally, well; we all do, and we ought to decide. At the present time we
are not coming to any decision at all; we are just making reports that are not
always even read.

. The Cmamman: Would you be able to carry out an arrangement of that
kind, if it were made, Mr. MacKay?

Mr. MacKay: I would do the best I could; you know, I am working for a
living now. If you would give me a day, I would make every arrangement I
could to come when they want me to.

2]
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Hon. Mr. BurcHiLL: Should we not, as a committee, get back of Mr.
MacKay and help him out? We are putting the whole load on him to go to
these men. I think we should appoint a select committee from this group, just
two or three, to contact these men, first the Prime Minister and the other
leaders, so that the way can be smoothed out for Mr. MacKay to meet them
later on. I do not think just a formal recommendation from this committee
will do the trick. I think we should make it our business to see that they
know, and to arrange the best way for it.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Yes, and to pay the expenses. This man has his rail-
way fare and that sort of thing.

Hon. Mr. Haig: Where do you live?
Mr. MacKay: Toronto.
Hon. Mr. Hate: Are you working there?

Mr. MacKay: Yes, but I am not worried about the expenses, as long as
we can do something. ,

Hon. Mr. CampBern: I move that there be a committee of three, the
Chairman, Senator Roebuck, and Senator Haig.

Hon. Mr. Haie: No, I do not want to act on it.

The CuarmAN: Surely, if you want to. Shall I record that as a motion?
A motion has been made that Senator Reebuck, Senator Haig and the Chairman
be instructed to get in touch with the Prime Minister and the leaders of the
several other parties, just the four leaders; I take it that you do not want
the Minister of Immigration?

Hon. Mr. Har: I do not want anybody else there.

The CuatrmaN: All right, the motion is that the three senators specified get
in touch with the four leaders in the other place and undertake to arrange with
them to meet and to hear Mr. MacKay in respect to the statements he has
made to us to-day. All those in favour say Aye? I declare the motion to be
carried.

Hon. Mr. Haic: I would take on the responsibility of seeing Mr. Bracken,
Mr. Coldwell, and Mr. Low, while you others might take on the responsibility
of seeing the Prime Minister.

The CuamMaN: Mr. James Colley, who is the Canadian Resident Repre-
sentative of the Intergovernmental Committee on Refugees, spoke to us this
morning for a little while and now he would like to speak to us again briefly,
80 I shall now call upon Mr. Colley.

Mr. MacKay retired as witness and Mr. James Colley again took the
stand.

The CuamrmaN: Mr. Colley has a short brief to read to us. This is in
addition to what he said to us this morning.

Mr. Correy: Yes, and it further explains the position which I am in. The
previous speaker has indicated that nothing is being done. An organization is
to be formed. UNRRA was never in a position to handle immigration and
resettlement. Their constitution does not cover that. That will be covered by
the IRO; and pending the formation of the IRO, the Intergovernmental Com-
mittee is doing that work as far as Canada is concerned. We are bringing over,
as fast as we can get the ships, the persons who have been named by the
relatives in this country. But it is difficult to get shipping space; however, as
fast as we can get it, we are getting it and bringing over relatives. We have been
handicapped with regard to getting space, in chartered space, because we have
no authority from the Immigration Department to bring them in under a
so-called bulk movement, by which we could go and recruit and gather up the
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people and bring them in together. So, there has not been as large a movement
as there would otherwise have been. There is an organization working as hard as
they can on this problem of getting these displaced persons.

The CrARMAN: But nothing has been done.

Mr. Correy: How do you mean, nothing has been done?

The CuarMan: Have there been any of these people brought in?

Mr. Courwy: We have brought over the first group, yes.

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: Yes, fifty.

Mr. Correy: Yes, that was all the space that could be got on that steamer.

Hon. Mr. Campeenn: Well, if we were capable of moving back hundreds
of thousands of troops within a few months from the end of the war, I should
think that we should be able to find shipping space now, if an effort was made.

Mr. Correy: Shipping is mostly under the control of the various govern-
ments; the British Ministry of Shipping, the Dutch Ministry of Shipping, and
others. Certain of the ships are still moving troops all over the world; and the
only ships that we may be able to get are the so-called Liberty ships; efforts
are being made ready to get some of them, but they are not, probably, in a fit
condition to bring immigrants over in.

Hon. Mr. Bucuanax: Under the present Canadian immigration regulations,
is 1t possible to bring in a bulk shipment of immigrants?

Mr. Correy: Yes.

Hon. Mr. BucaaxaN: You can only get them in under application made by
relatives and so forth?

Mr. Correy: No, the latest order in council says that people who are
assured of employment are admissible; but they have not yet decided to let us
bring those people in under bulk movement; so that is where the stickler is.

Hon. Mr. Crerar: There is a point here that I would like to get clear.
I know that within the past year, probably within the last eight months, that
an effort was made to bring Mennonites and displaced persons to this country,
yet they could not get the arrangements made and, as a result, the Mennonite
community in Canada and the United States got a ship and chartered it and
took 2,300 of those Mennonites to Paraguay.

hMr. Correy: That is true, and the Mennonites are still trying to charter
a ship. ‘

%‘Ion. Mr. Crerar: Why could not something of that kind be done in this
~case

Mr, Correy: We are trying to do that.

Hon. Mr. Bucaanan: Does the government stand in the way; is it not the
government regulations that stand in the way?

Mr. Courey: Yes, it is the government regulations that prevent a large
number of people being brought over. The only people we can bring over are the
people who are related, who are nominated by people over here.

_ Hon. Mr. Crerar: I think you are doing quite a praiseworthy work, but I
think the impression of the committee is that it is altogether too narrow; and
what we are interested in is in enlarging‘that basis treatise; and if you would
‘say to-morrow, or if the Canadian government would say to-morrow: we will
take to Canada the Mennonites who are among the displaced persons, say in

the British zone in Germany, the Mennonites would find a way to get them

here and you would not be bqthered with it.
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The CHAlRMAN: Here is the most recent regulation. It is P.C. 871, Privy
Council, Canada, at the Government, House at Ottawa, Thursday, the 30th day
of January, 1947; and it says:

(¢) A farm labourer entering Canada to engage in assured farm employ-
ment.

(d) A person experienced in mining, lumbering or logging entering Canada
to engage in assured employment in any one of such industries.

And we all know how hard it is to comply with those regulations.

Mr. CoLrey: I am not here to try to defend the immigration problem.
I am in a very awkward position. Possibly if I should read what I have here,

* it will give you an idea as to what my position is, and tell you what the Inter-

governmental Committee is.

Honourable Senators—The members of the Intergovernmental Committee
on Refugees are Governments which. have accepted membership thereof for’the
purpose of participating in the humanitarian work for which the Committee
has been created, and as such, it is an international body. I am the Resident
Representative in Canada of that Committee.

I am an exclusively international official. On taking over my duties I had
to make the following declaration:

“I solemnly undertake to exercise in all loyalty, diseretion and conscience
the functions entrusted to me as an employee of the Committee, to discharge
the functions entrusted to me -and regulate my conduct with its interests alone
in view, and not to seek or receive from any government or other authority
external to the Committee any instructions in the performance of my official
duties.”

The reason for the appointment of a Resident Representative in Canada is
the situation in Europe brought about by the so called displaced persons in
Germany. Something had to be attempted to solve this problem pending the
establishment of the International Refugee Organization as a specialized ageney
of the United Nations for the purpose. So far as the situation in Germany,
Austria and Italy is concerned, it may be briefly explained that hitherto the
main emphasis has been on repatriation and this is still regarded as an extremely
important objective. To an increasing extent during the last year or more,
however, it has become obvious that the original impetus towards repatriation
has diminished, and that while to a reduced extent repatriation may continue,
there is now apparent a hard eore of persons who, for one reason or another, are
at present firmly determined not to return to their countries of nationality.
The existence of this hard core has for some time been, and still is, a cause of
grave anxiety to the Military Governments and to UNRRA, both because of the
political, economic and administrative difficulties that result therefrom, and also
because of the steady deterioration that is taking place among the displaced
persons themselves. The conviction has therefore grown that at least initial
steps sheuld be taken towards a solution of the problem of non-repatriables.
This conviction was strengthened by the course of discussions last year in
connection with the establishment of the International Refugee Organization.

" While emphasis has rightly been placed on voluntary repatriation as the most

satisfactory remedy of all, it has been recognized that this should be accompanied
by other measures relating to those who are unable or unwilling to return.
Although pending the establishment of the International Refugee Organization,
there was opposition from some Governments to interim measures other than
repatriation being undertaken, there was, on the other hand, strong opinion
among many Governments that further delay would be harmful. A relevant
consideration and an important one, wags that apart from the actual achievements
during the interim period, a great deal of preliminary and preparatory work
might be done which would be of great use to the new Organization.
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It was in support of such interim measures that the Governments of the
United Kingdom and the United States of America put forward proposals relating
to the extension of current activities of the Intergovernmental Committee on
Refugees. The effects of those proposals, as sanctioned by the Executive
Committee at its meeting held on 16th July, 1946, are as follows:

(1) Current programs of relief in various countries relating to the classes

a, b and ¢ in the notes I read this morning remain unchanged. They
will continue as before.

(2) The activities of the Committee are now extended to other classes which
are within the mandate, and in particular to those displaced persons and
refugees who are unwilling or unable to return to their countries of
nationality or former habitual residence.

(3) Inregard to such persons, however, the Committee has agreed to observe
the principles contained in Annex 1 (Definitions) to the Draft
Constitution for the International Refugee Organization, as approved
by the Social and Economic Council. The preamble to the Constitution
of the International Refugee Organization reads as follows:

The Governments accepting this Constitution,

REcoeNI1ZING:

that genuine refugees and displaced persons constitute an urgent
problem which is international in scope and character;

that as regards displaced persons, the main task to be performed
is to encourage and assist in every way possible their early return to
their country of origin;

that genuine refugees and displaced persons should be assisted by
international action, either to return to their countries of nationality or
former habitual residence, or to find new homes elsewhere, under the
conditions provided for in this Constitution; or in the case of Spanish
Republicans, to establish themselves temporarily in order to enable
them to return to Spain when the present Falangist regime is succeeded
by a democratic regime;

that resettlement and re-establishment of refugees and displaced
persons be contemplated only in cases indicated clearly in the
Constitution;

that genuine refugees and displaced persons, until such time as
their repatriation or resettlement and re-establishment is effectively
completed, should be protected in their rights and legitimate interests,
should receive care and assistance and, as far as possible, should be
put to useful employment in order to avoid the evil and anti-social
consequences of continued idleness;

that the expenses of repatriation to the extent practicable should

be charged to Germany and Japan for persons displaced by those
Powers from countries occupied by them:

Have AGREED:

for the accomplishment of the foregoing purposes in the shortest
possible time, to establish and do hereby establish a non-permanent
organization to be called the International Refugee Organization.

__Then follow several articles which the member governments have accepted,
including a mandate, functions and powers, relationship to the United Nations,
membership and so on, and also Annex 1, to which I have referred and which is
governing the present operations of the Intergovernmental Committee on
Refugees. -

Among the functions of the TRO which the IGCR is doing preliminary
work are facilitating the emigration to, resettlement and re-establishment in
other countries of individuals and family units; and as may be necessary and
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practicable, within available resources and subject to relevant financial regu-
lations the investigation, promotion or execution of projects of group resettlement
or large-scale settlement.

The Intergovernmental Committee on Refugees has, at present, a large, able
and efficient staff engaged in seeking opportunities for the resettlement in, and
the migration to, other lands of as many as possible of the displaeed persons who
do not desire to return to their homelands. Most of these people are living in
camps, barracks and other concentrations which are scattered throughout Ger-
many, Austria and Italy.

Since my appointment it has been my endeavour to “sell” so to speak, these
displaced persons to Canada; and within the present immigration regulations and
considering the shortage of shipping, we have not done so badly so far, though
what we have accomplished is as just a drop in the ocean, compared with the
needs of each party. I mentioned this morning the possibilities of settlement
arising from the placing of families in the sugar beet growing areas for work
in the sugar beet fields. I consider this comes under the category of a large
scale settlement project. Immediate settlement on land of people coming directly
from Europe is a costly proposition which I do not think any organization would
be warranted in undertaking nowadays. But by being enabled to take work in
the beet fields, families could earn sufficient money to capitalize their start;
at the same time, they could be getting acquainted, with the customs and habits
of the country, and with the language.

In about two years time, Canada will need settlers to occupy the 300,000
acres of land now being brought under irrigation in South Alberta. The time to
get them is now. Efforts to bring in settlers with capital in sufficient numbers for
the large irrigable areas have failed and will continue to fail. The development of
irrigated areas in Alberta and Saskatchewan only began when a sugar factory
was established at Raymond, Alberta, in 1925, and when European families were
introduced to do the work in the beet fields. As a result, this part of Canada
remained comparatively prosperous throughout the depression of the early 1930’s.
The full development of these areas, for which the right kind of people can be
obtained from among the displaced persons, would do more to put Canada on a
solid footing and connect east and west securely than any other undertaking in
Canada. The areas are capable easily of supporting two million people in diver-
sified farming and related industries and the benefit of a settlement of this kind
would be felt in all the surrounding country. ;

There are many other projects for which the displaced persons are fitted:
logging, mining, farm workers, female household and hospital workers, to mention
only a few. :

In conclusion, I should like to say a few words about the operations of the
IGCR in Europe. We locate and assemble the people for immigration inspec-
tion. Each prospective immigrant is given an X-ray and Wassermann test and
his record is carefully examined beforehand. After the immigrants have passed
the medical and immigration examinations and visas are granted, transportation
is arranged for them and they are brought to Canada under the conductorship
of an officer of the Committee.

Respectfully submitted.
OrTawa, 24th April, 1947.

I have dealt with the practical issue of trying to get these people over here

and to get them settled when they are here. I believe the displaced person is a

problem in itself and should be considered as separate from the immigration

problem; but nobody has told the Immigration Department to treat it as a

separate problem; but if it could be treated as a separate problem, as it should be,
88049—4
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upon humanitarian grounds, and there are good practical reasons, economic and
beneficial to Canada, as a whole, I think we would go a long way towards
accomplishing something.

Hon. Mr. CampeLL: And until that is done, there is really, I take it, no
other way.

Mr. Correy: I am under the impression, but it may come too late, that they
have under consideration the movement of a number of people in bulk. ~

The CuarMAN: Here are a lot of figures that Mr. MacKay presented to us,
and I noted on it; make an intelligent condensation of this document to be
included in the record, if that can be done. Is that agreeable to you?

Hon. Mr. CampBeLL: I think it should be printed as an appendix to this
report.

The CuamrMman: Well, we are very much obliged to you, Mr. Colley, for
coming around and giving us this additional information this afternoon. Now,
I presume we will be doing what?

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: We will meet again next Wednesday at 10.30 a.m.

The CrAlRMAN: Very well then, the Committee now stands adjourned until
next Wednesday, April 30, at 10.30 a.m.

The Committee adjourned at 5.35 p.m. to meet again on Wednesday,
April 30, at 10.30 a.m.
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APPENDIX “A”
TABLE “A” (Part 1)
Occurationar CrassiFicaTioNn oF D.P. Skuns*
A B C D E
Administrative— Mining— Construction and Agriculture— Forestry Health and
Clerical and Commercial Chemicals and Processing Maintenance Dairy and Food Processing Sanitation
1. Accountant: auditor, book- | 1. Ceramic Worker. 1. Architect. 1. Farmer: dairyman, pro- | 1. Dentist: technician, me-
keeper. 2. Glass Worker: blower. 2. Bricklayer. duce, egg, chicken, animal. chanie.
2. Businessman: manager, 3. Miner: hand, power. 3. Carpenter. 2. Lumberman. 2. Dietician.
executive. 4. Petroleum Worker. 4. Construction Machine Op-| 3. Hunter: trapper, fisher-| 3. Hospital Attendant: ward
3. Clerk: general, file postal. 5. Steel Puddler: furnace man. erator. man. boy.
4, Salesman: person, clerk. 6. Quarryman: stone cutter. 5. Ceentral Heat Maintenance | 4. Miller: grain. 4. Midwife.
5. Office Machine Operator. man; installer, repair man. 5. Nurse: registered: practical
6. Office Manager. 6. Dredgeman. training.
7. Stenographer. 7. Draftsman, 6. Optometrist.
8. Translator: interpreter. 8. Electrician. £ 7. Ophthalmologist.
9. Typist. 9. Engineman: operating. 8. Pediatrician.
10. Glazier. 9. Physical Therapist.
11. Mason. 10. Physician: surgeon.
12. Powderman; blaster. . 11. Pharmacist.
13. Painter: interior, exterior, 12. Sanitary Engineer: tech-
sign, spray. nician.
14. Plumber: steamfitter. 13. Veterinarian.
15. Rigger. 14. X-Ray Technician.
16. Riveter.
17. Saw Mill Operator.
18. Steelworker.
19, Surveyor.

*Nore.—Labourer, apprentice, helper will be coded with the applicable group from above.
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OccuraTioNaL CrassiFicatioN o D.P. SkmuLs*

APPENDIX “A”—(Con.

TABLE ““A” (Part II)

F G H J K
Communications, Professional and Arts
Transportation Special Services (Other than Health Metal Trades Miscellaneous Processing
and Supply and Sanitation)
1. Airplane Mechanie. 1. Baker. 1. Agronomist. 1. Electroplater. 1. Clothing Worker, machine.
2. Airplane Pilot. 2. Barber: friseur, hairdresser.| 2. Artist: sculptor. 2. Foundryman. 2. Cooper.
3. Auto and Truck Mechanic. 3. Blacksmith. 3. Athletic Instructor. 3. Forgeman. 3. Leather Worker.
4. Auto and Truck Body Repair-| 4. Bookbinder. 4. Clergyman, 4. Heat Treater. 4. Paper Worker.
man. 5. Butcher. 5. Chemist. 5. Machine Operator. 5. Rubber Worker.
5. Driver: light, heavy truck. 6. Cook. 6. Child Care Worker. 6. Machinist. 6. Steel Puddler or Furnaceman
6. Crater or Packer. 7. Firefighter. 7. Engineer: Civil, 7. Metalsmith. 7. Textile Worker.
7. Installer, repairman: tele-| 8. Gardener. 8. Engineer: Electrical. 8. Millwright. 8. Woodworker.
phone, telegraph. 9. Housekeeper, domestic. 9. Engineer: Industrial. 9. Welder: spot, finish, gas,
8. Lineman. 10. Jeweller. 10. Engineer: Mechanical. electric.
9. Radio Operator. 11. Kitchen Worker. 11. Engineer: Mining, etc. 10. Toolmaker.
10. Radio Repairman. 12. Laundryman: machine, 12. Entertainer: actor, singer,
11. Railway Worker: locomotive hand. dancer.
engineer, locomotive mech-| 13. Linotype Operator. 13. Lawyer.
anic, switchman, brakeman,| 14. Locksmith. 14. Librarian.
conductor. 15. Optician. 15. Musician.
12. Seaman. 16. Photographer. 16. Recreation Leader.
13. Teamster. 17. Piano Tuner. 17. Social Worker.
14. Telegraph Operator. 18. Policeman or Guard. 18. Teacher, Professor, aca-
15. Telephone Operator. 19. Pressman. demie.
16. Teletype Operator, Repair-| 20. Printer. 19. Teacher: arts and crafts.
man. 21. Projectionist. 20. Teacher, professor, tech-
17. Tire Rebuilder. 22. Shoemaker: repairman, nical.
18. Warehouseman. saddler, harness maker. 21. Occupational Interviewer:
23. Tailor or Seamstress. counsellor,
24. Undertaker. 22. Writer: reporter, author,
25. Upholsterer. advertising man.
26. Waiter. >
27. Watch Repairman.
* Nore.—Labourer, apprentice, helper will be coded with the applicable group above.
&
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APPENDIX “A”—Con.
D.P. LABOUR REPORT (HANNOVER REGION)
Skills by Poles Latvians Lithuanians Estonians Yugo-Slavs Jews Ukrainians Others Total
occupat.
serial
code M. F M. F M. F. M. F. M. F. M. F. M. F M. F.
V: P s LN 80 46 215 121 123 21 50 54 347
b AR 104 33 260 64 115 14 90 25 149
AS ievais 55 894
y I e 493
Bob e IR B0 ST s g e AR B R 82
AL B n oule L 8 s JORI O TR R hant LT SRR 67
W PR MR ) S T R Wl 17 T SR S i 1 IR o 62
IRR ok ne 71
. | R Tl IRASE) | Dl Bapee 1 (4 RS Wyl Vo S (o (SRS 1] e e S EE E 212
y. 1 PO 232
B. 8
B. 15
B. 2
B. 2
B. 16
B. 3
B. 19
1% S AR M (ol PP~ R0 1 ol IR T el B S LR S e Y P ) (S [ |ATOVE e (e iy N o SRR R 1) % A I ) R [N ) §3 (K maet
[ B0 TR W v e R Rl o (Sl S e AT MO TR [ Ly TN gl U PN S e B R e e e 1 T s o 0y v f RN s o8 i e
CioBiri il BB e ivan of 5 30 Lis san v ol oot aadl a8 bl s i
o0 et TR S |l i T ERTRET o] SR i ST TR RSl 1 [ G 4
RIS e T Sl TR MR L AR US4 TR e T R | ] 4
O AT O T P e AR S CO0 T R SRS R 5 LRIt e B B IS e o e Y L el U s RGN RSt R i A e g PR TR PR
C. 30
[ 0 ATy (D 7 PR 40 SRRy | (TR (BN Rl el o A SR | LSS B ) [ e 10
oM Ry [ SSRGS 6 e R TR ] (G el IRt I e 9 [ el L AR ) e e Bl R M e LAt RN BN e
CE ST LR i e T e T O S AR S S ey g 2
Bl s IR PR ) R - e BT, el (TR § ] HIENEEA ol kT B et TR 3
O IR e S R B T U, Frn e R e i e S i e e 1
BT A R e s Tl I e R () ORI el IRl [ 1 B Rl PR o I e, 4
LMy oo o @R i AT R S G o e e N R |90 RAMNE e sty 1
o % b I e T T PO L e D IR I e ST R g |0 VIR S o A o L e IRl 8 o I il i IR ] Do A o O e ! T
7t | Dot Rt o 2 Sty cle B Sl S R o PR ] SRt o T A S B X BB B et O A ST N eGSR TEN Do iyl (LA B RN T B s
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APPENDIX “A”—Con.
D.P. LABOUR REPORT (HANNOVER REGION)—Continued

Latvians Lithuanians Estonians Yugo-Slavs Jews
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APPENDIX “A*—C(Con.
D.P. LABOUR REPORT (HANNOVER REGION) —Continued
Skills liy Poles Latvians Lithuanians Estonians Yugo-Slavs Jews Ukrainians Others Total
occupat.
seria!
code . M. F. M. F. M. F. M. F. M. F. M. F. M. " M, F. M. F.

B0 5 2 21 8 2 3 C S SIS EIRE NSRRI S AR T 2 1 5] S et o 2 2 44 17
Hudle s, 3 1 i il S SN o Ml ARG D e B I e Y N PSR R ok i o A 9 1
. vl RN 3 3 20 4 8 2 10 2 B R 7. i MRS T g AT 8 1 70 12
I s A e 112 79 214 140 83 23 81 37 23 4 4 2 34 15 37 9 [. 588 309
deis s arve 8 2 1 : ) om CUNB Ry ) SRt | | R ARR € 1 8 e S 0 SRR S ORI N 17 e i 10 3
M o T 53 4 A T S b S s 1 g I ] B e & Tl 3 68 4
P I L T A {0 R W Easet. j I DR ;i (AT O BASe st 30 et
Pl ortc, s DY R ST iR A = BT S i T R SR IR RO () PRl I ik e W S TR 1 &b | .
0 e 124 31 57 1 L ol TR P N R 32 B e Tt et 76 320 35
A I 123 80 41 1 j {1 ] RO VIS L e 1 R e 41 296 83
Y - P i 78 WY e 73] 1 e AR 2 1 e 4 DAY b SR 65 187 7
Pl Born 4| <IN ] e o MR Iy ) [ FPITATT) (SR S EIPRWE o S ARt N e i o T 12 1 7R RS ERE
B e 117 12 18 1 . S | EISe, N AR BN, O < ) e 3 2 38 199 16
F1 RS () o 30 3 R N T e Il o s F S T O e N IEPROCCET | ST 10 64 4
(I F RIS 106 46 39 2 i 4] e B St 7 1 4 20 43 228 83
K. 17 15 ) 1 T e e 2 'l T TN S 5 1 3 66 62 4+ 94 101
K. 11 2 {15 P T s T adR . P oo R ] B mepvergS kPR ol . 5 25 2
K. 34 10 7 1 5 2 1 o | U s e 41 6 10 100 21
K. 15 13 1 2 Al e add A Dl R 1 4 2 13 39 20
K. 20 18 iz M 6 2 ) ) | AT 1 I e R S ) RN T 3 32 22
K. 52 8 1 1 5 NERICIE EEIE e PRSI e S RS e L i 6 60 10
K. 191 200 24 27 22 27 5 24 21 9 107 69 24 396 376
K. 443 21 {1 RS 7 by RS e 1045 25 1 49 5 207 918 28
K. 765 886 28 42 43 14 9 10 2 1 9 29 81 958 1,025
Without

Code.... 27 60 157 71 67 45 108 i L L e R 1,369 | 2,050 28 14 1 11,757 | 2,296

30th September, 1946.
400 UNRRA Zone H.Q.,
B.A.O.R.
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR

The Honourable JAMEs Murpock, P.C., Chairman

The Honourable Senators

Aseltine - Donnelly 1 McGeer
Blais Dupuis Molloy
Bouchard Euler Murdock
Bourque Ferland Pirie
Buchanan Haig Robertson
Burchill Hardy Robinson
Calder Horner Roebuck
Campbell Hushion Taylor
Crerar Lesage Vaillancourt
; Daigle Macdonald (Cardigan) Veniot
David MecDonald (Shediac) Wilson

ORDER OF REFERENCE

ExtracT from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, March
13, 1947. '

“That the Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour be authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act (R.S.C. Chapter 93 and
Amendments) its operation and administration and the circumstances and
conditions relating thereto including (a) the desirability of admitting immigrants
to Canada, (b) the type of immigrants which should be preferred, including
origin, training and other characteristics, (c) the availability of such immigrants
for admission, (d) the facilities, resources and capacity of Canada to absorb,
employ and maintain such immigrants, and (e) the appropriate terms and con-
ditions of such admission;

And that the said Committee report its findings to this house;

And that the said Committee have power to send for persens, papers and
records.” :
L. C. MOYER,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Wednesday, 30th April, 1947.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Immigra-
tion and Labour met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Murdock, Chairman; Burchill, Mac-
donald (Cardigan), Molloy, Robinson, Roebuck, Taylor and Wilson—S8.

The Committee resumed consideration of the Order of Reference of the
13th March, 1947, directing the Committee to examine into the operation and
administration of the Immigration Act, ete.

The official reporters of the Senate were in attendance.

The Chairman filed a list of immigrants admitted to Canada during the
year 1946, by nationalities, received from Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Director of Immi-
gration, Department of Mines and Resources.

The Honourable Senator Roebuck filed a brief by Mr. T. J. Keenan,
Meadowbank Ranch, Lac La Hache, British Columbia, on Displaced Persons in
Europe, which was ordered to be printed in the record of this day. (See
Appendix “A”.)

Mr. R. N. Bryson, Toronto, Ontario, President of the Community Welfare

Association of Ontario, was heard, and read a brief on Latvian Immigration,
and was questioned by Members of the Committee.

Mr. Elmar V. Spielberg, Toronto, Ontario, Secretary, Latvian Relief Fund
of Canada and Chairman, Federation of Baltic Canadians, was heard with
respect, to Baltic peoples.

The Honourable Senator Wilson read copy of a letter directed to the Right
Honourable W. L. Mackenzie King, Prime Minister, by Executive Secretary,
Canadian Association of Social Workers, with respect to Displaced Persons of
Europe.

At 11.30 a.m., the Committee adjourned until tomorrow, Thursday, 1st
May, 1947, at 10.30 a.m.

Attest.

H. ARMSTRONG,
Clerk of the Committee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE
WeDNESDAY, April 30, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour, which was authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act, met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Hon. Mr. Murnock in the Chair.

The CrAamrMAN: Honourable members, it will be recalled that a week ago
today we had before us Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Director of the Immigration Branch,
and that we asked him to furnish certain information. He has written me as
follows: |

DEPARTMENT OF MINES AND RESOURCES
InmMIGrRATION BRANCH
OrTAawa, 24th April, 1947.

Dear SenaTOR Murpock,—When giving evidence yesterday before
your Committee on Immigration and Labour, I was asked to furnish some
Immigration figures for the calendar year 1946. I now enclose in dupli-
cate two statements, one covering total immigration to Canada by
nationalities and the other covering immigration to Canada, classified
according to country of last permanent residence.

You ‘also requested particulars of dependents of members of the Cana-
dian Armed Forces admitted to Canada during the calendar year 1946.
A statement covering this movement is also transmitted with this letter.

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) A. L. JOLLIFFE,
Darector.

Honourable James Murpbock, P.C.,
Chairman of the Standing Committee on
Immigration and Labour,

The Senate,

Ottawa.

TOTAL IMMIGRATION TO CANADA, BY NATIONALITIES, FOR THE CALENDAR
YEAR 1946.

Bulgarinn o suiassics s
Central American ..
Czecho-Slovakian ...
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TOTAL IMMIGRATION TO CANADA, BY NATIONALITIES, FOR THE CALENDAR
YEAR 1946—Con.

Hungarian 61
I T g NSRRI S L B O M P P e I RRNE Y S L SR8 35
Jugo-Slavian SR 22
B b i I s 2 2
Lithuanian: 2
Luxemburg 2
(5 0 i PRI G I SIS B ot it VR Uy R RSN AR 6
Norwegian 183
2, 1 AR 0 R AT i Lo PN P AT S e 3R SO 627
Portuguese 4
Roumanian 28
RARBIAN: S8 i s 23
SOUEh AT IORTL i i e e i b, 6 o SE S i G P o 30 o AT ST o 16
(LT N R PR R R R g TR RS o ) T st P e e 6
Swertigh 2Ry s A DI AR cf T S E S e S 12
BRSNS e Gy 13
B e R e M0 £ - A
Ukrainian
1 A. Citizens 9.623
West Indian (Not British)

Total 71,719

DEPENDENTS OF CANADIAN ARMED FORCES ADMITTED DURING THE
CALENDAR YEAR 1946

B UYL LN Sl Sl e i R ikt SR 21T (g B - Dl PN 31,807
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Hon. Mrs. WiLson: Over the eight o'clock news broadcast yesterday there
was an announcement by the Minister of Agriculture of Ontario that 500 farm
workers were coming here from the Netherlands. I do not know whether any
other member of the committee heard that.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: I did not hear it.

Mr. Chairman, I have a brief supplied to me by Mr. T. J. Keenan, who is
now at Meadowbanks Ranch, Lac La Hache, British Columbia. He was a
representative of the United Nations, in charge of some ecamps.

Hon. Mrs. Wirson: He was with UNRRA.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Yes, in the UNRRA camps. He is now out in British
Columbia and is not able to appear personally, but he has sent in a very fine
brief. Tt is a little too long for me to read at this time, and I therefore propose
with your permission to put it on the record.

« The CrarMAN: All right.
(See Appendix to this report). .

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, we have with us
this morning Mr. R. N. Bryson, President of the Community Welfare Associa-
tion of Ontario, who as such has been brought into touch with the Baltic peoples
in' a way that he will describe to us—that is, the peoples of the three nations
which, as you know, had been independent sinee the last war but are now con-
trolled by the Soviet Union. Mr. Bryson is also President of the Boy Scouts of
Toronto. .

Mr. Elmer Spielberg, Secretary of the Latvian Relief Fund of Canada and
Chairman of the Federation of Baltic Canadians, is also here.

He may have just a word to say, but Mr. Bryson is the spokesman of the
delegation. If we are ready to hear Mr. Bryson I shall call on him now.

Mr. R. N. Bryson: Mr. Chairman and honourable senators, that I may
have the honour of appearing before you today is greatly appreciated; that I
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may receive a hearing as a private citizen before this august body is a demo-
cratic act which holds much significance. For there are those today who have
no voice in their own affairs, nor of the affairs of their country. They are people
without a country; they are Displaced Persons. ; ;

Actually, I am wrong when I say that they have no voice in their own
affairs. They have. For political reasons, they have rejected the chance tc
return to their own countries, and have asked to be sent to Canada. For these,
I speak. :

Honourable Senators, I speak as a Canadian who for many years has had
close association with the people of the Latvian communities in Canada. They
are a fine people. Out of 800,000 Displaced Persons now in Germany, 100,000
people from the countries of the Baltic—Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania—have
put down Canada as their desired destination.

Latvians are a people who many times have had to fight Swedes, Poles,
Germans and Russians, and it was only in 1918 that they gained their indepen-
dence. They object to “isms” and are intolerant of communist domination. After
22 years of independence, their country was taken over by Soviet Russia in 1940.
They love their country, but now, rather than go back within the iron curtain,
they are begging for the opportunity to live in Canada in peace and security.
Some have actually sent word they would willingly endure life in this country
in jail for a chance to eventually live in freedom.

- During the time I have been interested in the Latvians, I have noted some
confusion in the minds of Canadians as to the country and race. Situated dir-
ectly across the Baltic Sea from Sweden, the country of Latvia is in the same
latitude as Northern England and Scotland. Latvians themselves are a race
apart.

. They are not Russians, nor do they bear traces of any Slavie blood. They
are not Germans, nor “emancipated” Poles. They do bear some resemblance to
the Nordic peoples, with their blue eyes and fair complexions. Their speech,
however, is completely their own and is derived from ancient Sanskrit.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Are they the same as the Finns, to some extent?

Mr. Bryson: Yes, they are, but they are a tribe of their own.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: They came up from the south.

Mr. Bryson: That is right.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And were probably rolled up ahead of the Tartars?

Mr. Brysox: That is exactly the story—3,000 years before Christ, as a
matter of fact.

Hon. Mr. Rorsuck: The Finns are very much the same.

Mr. Bryson: Very much the same. The Lithuanians are the same, a seg-
ment broke off many years ago. I am trying to emphasize that point, because I
think it very important.

Being one of the Indo-European nations, Latvians are among the most
easily assimilated of any European race. Because of this, they do not tend to
form settlements, nor perpetuate any particular customs or modes of life. An
important factor is their ability to learn Englis'h_qulckly, since the average
Latvian is a good linguist. Second-generation Latvian-Canadians have demon-
strated that they can become indistinguishable from ecitizens of British or
French stock. ) ¢ :

As a people, they are naturally democratic, all their leading men and
intellectuals have been direct descendants of farmers. Because of the absence
of natural riches in their country, Latvians have had to be diligent, thrifty and
skillful. While they have displayed great tolerance and receptiveness to
cultural influence during the free years of their country since 1918, history

\
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reveals they put up a strong resistance, to the imperialistic onslaughts of the
Germans from the West and the Muscovites and Tartars from the East in those
early days of aggression.

Latvians differ from their eastern neighbours, the Slavs, by their love of
personal freedom and high standards of life; by their principle of private
property, and by their Protestant and Roman Catholic faiths. They believe
in political equality, self-government, and in the family as a basis of national
unity, not as a cell of the political party.

Seventy per cent of Latvia’s population before the second World War
followed agricultural pursuits, and since 27 per cent of the country is covered
with woodlands, the people are also experienced lumbermen. Yet Latvians are
not to be considered “peasant” stock, since illiteracy with them is almost an
unknown word.

There is in Canada today a crying need for labour. Dr. Allan Peebles,
director of research and statistics for the Department of Labour, estimates that
in the next two years this country will suffer a labour shortage of between
35,000 and 44,000 men and women. Co-incident with this need is the urgent cry
—starting so quietly and gaining such force—for the permission to bring
immigrant labour to Canada. I add my voice to this ery.

As I mentioned before, Latvians are primarily agricultural. Their prineipal
exports before the war were butter, eggs, pigs, hides, and timber, pulp, ply-wood,
paper, cardboard, and grains. Sixty-nine per cent of the people were occupied
with agriculture and fishing while the remaining figures were chiefly concerned
with industry and handicraft; trade-transportation and communication; ecivil
servee and professions; and domestic and personal services, the latter being
only 2 per cent.

Farming is a highly productive enterprise in Latvia, the people taking great
pride in possession. The farms are mostly privately-owned, and it is interesting
to note that of the 70 per cent of the population operating farms, 35-8 held land
up to 25 acres in size, 32-7 per cent had farms ranging between 25 to 50 acres,
14-9 between 50 and 75 acres, and 10-2 between 75 and 150 acres. The remaining
6-4 are in the “big-time” class with farms up to 250 acres and.over. ‘

Their crops consisted of the prineipal grains grown in Canada—rye, barley,
oats and flax—with potatoes and sugar beets. The latter, sugar beets, is a very
large item in Latvia and should be an important factor to us. Sugar production
here is a growing industry, and not long ago, members of the Sugar Beet
Growers’ Association of Alberta, Manitoba and Ontario came to Ottawa with
a request for 3,000 immigrants to settle on the beet farms of Canada.

Such an influx would create a 30,000-acre increase in beet sugar production,
and the people could be housed in accommodation used during the war by
Japanese-Canadians. In one area near Chatham, Ontario, a sugar beet refinery
is offering farmers loans with which to build houses.

Last winter, the Right Hon. James Gardiner, Dominion Minister of
Agriculture, made the statement that Canada needs another ten or twelve
million inhabitants; now, the Hon. T. L. Kennedy, Minister of Agriculture for
Ontario, has announced that Ontario needs another 5,000 farm hands to ease the
labour shortage, and only sufficient labour will bring down the high cost of food.
Mr. Kennedy further announced he had received permission for the labour
immigration into Ontario of 500 Netherlanders, but also admitted that such a
figure would not go far in easing the teriffic work shortage.

Consider the recommendation of T. J. Keenan. director of UNRAA assembly
centres in Northern Germany and recently named an official witness before this
very senate committee: “I know my Canada,” he has stated, “and 1T know my
Europe. There are in Germany today, from Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania,
100,000 Baltie people (out of a total of 800,000 displaced persons), who have put
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down Canada as their desired destination. They l6ok on Canada as a country
like themselves; one of the smaller democratic nations with an independent and
cultural tradition. They would make the very finest citizens.”

Professor Watson Kirkconnell, of MeMaster University, has this to say:
“Among the homeless refugees and dispossessed persons of Europe—Ukrainians,
Poles, Balts and Serbs—are a great majority who are honest, devout, hard-
working and freedom-loving. They know the horrors of dictatorship at first
hand, and would by their testimony and love of liberty help incalculably to
save this country from the Communist conspiracy. By admitting a generous
share of these people, we can safeguard Canada’s foundations for the years
that lie ahead.”

This is not the first time a Canadian citizen has urged upon you the lifting
of our immigration laws to permit entrance of' displaced Latvians into the
country.

On July 31 of last year, Mr. W. Van Ark, assistant chief transport officer
in the United States UNRAA Zone, said in this very chamber:

“I presume that you gentlemen are well aware of the high education
standards which prevail in the above-mentioned (Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania)
countries, now oceupied by, and included in, the USSR.

“They are experts in dairy farming, and firm believers in co-operative
efforts.” Speaking as an officer for UNRAA, Mr. Van Ark continued:

“This became at once apparent in the displaced persons assembly centres,
when they asissted to organize the many services in their behalf, and worked
out extremely well their whole educational system.

“They are pleasant, well-mannered, law-abiding, intelligent and most willing
wo-rl:lel"s—ve'ry democratic in their outlook; neat, with an inventive turn of
mind.’

Honourable senators, may I, with Mr. Van Ark, suggest that displaced
persons from Latvia would be an asset to our country; would help us enrich a
land whose resources are grossly undeveloped; and would fill our great need of

increased population. They want to come here, and since their way of life is

like our own, they would be most desirable citizens.

In conclusion let me stress, time is running out, there must be action now,
let us help them and in so doing so help ourselves.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Thank you, Mr. Bryson. S

Hon. Mr. Marroy: Do you prefer the people from Latvia to those from
Estonia and Lithuania? ,

Mr. Bryson: No. I happen to be personally acquainted with the Latvian
group, but I also know the Lithuanian and Estonian groups. To my mind they
are all the same; I speak for all, for the whole Baltic group. They are high
class people and I think they would make a valuable contribution to the
Canadian way of life.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: In matters of religion they are pretty well mixed up.
There are all sorts of religions represented among them?

Mr. Bryson: That is a happy circumstance for this country. They are
Christian nations; they are pretty well-balanced between those of the Roman
Catholic faith and those of the Protestant faith. So it is a pretty happy balance
that we have there. There is no question that they would fit in very nicely
with our northern climate. Their climate is similar to ours and they produce
much the same products.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: These little nations have been able to live side by side
without cutting each others’ throats?

Mr. Brysox: They have never had any trouble between them.
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Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That is a very good indication. °
Mr. Bryson: And they are in a very difficult spot.

Hon. Mrs. Wiuson: Mr. Mowat, of the Palestine Committee, mentioned a
point which is rather interesting. There were a good many Finns working in
the northern country, building, I think, the Alaska highway.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That is so.

Hon. Mrs. WiLsoN: And these men said they would be only too happy to
settle in that part of the country. It was land which Canadians would never
think of cultivating; but they felt that they could make a living there.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: On the Alaska highway.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: Well, it contains a good deal of muskeg, and there were
other things about it which made it, they say, similar to their own country.

Mr. Bryson: It is very similar. The latitude also corresponds.

Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: You say that 100,000 of them have expressed a desire
to come to Canada?

Mr. Bryson: That is right.
Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: They are not all together, are they? They are scattered?

Mr. Bryson: They are in various “camps”, both in the American and
the British zones. They are scattered in “camps”, as they call them. Here is
an interesting feature. For almost two years these people have been kicking
themselves around, they have been idle—it is really a crying shame—but yet
they have been busy; they have a university of 2,500 at Hamburg. As I think
Mr. Van Ark pointed out, they have organized an educational system; and men
with degrees like Ph.D. are learning trades, assuming that there will be a demand
for that kind of thing in Canada: they are learnmg trades—anything rather than
go back to the other political centre.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I know that the women of that group, despite their
agricultural background, are very well educated. There are doctors and nurses
among them, and those who have been taken into the British hospitals are doing
particularly good service. I believe that trained nurses are serving as ward
maids, and things like that.

Hon. Mr. BurcHinL: You say that the Minister of Agriculture of the
province of Ontari® explained that he had obtained permission to bring in 500
agricultural workers. I take it that he is bringing in Netherlanders.

Mr. Bryson: That was just a news item which I saw in the newspaper
yesterday?

Hon. Mr. BurcHiun: Why should he bring them in preference to these
displaced people?

Mzr. Bryson: Probably it is much easier to bring them from one country
to another than it is to bring them from the displaced persons centres. It seems
hard to break up the displaced presons problem, whereas you can deal directly
with a civil power like the Netherlands and get action. I think that is the only
reason why.

Hon. Mr. BurcaILL: That seems unfortunate.
Hon. Mrs. WiLson: It seems most unfortunate.
Mr. Bryson: They are kicked around—idle people. It is a shame.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I think it is too bad to bring in 500 men who, if I
interpret the statement correctly, are without their families. This has created a
problem before, and will do so again.
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Mr. Bryson: I might point out this, that they are great lovers of family
life. As a group they are very strong for their faith and for their family life;
and I guarantee to this country that it would be very desirable to have some of
them.

Hon. Mr. Morvroy: They have not any means of their own?

Mr. Bryson: No, they have no means of their own. As you know, they
have been swept from their country. Some of them had beautiful homes, factories
and other assets just as'we have. These have all gone. They have gone through
all this experience more than once. They look to us for leadership today. They
feel that under our democracy, and this being a similar type of country to theirs,
they can live in freedom. I think it is an opportunity to which we ought to give
very serious consideration.

The CuamMaN: Many of the displaced persons in Germany and Austria are
regarded as enemy aliens according to the regulations of the Department of
Immigration. Mr. Jolliffe says that this does not come within the mandate, and
therefore it is difficult to bring them in, and that is why they would go to the
Netherlands or some other country to get a considerable number of working
people, where there would be no red tape or delay in getting them sent forward.

Hon. Mr. MorLoy: As far as enemy aliens are concerned, are not the great
bulk of these people enemy aliens as a result of force, not of choice?

Mr. Bryson: That is right.

The CuarmAN: It depends where they were born, according to our immigra-
tion policy.

Hon. Mr. Morroy: Well, let us change the immigration policy. ‘

The Cuarman: If they were born in Hungary, even if they have been
prisoners in Germany for four or five years, they are still of enemy alien origin
according to our Immigration Department.

Hon. Mr. MoLroy: I say, let us change the regulations of the Immigration
Department.

The CramrmaN: Would I not like to do that?

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: That is what we are trying to do. Gentlemen, we have
here Mr. Spielberg. He is a Latvian born, and has lived in Canada for twenty
years, and we can give him five minutes, if that is satisfactory to Mr. Bryson.

The CHAIRMAN: All right, sir: we are much obliged to you.

Mr. Bryson: Thank you very much for your courtesies, gentlemen.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And thank you for coming all the way down here and
giving us this information.

Mr. Bryson: I have been very delighted to do so.

The CuarMAN: It is valuable information for this committee.

Mr. Bryson: Thank you very much,

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Now, Mr. Elmar Spielberg, who is Secretary of the
Latvian Relief Fund of Canada, and also Chairman of the Federation of Baltic
Canadians, so that he is in a position to speak with authority with regard to
the Baltic trio.

Mr. ELmar SpieLBerG, Secretary of the Latvian Relief Fund of Canada;
Chairman of the Federation of Baltic Canadians.

The CuARMAN: Where is your home? In Toronto?

Mr. SpierBERG: In Toronto, yes, sir.

The CHARMAN: You have lived there for a number of years?
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Mr. SeieLBerG: I have lived in Toronto for about four years now, and in
Montreal, originally, for about 15 years. I am a metallurgist, something that
I started in this country. I went to MecGill and to high school here, and have
been educated here. _

Hon. Mr. BurcHIiLL: You were born in Latvia?

Mr. SeieLBeErG: I was born in Latvia; Riga, the capital of the country.
But mainly I wanted to give you an idea of what a Latvian who has been in
this country a little while looks like. :

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Are they all as good looking as you?

Mr. SeieLBERG: Thank you very much. I think they probably are. You
will find that the young people who have been born here look exactly like all
other Canadians; they do not have any racial characteristics particularly. As
you see, I have picked up the language fairly well. Most of them speak good
English. When it comes to their settling here and becoming Canadianized,
I think you will find they are very good that way.

The CrarmaN: What language do you speak at home in Latvia?

Mr. SeieLBERG: Latvian.

The CuARMAN: Is it a separate language?

Mr. SpieLBERG: Yes. The nearest thing to it is Lithuanian.

The CuammMAN: How far is it from the Russian language?

Mr. SpieLBERG: It is absolutely different. The Latvian is a mixture of
Russian words, German words and words of other nationalities. The English
word “bacon” is a Latvian word now, just as the word “gentleman” is, I believe,
a French word.

Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: Are the languages of the three countries very different?

Mr. SpieLBERG: The only two that are really related are the Lithuanian
and the Latvian. The Estonians and the Finns can understand one another,
but the Latvian language is different. It makes it rather awkward for the
Latvians, in a way, because if they do go outside of their own country they
cannot find anyone who has a language like theirs. One advantage is that
inasmuch as Latvia has been occupied by both the Germans and the Russians,
most of the people speak the three languages. As a matter of fact, at one time
all three were official languages; and since they get American movies there it
was rather usual to see half the picture cut off and a translation in the three
languages underneath—that made it difficult to see much of the picture.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Is my impression right that these three peoples have
been able to live together in peace and comparative harmony for a very long
time?

Mr. SpiELBERG: Yes. _

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That is, they are able to be good neighbours?

Mr. SpieLBerG: Yes. The border between Latvia and Estonia has been
particularly free. You may know that in Europe passports and visas are
required of people travelling between different countries, but there were not
many requirements of that kind between these three countries.

The CaamrMmaN: And they have had democratic governments?

Mr. SpieLBERG: Yes.

The CramrMaN: Down through the years?

Mr. SeieLBerG: Yes. Of course, they have been occupied most of the time.
I do not kriow how they have managed to preserve their group as they have,
because they have been under occupation from around the year 1200. The
city which I come from was founded in 1201, a pretty old town. It was originally
one of the Hanseatic League. As a result they have been under the Poles and
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the Swedes and the Russians and the Germans, and back under the Russians
and back under the Germans again, so they have not had much opportunity
to show the world what they could do as a nation; but they had twenty-five
years, roughly, from about 1918 to 1940. :

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: What was the form of government during that time?

Mr, SpieLBERG: A presidency, with a parliament.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: An elected parliament?

Mr. SPIELBERG: Yes.

Hon. Mr. BurcHiLL: A republic?

Mr. SpieLBERG: Yes. I believe there were about one hundred representatives.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And they were elected on a territorial basis? I mean,
the constituencies were territorial rather than Soviet?

Mr. SeieLBERG: Oh, yes, definitely. A lot of people used to escape over into
Latvia from the Soviet; even in the time I was there, in the twenties, they would
have airmen coming over in airplanes, going the wrong way on purpose. Russia
would demand their return, but Latvia never did return those individuals. The
relations have been cordial, but naturally a small country beside a large one
has to get along as well as it could.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Is the country thickly populated?

Mr. SeieLBerG: I would say it is. Certainly by Canadian standards it is
very thickly populated. I believe the population is about two million, and the
country itself, if I guess correctly, is somewhere about 200 by 150 miles.

The CuairMaAN: Russia is in complete domination now?
Mr. SPIELBERG: Yes.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: There is another very serious problem, in that so many
people were handed over in the deal that Molotov made with Hitler in 1939
and 1940—I am not sure of the year.

Mr. SpieLBERG: I think it was somewhere about 1939 or 1940.

Hon. Mrs. Wirson: A great many people were handed over to Germany at,
that time? -

Mr. SPIELBERG: You mean the sixty thousand or so that were sent over to
Germany? They were of German descent.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I thought there were others. . I was talking with His
Excellency about that and he said there was a quite serious problem there.

Mr. SpieLBeRG: I would be inclined to think those would be mostly of
German descent. I was in Latvia in 1938 for a visit, and I was back there in
1944 for a visit again, because of my grandparents’ golden wedding anniversary,
and there were a number of people preparing to leave then. They were of
German descent—people working on the German newspapers and so on. There
were some advantages to that, one being that the country itself became more
Latvian.

Hon. Mr. Morroy: All three countries suffered from the Russians as well as
from the Germans?

Mr. SeieLBeErG: Oh, yes, absolutely.

Hon. Mr. TavLor: What would be the main occupational groups?

Mr. SpieLBerG: I have the statistics in my pocket, but roughly, I believe
that 66-6 per cent are farmers. There are only a few large towns, such as the
capital with 400,000 people, and a lot of smaller towns ranging from 50,000
down to 3,000. In these larger towns there are some industries but the occupa-
tion is mostly farming.
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Hon. Mr. BurcHiL: We know that at the present time these countries are
dominated by Russia, but have they any government at all, that is any local
government,?

Mr. SpieLBERG: Outside the country?

Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: No, in the country.

Mr. SpieLBERG: In the country there are definitely governments. I under-
stand that there are governments in all of the countries who speak for the people.

Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: Are those governments chosen by the people or are
they appointed by Russia?

Mr. SpieLBeERG: That we cannot tell without having been there. I get reports
about the elections held. As a matter of fact, some people from the displaced
persons camp came to Toronto last week, and they said that they had partici-
pated in the elections. They were given closed envelopes and told to go over to
the corner behind a screen and put it in the box. That was supposed to be a
free election.

Hon. Mr. TayrLor: Have they the privilege of marking any name on the
ballots?

Mr. SpieLBERG: No, no marking to be done at all, as far as I understand
from these ladies and gentlemen. Of course the free Latvians, or the people
outside the country, feel that Latvia was not properly annexed. My feeling is
that if the majority of the country want to join, well and good, as long as it is
decided by a free vote. From what I have seen or heard from people I have
spoken to, I do not think that there was a free vote. That is all outside the
point that there are so many of the people out of the country.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: You are convinced that they would make very good
immigrants for Canada?

Mr. SeieLBErG: I do.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Do you know if they are available in considerable
numbers?

Mzr. SpIELBERG: Yes.
Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Will they remain available long?

Mr. SpieLBERG: There is a gradual movement of them towards those coun-
tries which have offered them some sanctuary, such as Argentina. Her immigra-
tion has been pretty free, a number of them are moving to that country. I
believe the Netherlands Government has agreed to take some of them into the
mines, but that might not take care of more than probably one-quarter of those
available. Of course all of this is guess work on my part, from the figures I
have secured from various sources.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: And of course Britain is taking some?

Mr. SeieLBeRG: Britain is taking some.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: But they would naturally prefer to come to Canada?
Mr. SeieLBerRG: They would.

Hon. Mr. BurcuiLn: These displaced persons, as I understand, were slave

labour, were driven out of their country for use in industry in Germany. Is
that correct?

Mr. SpieLBerG: No, I would not want to say they are all like that. Some
of them were brought into the country as slave labour; the others, I believe, fled
on their own ‘accord, to get away from the Russians, because their experience
with them in the last war was not very good. There was a lot of killing going
on during the last war when Latvia was occupied by both Russians and Ger-
mans. Eventually, I do not know how, they managed to throw the Russians out,




1
3
i
8
£

e D

- p—

el

IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR 103

with the help of the Germans, and then threw the Germans out; that is how they
got their independence. Probably a considerable portion of them did come
into the country as slave labour.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: That has been a very informative talk you have given
us, Mr. Spielberg.

The CrAIRMAN: We are very much obliged to you.

Mr. SpieLBErG: Thank you, gentlemen. I hope you will be able to do
something about it.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: May I read a letter from the Executive Secretary of the
Canadian Association of Social Workers addressed to the Right Honourable
W. L. Mackenzie King? It reads as follows:

CANADIAN ASSOCIATION OF SOCIAL WORKERS
OTrrawa, ONTARIO

April 11, 1947.

The Right Honourable W. L. MACKENZIE KINé,
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa.

HoxouraBLE Sir—Some months ago our Association, by letter to
you, recorded our conviction that Canada should open its doors to groups
of displaced persons from Europe.

The fact that certain regulations have been liberalized is fully
appreciated, nevertheless, we wish to draw your attention to the fact that
we hear from our own members, who are serving as welfare officers in
displaced persons camps, of the awful plight of thousands of persons.
Some twenty-five Canadian social workers have been serving with
UNRRA for the past two years in Germany, Austria, Italy, and Greece.
They have intimate knowledge of these displaced persons, as well as of
Canada, and all of them tell us that the Baltic peoples payticularly would
adjust well to the Canadian pattern of life. Among the displaced persons
are skilled workers and professional people, as well as farmers, lumbermen
and laborers. We would therefore urge that consideration be given to the
admission to Canada of groups other than those presently admitted. We
would further urge that Canadian personnel now in Europe, including
social workers, be invited to assist in the selection process of immigrants
for Canada.

While we realize that immigration policy must be considered from
the point of view of Canadian economy, we firmly believe that Canadian
citizens want to and should accept their full share of respoqsibility for
people displaced from their homes and security by world conflict.

Yours faithfully,
JOY A. MAINES,

Ezecutive Secretary.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: We will now adjourn unti! to-morrow morqing at
10.30, when we will hear representatives of the shipping company. This is a
vital question.

Hon. Mrs. WiLsox: As Mr. Colley told us the other day, it is possible for the
inter-governmental committee to get a ship. That does not fit into our pattern,
because they have been selecting only the relatives, as you know, and have to
cover a wide territory to gather forty or fifty people. It is possible to get a

chartered ship.

The committee adjourned until to-morrow, May 1, at 10.30 a.m.
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APPENDIX “A”

T. J. KEENAN,
Meadowbank- Ranch,
Lac La Hache, B.C,,
22nd April, 1947.

The Honourable James MurpocH, P.C.,

Chairman, :

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour:
The Senate of Canada,

Ottawa, Canada.

Ho~ouraBLE Sir—With what civie pride our cities boast their growth!
The good folk of Montreal, Toronto, Vancouver and Winnipeg are justly proud
that their cities are the first four jewels in the diadem of our fair Dominion.
Inereasing population spells prosperity and a higher standard of living for each
and ‘every one of us, as we have more backs to bear the burden of our national -
debt and our national business institutions.

Beyond this simple statement of Canadian opinion as I have found it, there
is nothing that I can add. I bring to you no discussion of the philosophies of
immigration. I offer you only the civic pride of millions of Canadians in the
growth of their own ecities, towns, and villages.

It is my privilege to present a case for the eight hundred thousand men,
women and children now living in the assembly centres of the United Nations
Relief and Rehabilitation Administration.

I have lived and worked with thousands of these displaced persons in Lubeck,
in Echernforde, in Kiel, and in Hambourg as an UNRRA Assembly Centre
Director. Further, I had a final posting to Ottawa in January of this year that
I might give the Canadian Government first-hand field information. regarding
displaced persons available for the immigration program of Canada.

My first-hand information was received with enthusiasm by the officials
concerned. I was given a most kindly welcome by many Senators who now sit
in your Committee; and I have been asked to submit this brief on behalf of my
friends who await with fearful hearts the verdict of your deliberations.

Who are the displaced persons for whom I speak? Millions of persons,
friends and foes, have been displaced in Europe during the war years. I speak
for our friends only. I speak for the displaced persons who have been selected
as eligible for UNRRA care after careful screening by the officers of UNRRA
and the Military Governments concerned.

At Kiel, Germany, in the autumn of 1946, I was the UNRRA officer in
charge of that sereening. Working with the camp commandants of that assembly
centre and with the assistance of other officers of UNRRA Team 101, I adminis-
tered the filling out of the questionnaire by every displaced person over the age
of 16 years. What excitement there was in the camps! The Ukrainians pre-
sented my largest problem because nowhere could I find an Ukrainian translation
of the questionnaire, and in Kiel I had four large Ukrainian camps. You
understand we could not just turn a questionnaire over to an Ukrainian com-
mandant and have him run off sufficient translations on his camp duplicating
machine. The old grapevine being what it is among D.P.’s, the entire Ukrainian

community would have full details of the contents of the questionnaire in a
matter of a few days. '

x



-

IMMIGRATION AND LABOUk 105

Finally, I got up early and was away from Kiel before five o’clock in-the
morning. By six o’clock I was at the big Ukrainian camp of Konigon. - There
I supervised while the typist, the machine operator, and the Camp Commandant
himself all filled out their own questionnaires before going to work on the job
of cutting the stencil and running off 150 copies of translations in the Ukrainian
language, with its queer Russian alphabet.

With these translations in hand, we all moved over to the great hall of the
camp where four long rows of tables had been laid out complete with pens and
ink, so that 96 people at once might fill out the fearful questionnaire. On the
great stage, and at the front of the hall was our “slow pokes’ corner” into which
we bundled off the slower ones who were holding up production, while groups
of 24 were marshalled beyond the double doors awaiting their turn to fill out
the questionnaire which would decide their eligibility for the continued care of
UNRRA as displaced persons.

The first groups were excessively nervous. They were fearful that that
outecome would be forcible repatriation to the U.S.S.R.—to their homes that
now lie beyond the Curzon Line in Russian-occupied Poland.

But as the first group left the great hall they called cheerfully to their
friends waiting in their squads of 24. They told their friends “There’s nothing
to it—just simple questions about where you’ve been and what you've done.”
After that there was much less tension and I went off with the commandant to
his private quarters to have a breakfast of Ukrainian cakes and pickled mush-
rooms which are a great Ukrainian delicacy.

Officers of the UNRRA Team kept relieving one another until nine o’clock
that night, when the Registrar turned over the completed questionnaires with all
the nominal rolls in apple-pie order, giving a clear record of what had been
accomplished. ;

The next day under the supervision of UNRRA officers, every camp in that
Kiel Assembly Centre of over 7,000 displaced persons filled out the question-
naires, in the “S” rooms that we had planned weeks in advance.

I mentioned this “S” day operation in some slight detail in order to demon-
strate two points to the Honourable Senators. The one is the care and the
secrecy with which we administered the screeening questionnaire which was
used to separate friend from foe, and which did determine which displaced
persons were eligible for UNRRA care.

My second point in giving this word-picture of my “S” Day operation is to
suggest the administrative ability that is available among every group of dis-
placed persons in Europe to-day. The careful planning had been done at meet-
ings of camp commandants in my office. There we discussed in three, or some-
times four languages, the work to be done. I stressed the need for speed and
secrecy, and the commandants themselves the administrative details.

After the questionnaires had all been filled out and deposited under lock
and key in my office, they were read by myself and thq; c_)ther UNRRA officers
who made up my screening panel. -Our duty was to divide the questionnaires
into three groups. -

Group I consisted of simon-pure displaced persons. The best documentation
to place a D.P. in Group I was a German Arbeits card of a German Arbeits book
issued in Germany during the war years. The Germap passion for administrative
routine has proved helpful to us time and again. It is true that in the first rush
of liquidating Polish villages and turning the entire population into slave labour,
it was not possible for them to document everyt}_ung. We found cases in which
many persons had worked for two and sometimes three years before being
issued with an Arbeits card to “legalize” their position as slave workers. But
we did find that all slave labour had the documentation there to prove their
position and to make them eligible for the care of UNRRA.
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Group II consisted of displaced persons not eligible for UNRRA care. The
questionnaire had been cleverly constructed. It did its work well. It gave
collaborators—an easy opportunity to document themselves as collaborators—
all unwittingly. A typical question was one listing ten different documents and
after each a man must write “yes” or “no” saying that the document had or
had not been issued to him. Two of these documents were quite innocent; but
if he said yes in any one of five languages to having received any one of the
other eight documents, he was admitting that he had received German nationality
in some form or other. Another question asked was, “Do you desire German
nationality ?” If he said ‘“Yes” to this he automatically was placed in Group II by
my sereening panel.

Group III consisted of the doubtful cases. In deciding those who should be
placed in Group III, my screening panel was guided by a top secret key to the
questionnaire. The trick lay in the construction of the questionnaire. A person
with a bad conscience attempting to avoid investigation would almost invariably
land himself in Group III, and once he was placed in Group III, he must go
before the experts of the regional screening board for a very careful investiga-
tion of his past history and of the documentation of his past history. Of course
this was the very thing that he was trying to avoid; but the questionnaire was
very effective in this regard. Final decision and executive action regarding the
cancellation of D.P. status is the responsibility of the security officers of the
Military Governments concerned and not of UNRRA.

The point I am trying to make is that the officers responsible for UNRRA’s
activities in Germany have done a job of work id attempting to separate friend
from foe so that to-day Canada can freely accept any displaced persons from
UNRRA Assembly Centres and feel that it is not getting collaborators who
have given comfort to the enemy.

Of course, as a Canadian speaking to Canadians, I take it for granted that
we want to avoid sharing our native country with those who have been war
criminals and collaborators.

In Germany I had taken an active part in the work of screening for many
months before the questionnaire of which we have been speaking. In Lubeck
I organized a screening team composed of my Czechoslovakian Deputy Director
and my Dutch secretary. These two interviewed every displaced person in our
Assembly Centre. All those suspected of being collaborators were turned over
for further investigation to the local sereening board which had been organized
on my recommendation. :

The executive authority for that screening board was the Field Security
Major of 626 Mil. Gov. R. Det. If he confirmed the findings of my screening
team, he put his signature and stamp on a form letter to the German Burgo-
meister of Lubeck. This form letter stated: “The above mentioned is not now a
displaced person and is now the responsibility of the German authorities for
rations and quarters.”

That was local screening in operation before the directives regarding the
questionnaire that covered every UNRRA Assembly Centre in the entire
operation.

I don’t like war criminals or collaborators and least of all do I want to
see any of these people reach the safety and security of Canada. However,
people of this type are always first in the queue when something to their
advantage is being dished out.

They came in their tens of thousands when Hitler had Polish property to
give away. TUnder the direction of the Gestapo, the German soldiers had
liquidated Polish homes and Polish villages at the point of the tommy-gun.
Furniture, farms, clothing, factories,—everything was left behind, as Hitler
acquired more slave labour for his war machine, and at the same time acquired
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the property of these same slaves that he might give it away to the war
criminals and collaborators who flocked in from the neighbouring countries to
get, their share of the loot.

Not only did these jackals share the plunder of the German arms; but also
they took a lead in the liquidation of Jewish people in their native countries.
When they killed Jewish people they were allowed to keep the jewelry and the
small change while the factories and the good homes went to their Gestapo
masters.

These are the Volksdeutsch. They are people born in other countries of
German blood or of pretended German blood, for many who aped the Germans
were given the same “rights and privileges”! The Volksdeutsch were urged
in radio broadecasting by Hitler himself to “come home to the Fatherland.”
Hitler promised them Polish property and German citizenship even though their
families had been born in other countries for generations.

When I was an Assembly Centre Director in Lubeck, I received a directive
concerning ‘“‘persons born abroad of German parentage and now resident in
Germany.” The directive stated specifically that such persons were not eligible
for UNRRA care. The directive went on to state that UNRRA Directors
should make every effort to prevent such people obtaining exit visas from Ger-
many for the purpose of resettlement or repatriation to their native lands.

These Volksdeutsch have been displaced by their own greed and by their
loyalty to the Fatherland. They are to-day making every effort to confuse
themselves with the genuine displaced persons who are in the UNRRA Assembly
Centres, awaiting resettlement.

Field security officers and UNRRA officers, all experts in screening, have
worked for months separating the sheep from the goats. T urge that only those
displaced persons who are fully documented as eligible for the care of UNRRA
should be considered as immigrants to Canada. And I urge further that no
one else in Germany should be considered for resettlement in Canada until the
vietims of German aggression have been taken care of.

In Eckenforde last summer a brother and sister came to me for assistance
in getting their exit permits for resettlement in Sweden. They did not present
the documents which showed that they had accepted German citizenship. They
presented a document issued by the German authorities stating that they were
foreigners. I suspected them of being Volksdeutsch because of the year in which
they had come to Germany. I had questioned them at some length and had just
about given up hope of finding proof for my suspicions when I noted that there
was no date on the German document that certified that they were foreigners. “Oh,
that was issued after Hitler died in the bunker,” the sister explained to me. I
then discovered that after Hitler’s death the German authorities had advised
these people to burn all documents showing that they had accepted German
citizenship and had given them this other bit of paper. However, the German
petty official was too honest to put a false date on the document and he knew
that the correct date would render the document quite useless. Therefore he
had compromised and issued the document without any date at all. Of course
their status as displaced persons was cancelled and as Germans they were not
eligible for resettlement in Sweden. The Swedish Red Cross was assisting in the
resettlement of the vietims of German aggression and did not wish to share the
rights and privileges of Sweden with collaborators who had accepted German
citizenship when there was bloodstained loot to be shared by the jackals.

Harp Core

Our displaced persons of to-day are definitely “hard core.” Only the most
optimistic would elaim that it is possible to repatriate more than one per cent
of ‘those that now remain to their native lands. .



108 STANDING COMMITTEE

Polish repatriation held top priority during the year past. By the 30th
of September, 1946, UNRRA had repatriated 634,010 to Poland; 309,900 to
Belgium and Luxembourg; 139,950 to Czechoslovakia; 307,950 to Holland,
1,556,100 to France; 13,550 to Greece; 593,060 to Italy; 2,041,760 to the USSR,
208,330 to Jugoslavia.

My own work dealt chiefly with Polish repatriation. We established the
policy in Lubeck over a year ago of moving Poles from one camp to another,
simply to overcome the inertia of those people wishing to remain in one place.
Always we had more Poles for repatriation when we had such a camp movement.

I invented the slogan, “Do you wish to rebuild Germany or Poland?”’ and

this slogan was used effeetively throughout the entire British Zone.

The Director-General of UNRRA arranged a sixty-day ration to be
given to each person on .arrival in Poland by the UNRRA Warehouse Team
stationed there for that purpose. An UNRRA Repatriation Team ran a Polish
Transit Camp in Lubeck where another Warehouse Team provided extra
cigarettes and chocolate bars for those on their way back to Poland.

In our Assembly Centres we had a Repatriation clerk in each Polish
camp and he had one of the choice rooms of the Camp assigned to him as his
Repatriation Room. A propaganda display was arranged in each Polish camp.
There was a very healthy competition between the different Assembly Centres
as to who should have the most effective propaganda display. At first the
District Repatriation Officer asked for photographs of my propaganda display
at Kiel. Then it was the display at Flensburg that was being photographed.
Finally, my former Assembly Centre at Eckernforde produced such a display
that we were all ordered to Eckernforde that we might admire and imitate it.

Our policy was to “freeze” the better clothing for Polish repatriation. In
my warehouse, there were 68 fur coats donated in the Bundles for UNRRA
from either the United States or Canada. Some of them were damaged some-
what; but they made quite an impression when we started giving them out
to the women who were going back to Poland.

Because the Germans claimed that the Poles were taking home too much
loot with them, the Military Authorities issued a directive that any valuables
such as bicycles, radios or typewriters would not be permitted on the Repatriation
transport unless the Pole had a certificate signed by an UNRRA Assembly
Centre Director stating that he had purchased the article with money he had
earned in Germany.

For my part, I took my directive in this matter from the Book of Exodus’

where the Children of Israel were instructed to borrow from the Egyptians before
setting out for the Promised Land. I told my Polish friends that I had no
seruples about giving them the necessary documentation for anything they
wanted to take home. ; :

There were many touching scenes as the lorries loaded in the Camps with a
little three- or four-piece band playing National airs, and friends saying goodbye,
or giving messages to relatives the others would be seeing in Poland. ;

We made no attempt to minimize the difficulties that they would face in
returning to rebuild their shattered country. We distributed through the

Repatriation rooms Polish newspapers from Warsaw that told of the sufferings

of those who were rebuilding their homes in the country districts.

Of Baltic repatriation there has been but a trickle. Nor is there likely to be
any considerable Baltic repatriation while the former demoecratic republics of
Esthonia, Latvia and Lithuania are part of the USSR.

The Jugoslavians who remain call themselves Yugoslav Royalists and wear
a tiny coronet in the buttonhole, to indicate that they are not followers of
Marshal Tito. We may expeet no repatriation from this group.

From what we have just said, I think we may safely conclude that the
Displaced Persons now remaining in UNRRA Assembly Centres are definitely
hard core and cannot be voluntarily repatriated to their native countries.

X
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CoNDITIONS IN (GERMANY

There has been a steady deterioration of living conditions of Displaced
Persons in Germany for almost a year now. I left Germany in January of this
year. Letters I have since had from Germany all confirm the fact that the
living conditions of the Displaced Persons have continued to deteriorate.-

Control Commission Germany, or “CCG” as we call it, is the Supreme
Authority there. UNRRA functions in Germany under the authority of CCG.

Early in December of last year, I talked to the CCG officer who formulates
policy regarding the Displaced Persons Operation. He stated specifically that
he was anxious to dispose of the D.P. problem in three ways, and as quickly as
possible. His three ways of “solving” the D.P. problem were: (1) repatriation;
(2) resettlement, and (3) drive them into the German population. He was
referring of course to the Displaced Persons who have been certified as eligible

" for UNRRA care and who are living in the UNRRA Assembly Centres of

Germany today.

Repatriation, as we have shown above, will never solve the problem unless
it is to be done at the point of the tommy-gun.

Resettlement as you may know from bitter experience, is a sfow and
painful process. j

“Driving them into the German population” by allowing our former
friends fewer rights and privileges than German citizens seems to me to be a
poor reward for those who have suffered in the cause of freedom.

“Hope springs eternal in the human breast,”—and the hope of resettlement
in Canada persists and maintains the morale of these people in spite of the grim
conditions under whieh they are compelled to live.

Their camp might be big brick army barracks, or the cheap huts of a former
slave-labour camp, or a broken-down dance hall, or a German school building.
But wherever the accommodation might be the rule was that each was limited to
34 metres (about 40 square feet) of living space per person. A year ago we
were trying to increase the living space per person and some camps had as much
as 5 metres per person. But today every pressure is used to squeeze the D.P.s
down to the official minimum of 3% metres. - '

A thick soup at mid-day is the main meal in the D.P. camps. Other items,
such as bread and jam, are issued to families and the mother_ arranges a morn-.
ing or evening snack in lieu of breakfast and supper. That mid-day soup is not
dished out generously but measured carefully on a strict rationing of so much
per person according to his status as heavy worker, moderately heavy worker,
light worker, or non-worker.

At the time when I left Germany, all food was coming from German
sources in Schleswig-Holstein. In theory, the Displaced Persons were receiving
the same ration as that issued to the neighbouring camps of Germap refugees.
In point of fact, however, the rations were divided by German officials, and I
constantly received complaints of German officials discriminating against the
Displaced Persons. ;

When my UNRRA Team employed Displaced Persons, the authority was
first given by the Pioneer Corps of the British Army; but the final documenta-
tion, payment and decision regarding the rate of wages rested with the German
labour office.

At Kiel the UNRRA Team employed the German woman who owned the
house in which the Mess was located, as a housekeeper. At the same time the
Team employed Polish and Latvian girls as secretaries. When the German
Labour Office paid the housekeeper more than three times as r_nuc‘}‘l in salary
as they paid the D.P. confidential secretary, one of the girls said, “Let me go
to the kitchen and get more money.”
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As I left Germany, orders had already been issued that the Displaced
Persons were to become directed labour under the German Labour Office. In
fact, the D.P.’s are now in no better position than they were four years ago
when they were slave labour in the Germany economy.

When the UNRRA Director of the British Zone announced that the policy
of directed labour under the German Labour Office, was soon to be instituted,
he uttered the pious “hope” that the UNRRA officers would do “what they
could” to prevent the D.P.’s from being ‘“‘victimized” by the German Labour
Office. In other words, he knew perfectly well that the UNRRA officers to
whom he was speaking would be powerless to prevent the D.P.’s from being
vietimized by the German Labour Office.

I think T have made it plain that there has been a steady deterioration
in the conditions of life of the Displaced Persons and that they are probably

living in poorer circumstances than are the Germans who are living in the -

refugee camps. :

It is certain that the position of the D.P.’s is much worse than that of those
Germans who still retain their own homes and farms in the Schleswig-Holstein
region. -

There are three grounds on which I consider that the men, women and
children in our UNRAA Assembly Centres should be given top priority in any
immigration policy that may be framed for the Dominion of Canada. Not
all of them can be rated as top priority on all three grounds, but most of them
can be given a top priority on at least one of the three grounds that we shall
now consider. :

Our economic need is the first ground on which I would urge the value of
the Displaced Persons in any immigration policy that Canada may devise.
Sufficient for the moment to state that we have thousands of workers with energy
and resourcefulness who can readily be selected by officials of our own Depart-
ment of Labour in much the same way as officials from the British Ministry
of Labour are at the present moment selecting Displaced Persons to fill the
labour needs of the United Kingdom.

Our moral obligation is the second ground on which many of our Displaced
Persons rate top priority, for resettlement in Canada. T feel that we owe the
greatest moral debt to the survivors of those who were dying on the ramparts
of freedom before the Canadian people realized that Canada’s frontier was on
the Rhine, in this modern day and age.

I think Mr. Konstelli, a Yugoslavian journalist who wrote articles in the
'30s that landed him in concentration camp when his country in its turn was
overrun by the Nazi hordes.

I think of Pera Dubinsky, whose mother died in the Stuttkof concentration
camp. Her mother was a Jewish dentist who died three days after being
wounded by a stray British bomb that struck the hospital of that concentration
camp. The Gestapo Commandant ordered an immediate parade of all wounded
with their wounds still bleeding, that his staff might laugh at the spectacle of
our friends wounded by our bombing. But the moral obligation of this nation
to these survivors need not be stressed by me before this body of Honourable
Senators.

Our cultural need for the best that Europe has to offer is the third group
. on which T would urge that we accept Displaced Persons who need no instruetion
in democratic citizenship, but who can instruct many of us in the virtues and
the value of democracy. These people might well be compared to the United
Empire Loyalists who laid the foundations of English-speaking culture in Upper
Canada and in the Maritime Provinces. These are the business and professional
leaders of the three Baltic nations of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania. They
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gave leadership to the finest flowering of their national cultures in the years
between the wars, when their countries were democratic republics after cen-
turies of oppression.

Ouvr Economic NEED

For the selection of those immigrants who come to Canada to fill the
enconomic needs of the Canadian labour market, I would recommend that Canada
follow closely the pattern the British Ministry of Labour is now following.

Some six months ago, the United Kingdom asked for one thousand women
as domestic help in the T.B. Sanitaria. The Ministry of Labour laid down
specific qualifications of age, health and previous experience. It specified
further—rates of pay, hours of work, and general conditions of labour. These
details were passed out to the UNRRA Assembly Centre and the initial recruit-
ment was done by the welfare officers of the UNRRA teams. Officers of the
British Ministry of Labour then called at the UNRRA Assembly Centres to
make their own selections from the applicants.

It was then the duty of the UNRRA officers to arrange the X-ray photo-
graphs of each sucessful applicant and to complete all the neecessary documenta-
tion in preparation for the next draft for the United Kingdom.

There are two simple points to this type of recruitment. The first point
is that they were taking genuine Displaced Persons certified as such by the
UNRRA Director of the Assembly Centre concerned before they were inter-
viewed by the Ministry of Labour officials. The second point is that they
were recruited strictly on an economic basis to fill a specific need in the labour
requirements of the United Kingdom.

In the case of this particular employment scheme, the original thousand
women were so successful in their new employment that the Ministry of Labour
raised the ante almost immediately; and when I left Germany in January, the
Ministry of Labour officials were already back in Germany, seeking 5,000 women
as domestic help in T.B. Sanitaria.

For this type of recruitment, which is based primarily on the economic needs
of the country, we must move rapidly. In the UNRRA Assembly Centres, there
is a mine of capable human beings, men and women skilled and unskilled, but
capable of productive work. It is a bargain counter that will not last forever.
Great Britain and other nations are already creaming off the Assembly Centres
on the basis of their own economic needs. The sooner Canada picks what she
wants, the better workers she will get.

Employment officers of UNRRA have compiled statistics regarding the
occupations claimed by each and every Displaced Person in the UNRRA
Assembly Centres. These statistics issued recently in a speeial report by
UNRRA Director-General Lowell W. Rooks, indicate the economic value of the
D.P.s to the labour markets of the world.

Of agricultural workers, most of them dirt farmers, the Poles have 35-6 per
cent. The Ukrainians have 34 per cent. The Baltic peoples from Estonia,
Latvia and Lithuania report that 15-4 per cent have agriculture as their occu-
pation, while 23-5 per cent of the Yugoslavian D.P.’s are farmers.

These figures are approximate because the UNRRA Employment officers had
no means of testing the statements made and because they did not cover the
thousands of young people who have grown up in the refugee camps and cannot
claim any occupation. ]

However, these percentage figures do indicate clearly that we are not going
to solve the D.P. problem if we plan to take agricultural workers only.

Domestic service by nationality, lists Baltics at seven per cent; Poles 5-9 per
cent; Ukrainians 5 per cent, and Yugoslavs 8 per cent. The high percentage
of domestic servants now living in D.P. Assembly Centres might be explained by



< 112 ’ STANDING COMMITTEE

the fact that these countries have known so many conquerors in generations past
that their own nationals are accustomed to domestic service, much as the Saxons
were in England after the Norman Conquest.

Fewer than one per cent of all Displaced Persons list “mining and processing”
as their occupation.

Thus we may conclude that any policy based solely on the economic needs of
our country, by taking only those people needed in the Canadian labour market
will fail to solve the problem.

MorAL OBLIGATION

Our moral obligation to Displaced Persons varies directly in proportion to
what they have suffered in the cause of freedom in the hands of the Nazis. From
this point of view, I suggest that we should make four priotities.

Top priority I would give to those who have survived the concentration
camps. These people have much to recommend them from other points of view.
They must have been possessed of terrific native toughness to have survived a
psychological ordeal that broke all but the 'strongest. As such, they are ideal
material to build into the structure of a nation of people as tough and resourceful
as the Canadians themselves have proved themselves to be.

There is no question that the experience of this war has shown that there are
few nations that can hold a candle to our own Canadians when it comes to rugged
toughness under adverse conditions.

Second priority on the ground of our moral obligation, I would give to those
people who worked as slave labour for the Germans. In spite of what these
people have suffered in being dispossessed of their homes and herded into
cattle trucks with what clothing they could take with them, they carried on a
resistance movement that constantly undermined the German war machine.
Boring from within, they joined forees with us and produced such things as
flying bombs that failed to explode.

Camp No. 44 at Kiel-Russee was a punishment camp for slave labour.
To-day it is a D.P. camp for Ukrainians. When I suggested that they should
have a garden at that camp I was told it was impossible because there were
human bones in the ground in every part of the camp.

Fortunately, from the point of view of justice, the slave labour was fully
documented, by the Germans in their passion for routine, and therefore we have
only to say that we will take so many people who have been slave labour and
we can be certain that we will not be getting those who have been war criminals
and collaborators.

Like the survivors of the concentration camps, the survivors of slave labour
in Germany have the necessary qualities to make them a worthy addition to our
Canadian nation. :

The conscience of the world cannot rest while those who- suffered for the
liberty of all continue to suffer amid the chaos and red tape of postwar Germany.

Our Canada is a leader of nations and she must answer the challenge
and give leadership in solving the problem of the D.P.’s in Germany today.

Third priority on the ground of our moral obligation I would give to those
refugees of the smaller democratic nations who fled from totalitarianism when °
the Red Army was rolling back Hitler’s Eastern front. These refugees are not
to be confused with the Volksdeutseh who came to the Fatherland in the early
vears of the war to take German citizenship and Polish property. These
refugees were herded into refugee camps which were later to be consolidated into
our UNRRA Assembly Centres after V-E Day.

The fourth and lowest priority on the ground of our moral obligation would
be given to the ex-Wehrmacht. These are young men from the Baltic republics
who were conseripted into the German Army. They must hold two documents
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from the Military Government officials before they can be documented as
eligible for UNRRA care. First, they must have a.discharge certificate issued
by the Allied Military authority. In addition they must have a certificate
from a British Army Screening Board stating that they are not Volksdeutsch;
that they are not war criminals; and that they did not volunteer for the German
Army. Although these young men do not rate a high priority on the grounds of
our moral obligation, they should prove the most acceptable group as immigrants.
Already they have had the experience of adjusting themselves to life in a foreign
country. They are well disciplined; they keep their own camps in good order;
they are willing workers and are easily instructed in any new line of work.
These boys made up the bulk of the drivers in my Assembly Centres.

From a cultural standpoint the Esthonians, Latvians and Lithuanians are
the most attractive group in the UNRRA Assembly Centres today. Every
Canadian returning from Europe brings the same story about these Displaced
Persons who should come as immigrants to Canada.

They have not been in concentration camps. Very few of them have been
documented as slave labour. They are the refugees who fled from totalitarianism
as the Red Armies swept into their countries for the second time in 1944.

They had remained in their countries under the USSR after the “mutual
defence agreements” had been signed in 1939. They still had remained in their
countries -when Hitler went on the air under the Rosenberg agreement and
invited them to come “home to the Fatherland” along with the Volkedeutsch.

But they fled when the Red Armies appeared a second time and when it
seemed to them that there was small chance of their countries again becoming
the independent democratic republics that they had themselves created.

Under the previous occupation by the USSR, thousands of Baltic leaders
had been liquidated and it appeared that many more would be liquidated with
the second arrival of the Red Armies. .

I spoke at a Baltic Educational Conference in Lubeck with the walls of the
little hall lined with pictures of life in Canada that I had “scrounged” from
Canadian Army Educational Services before the Canadians pulled out of
Oldenburg. I tried to tell them of the difficulties Canada was having with
1,000,000 from the armed forces and 1,000,000 from the war factories to be

" reabsorbed into the national economy.

But the Baltic educational leaders refused to believe me. They insisted that
there must be some corner in our wide open spaces where peoples as tough and
as resourceful as themselves could make a living. A former secretary of a
Latvian Embassy spoke up and suggested that the “ghost towns” of British
Columbia might provide a haven for them where they could enjoy again the
democratic way of life. ;

Boris Saminoff, a Latvian banker came to work for my team in Eckenforde.
I game him the task of getting 6,000 cubic metres of firewood cut for our camps.
I gave him my full authority. He saw the Colonel; he saw the Burgomaster; he
sav the Chief Forester. He obtained tools; he recruited labour. He brought
mény documents to me for my signature; but in actual fact he produced 6,000
cubic metres of wood with little or no supervision on my part. g

Mr. Petronus, a brilliant young Lithuanian banker, had been active in the
feeding arrangements of Boy Scout camps and had been the bank manager
responsible for the employees’ co-operative kitchen at the head office of the
National Bank of Lithuania. I documented him as a Messing Officer of UNRRA
and he did a splendid job of work. _ ; 3 _

Mr. Rose was an Esthonian marine engineer. I gave him the job of finding
men, tools and materials to repair all the decrepit huts of my Assembly Centre.
Later I brought Rose to Kiel, fully documented as a Deputy Director of UNRRA
grade 9. He was the first Displaced Person appointed to this grade in the
Schleswig-Holstein region.
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Others who did very valuable work were the postmaster of Riga, the area
veterinary-surgeon for the district of Riga, the food-controller of Latvia, a ship
broker from Esthonia, and a man who had handled 4,000 men on the waterfront
of Riga.

These refugee peoples from the democratic Baltic republics look to Canada
for their future. Canada attracts these peoples because it is the leader of the
smaller democratic nations and also because they feel that the climate and
the farming conditions are similar to that of their beloved native lands.

These refugee peoples resemble most closely the United Empire Loyalists
who were driven from their homes to start life anew in the wilds of Canada.

Of all the peoples that I have met abroad, this group would fit into our
Canadian scheme of things the most readily, and would contribute the most
to Canadian culture and to Canadian appreciation of the demoeratic way of life.

However, because of what these people are, they will never reach Canada
on economic grounds without a vast amount of perjury on the part of both
themselves and the interviewing officials.

If we are to get any of these refugee peoples to Canada, we must do 'so
under a special scheme devised to meet their peculiar circumstances.

Thus, we have two groups that do not fit into Canadian immigration
policy without a specially planned scheme. There are those who have suffered
most from the Nazi and there are those who are so close to us politically and
culturally that they will assimilate most readily into Canada.

OPERATION BEAVER

Camps of two thousand people might be established in Canada for the
training and distribution of those immigrants who we feel should come to
Canada but who we know cannot be fitted into any general employment scheme
for work in basic industry.

Occupations of D.P’s from the democratic Baltic republics are 15-4 per cent
agriculture; 20 per cent administrative personnel; 20 per cent special services;
over 13 per cent professions, and the arts, but not including the medical; over
5 per cent health services; 7 per cent domestic service; 10 per cent transport
and supply; 4 per cent construction workers and allied crafts; one per cent
metal trades workers; a fraction of “mining and processing” and 2 per cent
“miscellaneous processing.”

Regarding the concentration camp survivors, I have not found any statisties
such as those just quoted concerning the Baltic refugees; but we know that
the professions and the arts, in fact any .people with a flair for leadership, and
opposed to the Nazi regime, were the ones placed in the concentration camps.
Thus we may assume that the percentage figures for concentration camp
survivors are similar to the percentage figures just quoted for the Baltic refugees.

In the entertainment world, Canada has always drawn freely from abroad.
Some months ago the De-nazification Commission from Berlin reported that it
was quite impossible for it to denazify the German entertainment world, if
there were to be any German entertainers left for the German people or the
Occupational Forces. Easy enough to prove that they were Nazi: but the
work of the Commission was to put such people to work as common labourers
and not to permit them to carry on as professional people. The point I am
making is that while we continue to draw artists of the entertainment world,
we must bar all such of German nationality. If we do not do so, we shall have
Can_adlans applauding those who took the lead in the extermination of the Jews.
Jewish leaders in German entertainment were some of the first to be sent to

ghe _Con.centrati.on Camps, that room might be made on the German stage for
artists” returning from abroad.
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A recent report in the Vancouver News-Herald told of a certain troupe of
Ritters who had returned to Germany in 1938, and who are now coming to
Canada for the Pacific National Exhibition. This sort of thing should be stopped.

However, there are many displaced persons with outstanding training and
talent in the Arts. If such people were to come under our special camps’
scheme, they would demonstrate to the people of Canada, on the stage and
on the radio, the cultural calibre of these displaced persons.

“Operation’ Beaver” is the name that I would suggest for these special
camps; because there are so many of these displaced persons who would be
self-employed with their own arts and crafts. They would be working like
beavers producing things of utility and beauty out of our native Canadian
materials.

I am wearing a solid silver ring of ancient Latvian design. It was presented
to me in recognition of the work that I had done in “serounging” tools and
materials to set up a silversmith’s shop in a D.P. Assembly Centre in Lubeck.

Skilled woodworkers who produced articles of amazing beauty made
from Luftwaffe propellers, would quickly find ways and means of produeing
artistic things from our own native Canadian woods.

“Operation Beaver” is bound to be a success from the start. The expense
would be small and the dividends great. One such camp with accommodation
for 2,000 people, using surplus Canadian Army equipment throughout, would
give leadership to the whole world and might solve the D.P. problem within
a year, as other nations followed Canadian leadership in this matter.

We cannot ask Canadian banks to make bank managers out of refugee
bankers. We cannot ask the Canadian Medical Association to accept great
members of D.P. medical personnel. But these people by the position they
attained previously in their native lands, have demonstrated that they have
brains and ability. They are responsible people. They will not come here
expecting to carry on in their own business or profession. They ask only to
be given a chance to fit themselves into the Canadian scheme of things using
the intelligence that they have already so amply demonstrated they possess.

Landing permits should be delayed for all those arriving under Operation
Beaver. The burden would then rest with themselves and Canadian organizations
such as the Canadian National Refugees’ Committee to which Senator Cairine
Wilson has given leadership. Hundreds of other Canadian organizations have
urged Canada’s moral obligation to the displaced persons. “Operation Beaver”
would give all such organizations ample opportunity to demonstrate the
contribution that these displaced persons can make to the building of a
prosperous Canada, and how easily it can be done.

The few failures on “Operation Beaver” would be shipped back to Germany
if they had demonstrated that they could not fit into the scheme of things.

The English language has long been used freely in the seaport towns of the
Baltics. For years there has been an English college in Riga, the capital of
Latvia. Therefore, the basic groundwork of surmounting the language barrier
has already been done. The Adult Education Agencies of Canada stand ready
to complete the work of overcoming the language barrier co_mpletely, so that
these people would have at least a fluent knowledge of Basic English before
being absorbed into the Canadian population. I had recently a letter from an
official of the Adult Education Department of the Province of Saskatchewan.
This official maintains that fluent Basic English could be taught in the transit
camps of Germany and on the boat coming over. How much better the job
could be done in the camps functioning under “Operation Beaver”!
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UNDERTAKING REQUIRED

In order that there might be no misunderstanding on the part of the
individual displaced persons, I propose that an “Undertaking” should be drawn
up and printed in several languages, to be signed by each and every adult
arriving under “Operation Beaver.”

This “Undertaking” should state in clear and simple terms that Canada
is giving to these people an opportunity only to demonstrate that they can
fit themselves into the Canadian scheme of things. It should state clearly that
they are not being given authority to practise the business or profession for
which they have been trained, and also it should state that they are prepared
to return to Germany without question if, in the opinion of the officials concerned,
they have failed to find a niche for themselves in Canada.

Honourable Senators, I have spoken to you as a native-born Canadian
who has had some three years’ experience giving some leadership in Educational
Services of the Canadian Army Overseas. Also I have had seventeen months
as an officer of Field Grade with the D.P. operation in Germany. In addition,
I have now had three months in Washington and in Canada, east and west,
during which I have discussed many phases of these matters.

In this brief, I have attempted to give factual information in understandable
form, and a few constructive suggestions.

In conclusion, I wish to thank you for the opportunity that you have given
me of doing something in the interests of Canada, and also for my friends the
displaced persons.

Respectfully submitted,

THOMAS JAMES KEENAN

Meadowbank Ranch,
Lac La Hache,
B.C.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, 1st May, 1947.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Immigra-
tion and Labour met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Murdock—Chairman, Burchill, David,
Ferland, Hushion, Molloy, Robinson, Roebuck, Taylor and Wilson—10.

The Committee resumed consideration of the Order of Reference of the
13th March, 1947, directing the Committee to examine into the operation and
administration of the Immigration Act, ete. a

The official reporters of the Senate were in attendance.

Lieut-Colonel Arthur J. Hicks, Ottawa, Ontario, former Staff Officer,
Military - Government in Europe, was heard and read a brief on displaced

- persons in Europe and the type of immigrants available for immigration into

Canada, and was questioned by Members of the Committee.

Mr. Arthur Randles, C.B.E., M.S.M., Montreal, Quebec, Director and
General Passenger Traffic Manager Cunard Donaldson Limited (Montreal),
was heard and read a brief on the facilities of the Steamship Companies he
represents for the movement of immigrants from Europe to Canada, and was
questioned by Members of the Committee.

Mr. Carl E. Waselius, ‘Montreal, Quebec, District Manager, Swedish
American Line, was heard with respect to the movement of immigrants to
Canada and the arrangements in Europe for examination of prospective
immigrants to Canada.

. At 11.55 am., the Committee adJourned until Wednesday, 7th May, at
10.30 a.m.

ATTEST:
H. ARMSTRONG,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE

TrurspAY, May 1, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour, which was authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act, met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Hon. Mr. Murpock in the Chair.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Mr. Chairman, the first speaker this morning will be
Lt. Col. Arthur J. Hicks, former staff officer, Military Government in Europe.

The members of the committee will recollect Colonel Hicks addressed us
last year, and gave us some exceedingly valuable information about conditions
in Europe. The steering committee, therefore, thought it wise and appropriate
to bring his information up to date, and to tell us what further he can from his
intimate knowledge and experiences in Europe.

Lt. Col ArraUR J. Hicks: Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, I have
taken the liberty of going somewhat further than I did last year, when I presented
a brief to this committee. I had incorporated in this brief some of the things
with which I dealt last year. I am treating them in a slightly different manner.
With your permission I should like to read the brief I have prepared.

In July last year I had the honour of appearing before the Standing
Committee on Immigration and Labour, and presented at that time a brief
dealing with displaced persons and ex-allied prisoners of war in Germany. I
should like to present to you at this time a further brief dealing with those people
with whom I came in contact in Germany during the thirteen months I was there,
and to present a case for the admission of many of them as immigrants into
Canada. T have noted, with interest, the order of reference of this committee,
and shall follow in general its sequence of parts.

INTRODUCTION

For many years I have taken an interest, a private interest if you like,
in the growth of Canada’s population, and the emergence of our country as a
full fledged nation. In common with most Canadians I have met representatives
of practically all of the races which go to make up our Canadian population,
and the war gave me an opportunity of seeing many of their countries of
origin for the first time. It gave me too the chance to observe a number of those
peoples in an environment totally different from our own, an environment
pregnant with fear and hardship and one which tested their character and
fortitude to the limit.

TuE DESIRABILITY OF ADMITTING IMMIGRANTS TO CANADA:

One of the things about Canadians that astonished people overseas, and
there were many things, was the great pride all had in Canada and the Canadian
way of life. T assure you that many of you would hardly recognize the places
of which the boys spoke, so flowery was their description of them. We have
during the course of the last century taken many steps toward that goal of full
nationhood to which we all aspire, and now stand before the world, a proud
and independént people. The vision that I see, that all of us I am sure see,
is of a country rich in its natural resources, and richer still in its teeming
millions of hardy people. To have the one without the complement of the
other is to invite disaster. Any student of history knows that history does
repeat itself; he knows too that to expect a small population to be able to hang

117



118 STANDING COMMITTEE
8

on to a country of huge area, rich in natural resources, is to invite disaster.
In this world, acquisitiveness is a natural urge, of individuals and nations alike.
If we had the fecundity of our grandparents, and could be guaranteed three
hundred years of uninterrupted and uninhibited population growth, with security
during that period, we would have little to fear. Unhappily, however, we can
be guaranteed neither the one nor the other.

In the science of genetics one often comes across the expression “hybrid
vigour”. We have examples of hybrid vigour in animals and plants, in human
individuals and in peoples. We have a good example of it in our Canadian
people, and also in the people of the great nation to the south of us. Despite
such expressions as “a melting pot”, used generally in a derogatory sense,
I think it has been amply demonstrated that the immigration of large numbers
, of people from Europe to North America and their admixture with the indigenous
people has produced a people remarkably alike for their progressiveness and
vigour, and all the better for the introduection of many of the customs which
those immigrants brought with them. ¥

TaE Tyee or IMmMiGRANT WHICH SHOULD BE PREFERRED

Origin—The majority groups in Canada are of peoples who came to this
country from North Europe and the British Isles. Those from France and the
British Isles, speaking a tongue common to our own, and having grown up under
the same kind of government as our own, have in general proved most easily
adaptable to our way of life. Since I came originally from England, and might
be thought to have a bias in favour of the people from there, I might point out
that most of the forebears of the members of this Committee also came from
there, and events of the present century would tend to prove that the qualities
of fortitude, patience,"ngenuity and adaptability exhibited by their ancestors,
are still possessed in no small measure by the inhabitants of those islands. It is
from here that one could expect immigrants skilled in the trades important in
our industrial development.

People from other North European countries are racially similar to ourselves,
and, judging by the experience of the past, are generally readily assimilated
into our population. They face greater difficulties than French or British in
regard to language, but their sturdy doggedness and industry are asséts which
help to carry them through. It is from such countries that many of our farmers
and forest workers have come in the past, and they and their ancestors have
done much to settle and develop our western provinces.

AvATLABILITY OF SUCH IMMIGRANTS FOR ADMISSION

I do not propose to deal here with availability of the people from the
British Isles, but would like to present a case for many of the people amongst
whom and for whom I worked in Germany.

Of the millions of people who were wrested from their homes and transported
about Europe during the war years many hundreds of thousands still remain
in Germany. I had a great deal to do with those in the British zone and know
what their difficulties are. The big majority of those who remain today are
people who have refused to go back to the countries of their origin because
those countries are in the grip of a political system which is anathema to them.
They yearn for a new start in life and had every expectation that they would
be afforded the opportunity to begin afresh. Practically all of*those I knew
hoped to be able to get to- Canada or the United States and were willing to
make great sacrifices to do so.

. The Baltic peoples, Latvians, Lithuanians and Estonians were particularly
impressive. They were in the main farmers and forest workers and were
intelligent, clean cut fine sturdy types.

-
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The Poles, who formed the largest group of displaced persons, were also
mostly farmers, possessing many of the qualities, both good and bad, of the
peasant. They were sturdy people, but had a much lower standard of living
than most of the other people with whom we had to deal. :

The Ukrainians were predominantly farmers and their families. They were
a sturdy and cleanly people. 3

The Yugoslavs were mainly members of the Yugoslav army, ex-prisoners of
war who had remained in Germany. They were a fine breed of men and came
in the main from small towns and villages. 3

The people I have mentioned are available as immigrants and the Baltic
peoples, the Ukrainians, most of the Poles and many of the Yugoslavs would
in my opinion make excellent settlers. They are predominantly of farming stock
and Canada still has a place for such as they.

The Baltic peoples have taken the lead in the British zone in setting up
schools, including agricultural schools and two of the most important subjects on
the syllabus are English and the British system of government.

THE FaciuiTies, RESourcEs AND Capracity oF Caxapa To ABsorB, EMPLOY AND
MAINTAIN SUCH IMMIGRANTS.

Nobody doubts that Canada has a wealth of natural resources far in excess
of our population’s ability to utilize them. We are in effect still in the pioneer
stages of development, and there is no reason why this country of ours should
not support a population at-least three times that of its present one. The
problem, if there be a problem, is not the capacity of Canada to absorb, employ
and maintain immigrants, but the rate at which we can absorb them.

THE APPROPRIATE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH ADMISSION.

I have no submission to make regarding the clause, but would like to leave
one thought with you. It has been computed that a man’s earning capacity up to
age 65 in Canada is $45,000, and a woman’s $4,000.

Hon. Mrs. Wiuson: Oh!

Colonel Hicks: That is, in Canada. Those are official figures.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: That will have to be taken up with the Bureau of
Statisties!

Colonel Hicks: Yes; I do not like some of their methods of computation.

I remember reading too, some years ago a statistical work which stated that
a child born in Canada had an intrinsic value to Canada of somewhere around
$10,000. I have recently noted that the cost of transporting a displaced person
from Europe to central Canada is $250.

That is the only part I wanted to read.
Hon. Mrs. WiLson: Does that mean the cost of raising a Canadian child?

Colonel Hicks: Ng: I think that is a figure that is computed as a result of
several factors; one, the cost of raising a child; two, the percentage of people
who live out of a thousand people born; or three, total earning power if one can
put the intrinsic value of an individual to the country in terms of money—is
something in the neighbourhood of $10,000.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: He consumes as well as produces.
Colonel Hicks: Yes.

Hon. Mrs. WiLsox: Of course that works out rather to our advantage, if we
can get fully grown people, ready educated.

‘Colonel Hicks: Exactly.
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: What does it cost?
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Colonel Hicks: It costs $7,500 to bring an average child to working age.
That includes education and so on. That is Bureau of Statistics figures.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And we get them free, if we only ask for them. When
you spoke about that difference in the intrinsic value of the man and the woman,
you were figuring on their producing power, and not really their complete
contribution, because any figures of that kind do not take family life into
consideration.

Colonel Hicks: No, that was not taken into consideration. It was earning
power from the point of view of wages which accrue to individuals.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: If the wife stays at home and raises a family she does
not come into your caluculations at all.

Colonel Hicks: No.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: The husband does.

Colonel Hicks: He does. :

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: That is the reason for the distinetion in the figures.

Colonel Hicks: That is right.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: Yes. I resented it very much when I always had to
put in “No occupation”. My husband, who was retired, could claim one,

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: I will confirm that you are occupied, if you do not
have an occupation.

The CramrMaN: What position do you hold now, Colonel Hicks?

Colonel Hicks: At the moment I am with Consolidated Paper Corporation
in Pembroke. I was on the research division of the Department of Agriculture
before the war in Ottawa.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: There was a colonel, whose name I cannot remember,
who was taken prisoner off the Zam-Zam. He said he was always getting into
trouble because he was going out and investigating the children whom he found
running wild at that time; and he worked out a very careful scheme to bring
them to Alberta, under an organization connected with the Alberta government.
But we questioned the possibility of finding the children. I have not heard
anything about it. Did you know him? I will have to look up the report; I
have it somewhere. The scheme he had was very interesting.

Colonel Hicks: No. The only scheme I knew of or had anything to do with
there was a scheme for finding and returning to Holland, particularly, a great
many very young children who had been removed from refugees and so on in
Holland, to Germany. But there was, in my area in Germany anyway, no
established scheme outside of a Jewish scheme. There was a definite Jewish
scheme, but there was no established scheme to take on young children.

Hon. Mrs. Wirson: Because of conditions, the proportion of children is,

unfortunately, rather small in any case. However I must not be wasting your .

time.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: I suppose you are getting impatient, are you not,
Colonel, on what you are able to do?

Colonel Hicks: No, I am not. I know these things have to be done slowly.
I have a great feeling for these people whom I left over there. I became very
fond of them. I had a great deal to do with them, and I know that it only takes
a few months of the kind of existence they are living to embitter them and turn
them into something which they really are not. Most of them have come through
their experience—and my information is recent—remarkably well, especially the
Baltic peoples.

', %Ion. Mr. RoeBuck: Are you satisfied with 52 as a total acceptance up to
date
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Colonel Hicks: No, I am not. I am not at all satisfied with that. But I
can’t do much about it. If I could I would. They are impressive people; they
would make worthy citizens here. They are people who pulled themselves out
by their own boot straps in Germany. They ran their own schools. By hook
or by crook they have got farms, which they run themselves. I think they are
an admirable people.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: Had they been used as slave labour or were they
treated a little better than some of the others?

Colonel Hicks: Theirs was a peculiar history. They were overrun, as you
know, by the Russians, with German connivance, or at least acquiescence. That
was before the war started, or perhaps it was in the first year of the war. When
the Germans invaded Russia the Russians were driven out of those Baltic
countries, and once more these people were comparatively free. At least, if it
was an exchange of masters, it was for the better as far as they were concerned.
Many of them were taken into Germany proper as workers. When the Russians
advanced again and overran the Baltic provineces many of these people, having
already memories of one Russian occupation, retired behind the German armies,
and that is where we found most of them—along the banks of the river Elbe,
around Hamburg, and in the province of Hanover. The majority of them,
especially the Lithuanians and the Estonians, were farming people; the Latvians
were a mixture of professional and farming people, and by our standards they
ranked quite high. ,

Hon. Mrs. Winson: It is rather distressing to find, as Mr. MacKay told us
last week, and the idea seems pretty general among the military, that the
Germans were only too anxious to please the occupying forces, certainly at first,
and that the people who were taken as slave workers were somewhat resentful
at what occurred, feeling that the Germans were being better treated. I am
quite distressed that those who have been over there with the occupying forces
do not seem to take into account what these people have suffered at the hands of
the Germans, that their spirit could not fail to be somewhat broken. I do not
think the Baltic peoples have suffered to quite the same extent from being made
slave labour.

Colonel Hicks: Not so much, for instance, as the Poles, who suffered
greatly. ‘ ;

Hon. Mrs. Winson: And, I suppose, even some of the French and the
Hollanders.

Colonel Hicks: Yes. Most of the French whom I handled—and an awful
lot eame through my hands—were ex-prisoners of war, and they were in general
in remarkably good physical condition. I was surprised. .

Hon. Mr. BurcHiLL: There are two questions I would like to ask. We
have been told that there are 100,000 of these Baltic people displaced. Is that
about correct?

Colonel Hicks: That, I think, would be a good figure for the British and
American zones.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: The figure that we got was 180,000, but I understand
that 100,000 have signed that they would like to come to Canada. :

Hon. Mr. BurcaiLL: That is what I understand.

Colonel Hicks: The majority of the ones that I had, expressed a preference
for Canada. They put it to me that they had read a lot about Canada. Some
of them had relations in Canada and they were sure that they would feel at
home here. And the country is like theirs topographically and so on.

Hon. Mr. BurcairL: Then, we have been told that one of the reasons
why the problem of ‘displaced persons has been held up, as far as Canada is
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concerned, is that a great many of tiem, or at least some of them, are enemy
aliens, and under our present regulations they are not admissible. The Baltic
people, I take it, would not come under that classification.

Colonel Hicks: They are never classed as enemy aliens. As a matter of
fact, none of the peoples of whom'I speak could be classed as enemy aliens;
that is, the Baltic peoples, the Poles and the Ukrainians. We had in our own
area alone between five and ten thousand people who were really Ukrainians.
They called themselves of Polish nationality, claiming that they came from the
eastern area of Poland, which the Russians overran at the time Germany first
overran Poland. There was a Ukrainian minority there. They were an excellent
class of people. They refused to go back to what was Russia, if they did come
from that part of Poland. Anyway, they said they would rather die than
go back. They could not be ¢lassed as enemy aliens.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: The president of the large association of Ukrainian
women here left Europe when she was, I think, seventeen or eighteen years old,
but she had lived under four separate regimes.

Colonel Hicks: The Ukrainians were very sharply divided. There were
a large number of Ukrainians among the Russian prisoners of war and D.P.s
whom we sent back to Russia who were keen on going back—at least, they
went back—but some of them were not keen.

The CuamrMan: We are very much obliged to you, Colonel Hicks, for
coming to us and giving us this valuable information. ;

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Mr. Chairman, we also have here representatives of
two shipping companies. Mr. Arthur Randles, of the Cunard Donaldson Limited
and the Cunard White Star Limited is one of these. He appeared before us last
year and gave information as to the shipping space available for the bringing
of immigrants. The steering committee invited him back to bring his information
up to date.

Mr. Arraur Raxpues, CB.E., M.S.M., Director and General Passenger
Traffic Manager of Cunard Donaldson Limited, Montreal, General Representa-
tives in Canada of the Cunard White Star Limited and Donaldson Atlantic
Line: Mr. Chairman and honourable members of the Senate Committee, I have
a very short brief on this occasion.

First of all, I thank you for inviting me to appear before you again.

1. When I appeared before this houourable committee on the 31st of July,
1946, T submitted a brief aimed at demonstrating the important role played
by the transatlantic steamship companies in the development and handling of
immigration to Canada. I concluded my argument by stressing the importance
~to the steamship operators of an early declaration by this government of a
long-term immigration poliey.

2. In the period which has intervened since this committee issued its report
of the 13th of August, 1946, certain orders in council have relaxed some of the
previous prohibitive regulations, but the effect of the concessions made has
been limited by their restriction to people to whom eircumstances of personal
relationship apply.

_ The amendments make provision for the entry of workers to engage in the
mines, forests, ete., and by an order in council signed a few days ago the contract
labour restriction has been removed. As far as I know, no steps have been
taken or authority given to those concerned to go out and recruit people suitable
for this type of labour, of which such a great need in Canada is apparent.

3. Other arrangements have been agreed to so as to permit the entry into

Canada of farm families with capital at their disposal. It is unlikely that
many families in Europe can so qualify.
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I might point out that I learned only yesterday that the Czechoslovakian
government allows settlers to leave with only $10 in cash, and preferably with
their fare paid on this side. '

4. There is still an insistant demand from people in Europe, and from
Britain in particular, for entry into Canada, and it is also not overlooked that
the regulations still permit people of British nationality to enter Canada with-
out procuring so-called “permits of entry”, provided they are healthy and have
sufficient means to maintain themselves until they are established.

5. The shortage of steamship accommodation from Europe to Canada
remains as acute as it was when I appeared before you last. In fact, it is a
little worse. So far as the Cunard White Star is concerned, we have been
endeavouring to procure the return to our services of several passenger liners
still in the service of the United Kingdom Ministry of Transport.

We had hoped that our Ascania would have been released to us ’ere this,
and we planned to utilize this vessel on a somewhat austere basis, rather than to
delay her return to commercial service by a thorough reconditioning.

However, circumstances have arisen which have retarded the vessels
release from her present employment. We are not without encouragement to
believe that the Ascania will be released, though somewhat later than originally
contemplated. Under present conditions the ship will carry about 850 people
each voyage, which would be once a month.

Larger ships of the Cunard White Star have been operating to and from
Halifax and the United Kingdom since this honourable committee last met.
The Queen Mary and the Maurentania both visited Halifax last fall, but they
were on a transport basis and carried official passengers as well as large numbers
of brides and children. The former Aquitania, also under Ministry of Transport
employment, has made a considerable number of voyages between Southampton
and Halifax and it is hoped that as official traffic between Europe and Canada
is now nearly all exhausted, this large vessel may continue in service for some
months to come and be able to convey as many emigrants as possible in suitable
but austere accommodation. I don’t know how much space could be made avail-
able, but my personal guess is that from 1,500 to 2,000 or even 2,500 immigrants
might be carried each trip. However, this depends upon many unknown factors.
The honourable members of the committee will appreciate, however, that the
Aquitania is still a Ministry transport and conditions overseas may necessitate
her employment elsewhere, on government duty.

6. The foregoing represents about all that the Cunard White Star can con-
tribute for some months to come towards the relief of the situation. We have
several other vessels under government control, which while not previously
engaged on the Canadian trade, might, if released from their present employ-
ment, be available to assist temporarily in the emergency.

7. The foregoing paragraphs deal entirely with the present and immediate
situation. I noted from the evidence of the Hon. H. L. Keenleyside, Deputy
Minister of National Resources, and A. L. Jolliffe, Esq., I.S..O., Director of
Immigration, that this government has acquainted the United Kingdom authori-
ties with the pressing need for tonnage to carry immigrants to-Cgmada. It is
known that the Australian Government have been sucesssful in similar represen-
tation. They took three ships. In fact, they nearly took the Aquitania.

8. With regard to the future, I covered in my first brief the problem to
be faced by the company in determining what service of ships shall be provided
by the maintenance of the Canadian passenger trade. ) ;

At the expense of repetition, I repeat that the cost of building hxgh-cla_ss
modern passenger liners is many times in excess of pre-war cost. Such a ship
has a normal life of only twenty years, and in this trade depends for a great
proportion of its earnings on the carriage of immigrant passengers. If there is
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not a steady flow of immigrants westbound and a satisfactory demand for east-
bound passages, the vessels will be sailing with a large amount of empty accom-
modation, which cannot be utilized for any other purpose.

Through the deprivations of the war, there are not sufficient vessels afloat
capable of maintaining a satisfactory regular immigrant service, and no owner
can produce new tonnage at present prices unless there are firm indications of
.a continuous and reasonable flow of traffic. The volume of immigrant traffic
can be determined by the establishment of a definite, concrete and long-term
policy of immigration by this dominion.

Those are the few notes I have made. I shall be glad to answer any
questions.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Would you mind telling us what work these ships ‘are
engaged in now?

Mr. Ranpres: Troop carrying. Britain has I do not know how many
million troops abroad yet.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: Is there any possibility of utilizing some of the United
States tonnage? What is happening to the United States boats?

Mr. Ranpres: I do not know, senator, as they do not belong to us. Some
of the American ships have been carrying people, but I do not know how satis-
factory the service is. They are not regular passenger ships.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: I saw that there were complaints by UNRRA officials
who came out on some of them.

Mr. Ranpres: I saw that the other day. But the Aquitania is a very large
ship, 46,000 tons. She has been carrying troops back and forth between
Australia, Africa and all over the world. She is thirty-three years old now,
and the cost of reconditioning her would be unreasonable, because she has not
got enough life left to amortize the expenditure. She is still on government work.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: But she is still a good ship?

Mr. Ranpres: Yes. She has three classes of accommodation, but none
of them up to pre-war standards. She has some A accommodation for about
600 passengers, and we have no difficulty in filling that every three weeks. She
has some B acecommodation, which has been used by warrant officers and others
of that rank. That accommodation consists of dormitories for 30, 40 and even
50 and 60 people each. Then she has C accommodation for a large number
of men in three-tier bunks. It is quite possible to utilize some of that acecom-
modation, but the point is that the ship is under the control of the British
government and will so remain. I have suggested to the appropriate people in
Ottawa that the present need of bringing people to Canada—of which I think
the government is now aware—necessitates tonnage; and the only way of getting
it is for this government to approach the United Kingdom government to continue
to operate the ship on her present basis. It is our ship, and we manage it, but it
is the government that controls the financial aspect.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: And where the ship goes?
Mr. Ranpres: Yes.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: According to reports, many of the grade A passengers
on the Aquitania found the accommodation superior to that on the Queen Mary.

Mr. Ranpres: Yes. The Acquitania’s space is not bad. Sometimés
husbands and wives have to be separated, because six ladies have to be placed
In one room and six men in another. But that is a wartime condition.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Mr. Randles, you say that it is our ship?
Mr. Ranpres: No, it is the British Government’s.
Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Does that mean a Canadian ship?
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Mr. Raxpres: No, I did not say it was our ship; it is the British Govern-
ment’s ship. When I say “our ship”, I mean the Cunard White Star Line. The
ship belongs to us, and she is under charter to the British Government.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Is she of Canadian register? -

Mr. Ranpres: No, she is of British register. If the government of Canada—
and I am speaking off the record—would say to the government of Great Britain,
“We need this ship; we can bring 2,500 people every three weeks on it,” I am
quite sure that the British Government might be inclined to continue operating
under present conditions. But if she were to be put back on a commercial basis,
she would have to go in for a survey and overhaul reconditioning which might
take a year, quite apart from the excessive costs.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Mr. Keenleyside knows of that?

Mr. Ranpres: He knows of it, and so does Mr. Glenn. The question of new
ships in the future concerns us very greatly. I ascertained from one of my
senior chiefs on the other side, that the cost of building a ship suitable for the
‘Montreal-London, for the Montreal-Liverpool trade, would be about £2%
million. That is a ship that has a life of twenty years. One can imagine that
the company is very apprehensive about investing in four or five ships at that
price, to find out that by order in council immgiration can be cut off. That is
what happened to us in the past. Immigration is a tap that can be easily turned
off by order in council. We might invest 50 million dollars in ships with no
return. Immigration Department specfications cannot be used for anything
else; it can be used only for lower paid type passages, but cannot be used to
carry freight. A ship of the type which we need has to carry highly specialized
freight, such as refrigerator cargoes; Canada needs that type of ship.

We are happy that we contributed so much last year—perhaps more than
this committee realizes. A number of ships that we have left are ferrying in and
out of Halifax, and when there was a little room over the brides and children
we brought quite a number of immigrants. :

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Can you give us any idea of the number?

Mr. Ranxpres: No, I haven’t got them in my head. The Immigration
Department can tell you. I know that in connection with displaced persons
the inter-governmental committee on refugees has representatives over there.
They are now examining people who might have relatives in Canada, to see
who will be suitable for health and political backgrounds, if they can find that
out. The Aquitania brought 52 persons on its first voyage and is now on the
water with another 50. As time goes on and as the ship is available there will
be many more. Those people can be adequately accommodated on a ship like
the Aquitania in its present position.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: The hope for the future lies largely in the Aquitania?

Mr. Raxpres: The Aquitania and the return of the Ascania, which I hope
to get back in a month or two. g

Hon. Mr. Roepuck: What is the capacity of the Ascania?

Mr. Ranpres: 850. :

Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: Suppose we could get another ship, before making
effective use of it for the business we have in mind it would be necessary to
provide a lot more machinery on the other side to gather up the people and
bring them to a port.

Mr. Ranoues: Without a guarantee we would want some assurance that
there would be a volume of traffic. I do not think there is any doubt that we
would get it. People are clamouring at immigration ships to come to Canada.

Hon. Mr. BurcaiLL: That is from Great Britain.

Mr. Ranpres: Great Britain.
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Hon. Mr. BurcamuL: I am speaking more of displaced persons from the
continent.

Mr. Ranpres: It takes time to examine people. The Immigration Depart-
ment is perhaps better aware of that than I am. :

Hon. Mrs. Winson: Under the present process it will take a long time.

Mr. Ranpies: I was Continental Manager of the Cunard Line in continental
Europe, and I know many of the languages. I think it might be difficult for
Canadians through interpreters, to search the background of the people and work
through this lengthy process.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: The inter-governmental committee has a good many of
their backgrounds.

Mr. Ranpres: I saw Wing Commander Innes when he was here. He is the
Deputy Director. It takes a long time, because of the flexibility of the language
and people cannot identify themselves, to work through this process. I recall that
after the First War it was impossible for a Ukrainianto identify where he had
been born. The only record was in the church, and it had been burned down.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: You have given us a very concise statement, Mr.
Randles; there is a lot of meat in what you have said.

Mr. Raxpres: I am glad to be of any help at all. It is my business to carry.

passengers and we have been doing it for 107 years.
The Cramman: If there is any way we can help you out, we will do it.

Mr. Ranpres: The position, Mr. Chairman, of the steamship companies—
and I am sure my colleague from the Swedish Jamaica Line will tell you the
same thing—is that we are always on a string. We would like a clearer policy,
if it is possible to establish one. We do not know where we stand. Of course
you cannot prediet the economie conditions of the future any more than we can,
but if it is possible to establish some poliey, whatever it may be, it would be of
great assistance. 7

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: You were left in a very unhappy position because of
ships that were built during the 20’s at high costs?

Mr. Ranpues: Yes, Madame Senator, we built eight ships for this trade,
costing $5 million each. They were busy for a little time, and then the depres-
sion came along of course—which no one can control—and after that those ships
were practically losing money. Now the people who spend the company’s money,
such as the shareholders, are apprehensive. A ship of a similar type with modern
improvements costs two and a half times as much, even if one could be built.
There is no tonnage in the world that one can go and find; everybody is in the
same situation. We had eight ships, and we have only one left. We have large
ships like the Queen Mary and the Mauretania coming into New York, and that
is the most suitable way to bring people in,

Hon. Mr. Husmion: Mr. Randles, is it a fact that the British Government,

have a considerable number of our vessels?
Mr. Ranpres: Canadian vessels?
Hon. Mr. Husaion: Yes. :
Mr. Ranpres: No, you have no vessels.
Hon. Mr. Husnaion: We have boats of some kind.

Mr. RanpLes: They are cargo ships. I knew something about them when I
was up here for six years dealing with them; but they do not carry passengers.

_ Hon. Mr. Husuion: We have supply ships too, and I understand that the
Brltlsh Government should have returned them quite some time ago, but they
are using them for some good reason.
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Mr. Ranpres: Britain sent some ships here to be converted to supply ships
for specific trade, but they are not our ships.

Hon. Mr. Husuion: The ships of the Canadian Government to which I am
referring are chartered to the British Government, and they are still in their
hands, and are not being returned in accordance with the contract or understand-
ing, for a very good reason perhaps. There are one hunded odd ships there, and
if passengers wanted to come to Canada would it not be possible to use those
ships for that purpose?

Mr. RanprLes: No; we went into that question. When I was in. Ottawa on
loan to the government, I sat in a committee with the different defence depart-
ments to see if it were possible to convert some of our ships for the purpose of
facilitating the movement of troops. We found they were not capable of carry-
ing troops. The ships will not carry enough fresh water and there is not sufficient
deck space.

Hon. Mr. Husuion: In emergency cases it does not take very long to cross
the ocean, and I was wondering if it were not possible to use these ships for that
purpose?

Mr. Raxpres: No. _

Hon. Mr. Husuron: They would not be suitable?

Mr. Ranpres: They would not be safe.

Hon. Mr. Husuiox: Do you know why the British Government keeps those
ships?

Mr. Ranpres: They are carrying cargo

Hon. Mr. Husuion: Where?

Mr. Ranpres: All over the world. The) have 88 of them.

Hon. Mr. Husuion: Could we not carry something too if we had those ships?

Mr. Raxpres: I do not know. . We had 196 of them ,and the Canadian Gov-
ernment has disposed of them to Canadian operators. You would have to find
somebody to buy them.

Hon. Mr. Husnion: There are plenty of buyers, I understand, for supply
ships.

Mr. RanpLEs: But they cannot carry passengers. It is impossible to convert
them. _

Hon. Mr. HusuioN: In the camps where these persons are living, and in
camps here, they do not have showers and luxurious accommodation that other
people would want; and it would take only a few days to cross the ocean.

Mr. Ranpres: These ships go only ten knots an hour, and it would pos-
sibly take ten or fifteen days. They are not suitable, not capable, and would not
be safe.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Are these ships engaged in carrying cargo for Canada?

Mr. Ranpres: No, they are part of our contribution to the mutual aid to
Britain. :

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Does that not at least give us a bargaining force? If we
let them have cargo ships they might let us have the Aquitania or some ship that
can take care of our needs?

Mr. Ranprues: That is an argument that I could not bring forward. You
can do that. These ships were loaned for a common purpose to Britain at a
dollar a year. They are still employed in carrying cargo of various kinds all
over the world. Many of them come to Canada. But they only carry a certain
type of cargo; they cannot carry meat or butter, or any refrigeration cargo.
They have no refrigeration space.

88365—2
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Hon. Mr. Husuion: The supply ships have refrigeration?

Mr. Raxpres: But of a limited capacity. Those supply ships really do not
belong to us; they were built for a special purpose, in the Pacific, and because of
the early termination of the Japanese war the internals of many of them were
not completed.

Hon. Mr. Husuion: My information is—and no doubt you know better—

. that they have refrigeration.

Mr. Raxpres: But there is not sufficient refrigeration; and the distribution
of tonnage as to quality and what it carries is on a mutual basis between Britain
and Canada. :

Hon. Mr. Husuron: My thought was that, if the ships were available and
suitable, and since it costs two or three hundred dollars to bring a man over
from Europe—which is a lot of money for a poor man—that people might be
brought on these ships, which would be an encouraging and helpful arrangement.

Mr. Raxpres: No, unfortunately those ships are not suitable. The prospect
of their use has been explored, and we could not even use them for our own troops.

The CuamrmaN: We are very much obliged to you, Mr. Randles, for the
information you have given us.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: The next witness is Mr. Carl E. Waselius of Montreal,
who is the District Manager of the Swedish American Line. I remarked in
the course of Mr. Waselius’ presentation before the committee last year that
it was the most encouraging we had heard. I think perhaps he can now give
us Some more encouraging news.

Mr. Carn E. Waserrus, District Manager of Swedish American. Line, .
Montreal: Mr. Chairman, Honourable Senators, since I last appeared at one of
these meetings a good deal has taken place and I wish to thank Senator Roebuck
for inviting me again to give evidence before this Committee.

It gives me a great deal of pleasure to appear here today. I shall try not
to use too much of the time allotted for this meeting and as the members of this
Committee no doubt are familiar with the changes that have taken place in the
immigration regulations since we met the last time I will lay my up-to-date
information and a few suggestions before this Committee without any lengthy
introduetion.

Canadian Immmigration inspectional facilities are now available in the
following European countries: United Kingdom, France, Norway, Sweden,
Denmark, Holland, Belgium, Czechoslovakia, Russia and Greece, and for dis-
placed persons in the British and American occupation zones of Germany coming
within the mandate of the Inter-Governmental Committee on Refugees. These
facilities are expected to be available soon in Poland as well.

The Canadian diplomatic representatives in these countries have been
delegated to handle the civil as well as the medical examination of applicants
who desire to emigrate to Canada and it is most desirable that as soon as
possible the newly established Canadian Legation in Stockholm, as well as other
Canadian Legations, be staffed and equipped to do it. Prospective immigrants

- from countries where Canada has not as yet established diplomatic representa-
tion should be allowed to proceed to the nearest Canadian Legation or Consulate,
whatever the case may be. In cases such as these, the prospective immigrant
should of course have to secure a visa to enter the country where the examina-
tion is to take place as well as be in possession of some sort of a guarantee from
the authorties of his country of origin allowing him to return, as he must have
secured an exit permit to leave, in the event he would not be passed by the
Canadian Authoritories.

In addition to immigrants from the Seandinavian countries, United Kingdom
and Finland, we are prepared to forward immigrants from the following countries
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on the Continent of Europe: Belgium, Czechoslovakia, France, Holland,
Hungary and Switzerland, in which countries general agencies have been
established. Connections from these countries to Gothenburg, Sweden, the port
of embarkation, are very good. A great number of people have been brought
forward already from these countries on our ships. On one sailing, some time
ago, we carried passengers of twenty one different nationalities.

A great number of applications for prospective immigrants from Europe have
been filed by our Canadian Offices with the Immigration Authorities in Ottawa,
which are waiting to be approved.. A number of these applications are for
displaced persons in Germany for whom the applicants are most anxious to
prepay transportation via our Line without the aid of the Inter-Governmental
Committee on Refugees. It is understood that this group of prospective immi-
grants is at present the main source from which new immigrants are admitted to
this country.

The I.G.C.R. who is handling the selection and forwarding of these refugees
from Germany, can count on our full co-operation.

I am not fully familiar with present transportation facilities in Germany
but I understand the establishment of transportation routes is urgently needed.
We are particularly interested in taking these prospective immigrants from
Germany to Denmark, from where they will be forwarded to Sweden. This is a
matter that may have to be carefully checked into by the Canadian Government,
who in turn will have to get the co-operation of the American and British
military authorities in their respective zones in Germany. If bus routes are
not established by either the American or British authorities or the German
Government, we then would like to secure permission to be able to send a bus
from Denmark down to a central point in Germany, so that we could pick up
the immigrants who had been investigated and passed by the Canadian Field
Teams. It would be well if the Canadian Field Teams could establish a central
point where immigrants could be assembled and then picked up by our bus.
Prospective immigrants are now in camps all over Germany, where one might be
picked out of one camp and one out of another, while it would be impossible
to send one bus around to every one of these camps just to pick up a passenger.
This requires a central point of congregation. At the present time we have
established a bus route to Prague, Czechoslovakia, which is working out well
and we could make the same arrangement for Germany.

Although our ships sail from Gothenburg, Sweden, direct to New York

without calling at Halifax we are carrying a great number of passengers
destined for various points in Canada. We are prepared to arrange westbound
calls at Halifax if conditions warrant. :
; In closing I would like to mention this, that there is one type of single
immigrant for which the demand is exceptionally great, 1.e. domestic help,
especially from Scandinavia and Finland. Shortage of this t.y‘pe.of immigrant
is particularly felt in the larger cities. We are swam'ped with inquiries from
would-be employers regarding possibilities of bringing forward domesties.

I thank you. 3

Since this was written there are a couple more conditions I would like to
lay before this committee.

The CuarMAN: Might I ask you a question about one of these paragraphs?
You said, “Canadian immigration inspectional facilities are now available in
the following European countries”, and you mention Russia. What is the result
of inspection there in Russia?

Mr. RoeBuck: Where in Russia?
Mr. WaseLius: In Moscow.

The CuAIRMAN: There is no possibility of immigrants coming from there?
f
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Mr. WaseLivs: No.: That is it. The other day I had a permit from the
immigration authorities that we had to refuse. The man wrote in and said,
“How much money do you want to cover the passage for three people?” I wrote
back and said, “I hesitate to accept your money, because I know for sure that
these people will not obtain their exit permits from Russia.” I believe there
were—

The CralRMAN: Russian wives—

Mr. WaseLius: —a wife and a couple of children, if 1 remember aright.

The CHAIRMAN: —are not permitted to come?

Mr. Waserius: I saw an article in the paper not so long ago, to the effect
that one of the former diplomatic representatives of Canada married a Russian
lady, and she has been waiting in Russia for two years to get an exit permit.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And they won’t give it. ‘

Mr. Waserius: And they won’t give it. After all, she is supposed to have
a dual nationality.

The CHAmMAN: So that that office in Russia is not worth anything?

Mr. Waserius: It is not worth anything, but I thought I would mention it,
just the same. .

Hon. Mr. BurcaiL: How are those facilities arranged in Moscow by the
Canadian authorities?

Mr. Waserius: Of course, I would not know how it is arranged in Moscow
now. Not so long ago I had word from Sweden that the Canadian Charge
d’Affaires, Mr. Ford Palmer, had no instructions yet from the immigration
authorities here as to how to go about it. He is getting it now—1I hope so anyway.

The CuAmRMAN: Excuse me; I interrupted you when you were going to say-

something further.

Mr. WaseLius: That is about the immigrants having to be examined in
their own country. I may be wrong, but could not Canadian Immigration send
their inspectors to these countries from the nearest convenient headquarters?
I will not say they should do it for one immigrant, or for two. But let us say
that a certain line, our own or some other line, would gather twenty-five or
fifty people together at a certain point, in Hungary, for instance, which is still
considered an enemy country. Why could they not, from Prague, where I
understand Canada has established inspectional facilities, send a man down
to Budapest? To Finland, Canada could maybe send somebody from Stockholm.
I know for sure that Sweden would have no objection to giving visas for Finnish
citizens to go to Stockholm and be examined, and the people anxious to come to
Canada would have no objection to paying their fare to Stockholm, and maybe
back again if they would not be accepted. Those people might have to get
an exit permit for their respective countries, but at the same time—this is just
a suggestion, of course—the endorsement could be made on this exit permit,

If not accepted by the Canadian authorities you are free to return'to your
native country”.

: Hon._ Mr. Roesuck: That is all a matter of arrangement between our
immigration officers in Europe and the various countries.

M WASELIUS:. That is what I thought. In the meantime, if the Canadian
immigration authorities lose more time, we may lose a lot of good immigrants.
I mean Canada now, not the Swedish American line.

. Hon. Mr: Rotsuck: You told us about the service that you were prepared to
give and are in fact giving, the bus service, in bringing these immigrants to your
ports on embarkation. You told us that your steamship company had a bus
service to Czechoslovakia, to Prague. :
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Mr, Wasertus: To Prague, yes. Of course the passengers have to pay their
fare from Prague, but through arrangements by the Swedish American line
a bus service has been established and it works wonderfully.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: Have you got any others besides that?

Mr. WaseLrus: No, that is the only one.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: But you are prepared to arrange a bus serviee?
Mr. WaseLius: Prepared to arrange for Germany.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: It is a case of, “Whenever the government of Canada
will receive them we will give you passengers”?

Mr. WasgLius: Yes.

The CuarRMAN: How many vessels have you?

Mr. Waserius: Only two right now. We have space in May and June,
so if the Canadian authorities would work fast in Germany we will be able

to bring out some of these refugees. As I learned today, only 102 have been
brought from there so far.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: 52.

Mr. WaseLrus: Mr. Randles said there are 50 more coming. So that is 102,
which is not a very great number. So far as I understand we have had difficulties
in getting these transportation routes arranged in Europe. With the co-operation
of the Canadian authorities we may be able to do something.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: How many does a bus carry?

Mr. Wasenius: Now you have “got” me. What an ordinary bus carries.
Hon. Mr. Husuion: 40.

Mr. Waserius: I would say, between 40 and 50. Say 40.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Are you prepared to send buses for groups of 40 or 50
people when the immigrants are passed and ready for your ship?

Mr. Waserrus: Yes. The only thing would be, I understand that Mr.
Innes, in London, is the chief officer for the I.G.C.R.

The CuAarMAN: If they were rejected by immigration inspection would you
give them transportation hack?

Mr. Wasertus: No, we could not do that. They would have to pay that
themselves. Would not all these be examined before? They are examined by
the Canadian field teams in Germany.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: We would have to give you notice that we have 50
ready to be carried from one point to another, in which case you are prepared
to do the carrying.

Mr. Wasgrtus: Yes.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: I understood from Mr. Joliffe, that they do have to
assemble even these 52 in the one centre?

Mr. Wasernius: Yes. I have learned that since this was written.
Hon. Mrs. Winson: That is what Mr. Jolliffe gave me to understand.

Mr. WaseLrus: That is the way it is worked, I understand. We have three
places in Germany—PFrankfurt, Hanover and a third one I forget now—where
they assemble them. Hanover would not be too far from Denmark, for instance.

Hon. Mrs. WiLson: But we have inspectional facilities in Prague now, have
we not?

Mr. WasgLius: Yes.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: What vessels have you?

Mr. Waserivs: We have two ships, the Gripsholm and the Drottningholm.
Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: What is the capacity of those vessels?
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Mr. Wasertus: Of immigrants? The Gripsholm takes about 750 immi-
grants. I do not say that we have space for 750 on each ship—by no means.
We have space for a bus load, maybe, on each ship for the next two months.
But every little bit helps this condition.

Hon. Mrs, WiLson: They are on a regular route, of course.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: What is the other one?

Mr. Wasertus: The Drottningholm.

The CHARMAN: They are passenger boats?

Mr. WaseLius: Passenger boats.

Hon. Mrs. Wison: There is another boat coming into commission this
spring, is there not?

Mr. Waserius: We are building her, but she will not be out before late in
the fall.

The CHAIRMAN: Before when? -

Mr. Wasenius: November, I believe.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: And these boats make their return trips every month,
or three weeks?

Mr. WaseLius: Every second week. We have a ship coming in every second
week to New York, every second Friday, rather; no, Monday, I should say.
Every second Monday the one leaves here, and on Friday the other leaves the
other side. It takens ten days over. It is a bi-weekly service.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Did I understand you to tell us that with proper
arrangements you can transport across the ocean fifty immigrants every two
weeks? '

Mr. Waserius: For May and June. But from the 15th of July, let us say,
up to the 1st of November, I think we will not be able to do that, because the
people who are visiting now will be returning around that time.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Could you start in again at the end of November?

Mr, Waserius: At the end of the year and the beginning of next year
we would have space again.

Hon. Mr. Davip: Is the government of Canada paying any subsidy or
premium to companies who bring immigrants here? 1

Mr. WaseLius: No.

Hon. Mr. Davip: Was that not done in the past?

Mr. Waserius: Yes, but we never handled business of that nature in
the past.

Hon. Mr. Davip: I am not speaking of your company; I am asking about
the practice in general.

Mr. Waserius: Perhaps Mr. Randles could answer that.

Mr. Ranpres: That has not been done for thirty-five years, sir.

Mr. Waserius: And I have been in the business only twenty-five years.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: In late years we have been trying to keep people out
rather than to bring them in.

Mr. Wasgrius: Another thought that I have is about these former enemy
countries. We have been notified in some cases that prospective immigrants are
not admissible under the present law; and in other cases we are told that the
app_hcat]ons_ are going to be investigated. If the application is from an Hun-
garian, for instance, the reply we get is, “We are sorry, but this cannot be dealt
with because the prospective immigrant is of enemy nationality.” This after-
noon I might find out more about this, but at present I think that at least the
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wives of men now here should be allowed to join their husbands, and that chil-
dren under eighteen years whose parents are here should be allowed to join
their parents. Maybe somebody knows whether that is permissible.

Mr. Ranpres: It is at the diseretion of the Minister.

Hon. Mrs. Winson: The Volks-Deutsch feel very badly that their rela‘tlves
cannot come in.

Mr. WaseLius: We take a chance that men whose families are not allowed
to join them here may return to their own countries.

Hon. Mr. Davip: What documents does your company require from an
immigrant before he is accepted as a passenger on one of your ships?

Mr. Waserius: He has to have a permit from the immigration authorities,
a valid passport, a visa to enter Canada, and visas for travelling through what-
ever countries he has to go through on the way.

Hon. Mr, Davip: Is he required to exhibit a medical certificate?

Mr. Wasenius: Of course, he would not get a visa unless he had been found
medically fit.

Hon. Mr. Davip: The permit to enter Canada covers that?

Mr. Waserius: Yes. The permit says that the immigrant has to be
medically accepted or fit, whatever the wording is. I understand that in most
cases, such as at Stockholm, Prague and so on, it is up to the Canadian dip-
lomatic representatives to choose a reputable physician to examine prospective
immigrants. I do not know how many Canadian doctors are over in Europe as
yet; maybe there are none.

Hon. Mr. RorBuck: That is a matter of internal management in the
Immigration Branch.

The CuARMAN: Are there any further questions? If not, I wish to thank

“you very much, Mr. Waselius, for appearing before us.

The committee adjourned until Wednesday, May 7, 1947, at 10.30 a.m.
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“That the Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour be authorized
and directed to examine into the Immigration Act (R.S.C. Chapter 93 and
Amendments) its operation and administration and the circumstances and
conditions relating thereto including (a) the desirability of admitting immigrants
to Canada, (b) the type of immigrants which should be preferred, including
origin, training and other characteristies, (¢) the availability of such immigrants
for admission, (d) the facilities, resources and capacity of Canada to absorb,
employ and maintain such immigrants, and (e) the appropriate terms and con-
ditions of such admission; :

And that the said Committee report its findings to this house;

And that the said Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
records.”
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEeDNESDAY, May 7, 1947.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Immigration
and Labour met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Murdock, Chairman, Burchill, Daigle,
Ferland, Horner, Macdonald (Cardigan), McDonald (Shediac), Molloy, Roebuck,
Taylor and Wilson—11. :

The Committee resumed consideration of the Order of Reference of the
13th March, 1947, directing the Committee to examine into the operation and
administration of the Immigration Act, ete.

The official reporters of the Senate were in attendance.

The Honourable Senator Roebuck was heard with respect to the recent action
of the Government of Canada on immigration, and read into the record Order in
Council P.C. 1734, dated 1st May, 1947, respecting the landing in Canada of
immigrants, and statement on immigration by the Honourable J. A. Glen,
Minister of Mines and Resources.

Mr. H. C. P. Cresswell, Chief Commissioner, Department of Immigration
and Colonization, Canadian Pacific Railway Company, was heard and read a
brief on the type of immigrants available for immigration into Canada and the
shipping facilities for carrying prospective immigrants to Canada, and outlined
the Company’s past activities in the field of immigration and colonization.

Mr. Cresswell filed as an appendix to his brief a summary on Displaced
Persons and a statement on Transfer of Capital.

Mr. G. M. Hutt, Development Commissioner, Canadian Pacific Railway
Company, was heard and read a brief on the benefit to Canada of immigrants of
certain types of technical and skilled industrial workers, and was questioned
by Members of the Committee. :

Mr. Frank W. Collins, Industrial Manager, Canadian Pacific Railway

* Company, was heard and read a brief on the industrial development of Canada,

and recommending admittance to Canada of a larger number of immigrants.

Mr. Michael Garber, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, Vice-President, Canadian
Jewish Congress, was heard and read a brief by the Canadian Jewish Congress on
Immigration to Canada of displaced persons of Europe, and recommending
admittance to Canada of a larger number of Jewish displaced persons of Europe.

Mr. Saul Hayes, Montreal, Quebec, National Executive Director, Canadian
Jewish Congress, was heard and questioned by Members of the Committee.

Mr. Hayes filed an extract from Forez'gn. Trade of February 22, 1947, on
Refugee Industries in Canada. (See Appendix “A”.) .

At 12.45 p.m. the Committee adjourned until tomorrow, Thursday, 8th
May instant, at 10.30 a.m.

Attest.
H. ARMSTRONG,

Clerk of the Committee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

THE SENATE
WEepNESDAY, May 7, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Immigration and Labour, which was author-
ized and directed to examine into the Immigration Act, met this day at 11 a.m.

Hon. Mr. Murdock in the Chair.
The CramrMax: What is the first matter before us this morning.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Before we start I wish to make a little statement, if I
have time to do so, by the way of opening. You will recall that at the meetings
of this committee there was some question raised as to the futility or otherwise
of our work in this committee. Some thought that we had spent a very great
deal of time and that the results were meagre. Others took a different view. Now
the question has been answered, and it has answered itself between the last
meeting that this committee held and the present one in the announcement made
by the Government of Canada in connection with the matter of immigration.
The Prime Minister speaking in the House of Commons on Thursday last, May
1, announced a change in the Immigration Act, all regulations and Orders-in-
Council, that is very sweeping and is in direct line and parallel to the recom-
mendations of the Senate. These I think will meet with the approval of every
member of this committee. I would like to put on the record the Order-in-
Council that has been passed so that those, and they are numerous, who follow
this record, will be able to learn what the picture is at the present moment. The
standing Order-in-Council is P.C. 695. That has been altered a number of
times in the last year, or slightly more than that, but on May 29 last there
was a statement made by the Minister of Immigration as to the law in force at
that time and certain additions were made. Now I am going to ask the reporters
to put this into the records in the way I will supply it to them. On May 29
those admissible to Canada were,— ;

(a) The wife or unmarried child under 18 years of age of any person legally
admitted to and resident in Canada who is in a position to receive and
care for his dependents.

(b) The father or mother, the unmarried son or daughter eighteen years of
age or over, the unmarried brother or sister, the orphan nephew or
niece under sixteen years of age, of any person legally admitted to and
resident in Canada, who is in a position to receive and care for
such relatives. The term “orphan” used in this clause means a child
bereaved of both parents.

(¢) An agriculturist having sufficient means to farm in Canada.

(d) The fiancee of any adult male legally admitted to and resident in
Canada who is in a position to receive, marry and care for his intended
wife.

(e) A person who, having entered Canada as a non-immigrant, enlisted in
the Canadian Armed Forces and, having served in such Forces, has
been honourably discharged therefrom.

Now on January 30, 1947 by Order-in-Council P.C. 371 the following
classess of admissibility were added.

1. The widowed daughter or sister (with or without unmarried children
under 18 years of age) of a legal resident of Canada who is in a
‘position to receive and care for such relatives..

135
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2. An agriculturist entering Canada to farm when destined to a father,
father-in-law, son, son-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, uncle or nephew
engaged in agriculture as his principal occupation who is in a position
to receive such immigrant and establish him on a farm.

3. A farm labourer entering Canada to engage in assured farm employment.

4. A person experienced in mining, lumbering or logging entering Canada
to engage in assured employment in any one of such industries.

That, with the standing Order at that time, which included a British sub-
ject or United States citizen coming to Canada and able to maintain themselves,
was in substance the law at that time.

On Thursday last the Prime Minister announced an Order-in-Council,
substituting for the first two paragraphs that I have just read the following
clauses—I read by the way “wife and unmarried child under eighteen years of
age, father or mother” and so on. Substituted for that is this—

The husband or wife; the son, daughter, brother or sister, together
with husband or wife and unmarried children if any; the father or mother;
the orphan nephew or niece under 21 years of age; of any person
legally resident in Canada who is in a position to receive and care for
such relatives. The term “orphan” used in this clause means a child
bereaved of both parents.

I point out that added to those who were then admissible, is this phrase
“together with husband or wife and unmarried children”. T call attention to the
fact that there is no age limit with regard to the children—“the father or
mother ; the orphan nephew or niece under 21 years of age” which had previously
been 18 and “of any person legally resident in Canada who is in a position to
receive and care for such relatives” and so on.

You will note that I have read the fiancee of the male adult legally
admitted to and resident in Canada who is in a position to receive and will
care for his intended wife and so on.

For that there has been substituted this clause:—

A person entering Canada for the purpose of marriage to a legal
resident thereof; provided the prospective husband is able to maintain his
intended wife.

I point out to you that for the previous “male adult” there has been sub-
stituted “‘a person entering Canada” which means that a man and a woman wish-
ing to bring a fiancee or fiance here for the purpose of marriage are placed
in equal positions, provided, of course, that the husband, who is the natural
breadwinner, is able to support his intended wife.

Hon. Mrs. Wirson: It is rather ambiguous.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: I do not think it is.

Hon. Mr. BurcaiLL: What about the reverse.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: If the wife has earning ability, the husband would be
able to maintain her and himself too at her expense. I do not think we are
gomg to run into any difficulty on that. Of course, Mr. Chairman, I want to
express my great pleasure with this action of the Government, which is in line
with the recommendations which have been made and is probably influenced very
considerably by the work of this committee. I think it is sound and humanitarian
and T feel from the standpoint of Canada that it is the very best policy, both
as a matter of domestic concern and in our foreign relations. I for one am
deeply grateful to the Prime Minister who made this possible.

Hon. Mr. Bukcrinr: That only refers to residents in Canada.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Yes.
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Hon. Mr. BurcHiLL: It does not go any further than that.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: That is as far as it goes but I think, as I have said so
many times here and in the House, the best people who come are those who come
here brought by relatives who are here and have already successfully established
themselves.

Hon. Mr. BurcHinL: It does not attempt to solve the displaced persons
problem at all.

Hon. Mr. RoeBuck: Not insofar as the Order in Council is concerned, but
it does to this extent that a good many of these displaced persons have relatives
in Canada. I do not suppose anybody would eriticize the bringing of these
classes first. These are definitely entitled to an opportunity to priority.

Hon. Mr. BurcHILL: I agree.

Hon. Mr. Roesuck: The Government has an added policy to admit in future
a number of thousands—he did not specify how many thousands very wisely
because that depends upon our ability to maintain them and a good deal
depends on the ability of our officers, first in securing shipping and in admitting
those immigrants whom they decide should first be admitted. The excuse of
our officials that they are following the Government policy will no longer hold
water. This cock will not fight any longer. They are to carry out a very
reasonable immigration policy. I hope they will be able to get the shipping.
I am not convinced that it can be done. Pardon me for all the time I have
taken up.

The CrarMaN: Now I think we will hear from Mr. Cresswell.

Hon. Mr. Romsuck: I should point out for the record’s sake that the
representatives of the Canadian Pacific Railway appeared before us last vear and
gave us a very great deal of most valuable information on our subject of
immigration and our Steering Committee authorized me to invite them to appear
again. May I express in advance our appreciation and gratitude for what they
are doing for us. Mr. Cresswell is the Chief Commissioner of the Department
of Immigration and Colonization for the Canadian Pacific Railway.

The CuAlrRmMAN: Alright, Mr. Cresswell, now you may proceed.

Mr. H. C. P. CresswirLL, Chief Commissioner, Department of Immigration
and Colonization, C.P.R.:—Mr. Chairman and honourable members of the
committee: It was with pleasure that I received instructions from Mr. W. M.
Neal, Chairman and President of the Canadian Pacific Railway, to accede to
your request that I should again appear before you in response to your further
kind invitation. Mr. G. M. Hutt, Development Commissioner, and Mr. F. W.
Collins, Industrial Manager, the other officers representing the Company are
associated with me, as was the case last year, in presenting our Company’s
views:; and ‘we shall again, to the best of our ability, endeavour to answer such
questions as honourable members of the Commlttee may desire to ask in regard
to our respective departmental activities.

As honourable members of the committee know, immigration and coloniza-
tion have continued to be the subjects of widespread interest and discussion
during the past year. The published report of your committee attracted a great
deal of attention and I trust that I may be permitted to add my own sincere con-
gratulations to the many expressions of appreciation which I am sure, honourable
senators must have received. Renewed interest in immigration has been dis-
played by various Canadian organizations, agricultural, industrial, business,
social, religious and educational; and the most welecome decisions so far made by
the Government with regard to further classes of admissible immigrants have met
with general appreciation.

As honourable senators may recall, last year I described in some detail the
organization of the Canadian Pacific Railway’s Department of Immigration and



138 STANDING COMMITTEE

Colonization, its past activities, and its readiness and capacity to undertake new
responsibilities with respect to future immigration. I ventured the opinion that
history was repeating itself in respect of migration matters, the general pattern
being very much the same as it was twenty-five years previously. The similarity
lay in large numbers of people in the British Isles and on the Continent, just after
a world war, looking to Canada for an opportunity to start life afresh in a
country where, they believed, they—but more particularly their children—
would be safer, and where opportunities are greater. There were, however, as I
observed, some differences between the situation last July and that of twenty-five
years previously, in that the number of people anxious to come to Canada was
infinitely larger than it was a quarter of a century ago, while the need for people
in Canada was being much more strongly and much more widely stressed.
Since expressing those views I have paid an extended visit to Great Britain and
the Continent, but before presenting a summary of the information I obtained
during that visit, I should like to quote, with the kind indulgence of the com-
mittee, a brief paragraph from my remarks made here in July last:—

There are, undoubtedly, considerable numbers of people in Britain,
Holland, Belgium, Switzerland and other western countries who, providing
international currency was stabilized, would have ample funds to establish
themselves in this country without financial assistance of any kind, while
the number of Displaced Persons in Europe of various nationalities runs
into hundreds of thousands, a large percentage of whom would be capable
of doing useful work in Canada if they were allowed to come, and means
could be found to get them here.

The purpose of my visit overseas last fall was to determine, by personal
survey, the actual migration potentialities, just where prospective immigrants
were to be found, and the conditions and anticipated problems to be met.
Amongst the latter, the shipping problem, of course, was uppermost in my mind.
The visit included the renewal of contacts with officials of the United Kingdom
Government, the governments of countries of Northwestern Europe, as well as
organizations having to do with immigration and the resettlement of Displaced
Persons. The countries visited were Great Britain, Denmark, Norway, Sweden,
Czechoslovakia, Switzerland, France, Belgium, Holland, and the British and
American Occupational Zones of Germany. It will not, of course, be possible
for me in the time at my disposal to cover except very briefly the conditions
pertaining to migration as I found them. However, for the convenience of the
Committee, I have prepared, as an appendix to this brief, a memorandum relat-
ing to the circumstances affecting transfer of capital and also some figures
regarding Displaced Persons.

Considerable numbers of the best type of immigrants for agricultural
settlement in Canada are available in the British Isles. The quality of the
prospective immigrants appeared to be excellent and the capital available
greater, on the average, than before the war. In addition to the considerable
number of agricultural families with capital in prospect, there are farm workers
and other intending migrants within a wide range of trades and callings; together
with teen-aged boys for agricultural training and juveniles of both sexes for
voluntary society upbringing. Notwithstanding that other countries of the
British Commonwealth have stimulated a great deal of interest, there is no doubt
whatever that Canada occupies a special place in the minds of those British
people who are seeking opportunities in overseas countries.

~ According to a Canadian Press report of less than three weeks ago,
Viscount Addison, Dominions Secretary, stated in the House of Lords that the
government stands “all-out” for immigration to the Dominions and colonies as
far as the domestic manpower situation and shipping facilities would permit. Tt
was further stated that the Domnions had agreed not to accept as immigrants
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men who are liable to military service in the United Kingdom and that the
British Government had carried out detailed discussions with all the Dominions
to speed up immigration and was investigating the possibility of new settlements
in British Guiana and British Honduras.

As to transfer of capital, an emigrant from the British Isles to a dollar
country is allowed to draw from his assets up to £5,000 ($20,000) in equal annual
instalments of £1,250 for the first four years. If his total assets are less than

- £2,000 ($8,000) he can transfer it at the rate of £500 ($2,000) each year.

Emigrants to British Commonwealth countries outside the dollar area, however,
can take unlimited capital. This, of course, gives South Africa, Australia, New
Zealand and other countries within the Sterling area a decided advantage.

With regard to the European Continent, prospects for future Canadian
settlers seem best in Switzerland, Holland and Belgium. There is keen interest
in the Dominion amongst the Swiss, and Canada should receive many experienced
agricultural families with capital, as well as other industrious people when it is
possible for them to come. While there are a considerable number of agricul-
tural families in Holland who would like to settle in Canada, it is not possible
for them to do so just now owing to the prohibition on export of capital. But
there are thousands of farmers’ sons who have little or no chance of obtaining
farms of their own in Holland due to damage caused by the war and other °
changes brought about by that conflict. These farmers’ sons would eagerly grasp
the opportunity of undertaking farm work in. Canada in the hope of owning
their own farms. As far as Belgium is concerned, the immediate prospects of
migration to Canada are good, but export of capital for the emigrant is con-
trolled. It might well be, however, that when shipping. becomes more freely
available, even greater relaxation of those regulations might be in evidence so
far as agricultural families are concerned. Apart from this, there are no official
obstacles to emigration from that country.

In France, there is more interest in immigration into that country than
emigration, but in any case, there has been little immigration into Canada from
that source during the past 100 years. While there is no restriction on emigration,
capital export is very limited—in any event, there is little likelihood that France
can be an important source of immigration into Canada for some time to come.

Relative to Canada’s population needs, the Scandinavian countries are
not, likely to be a source of any large number of the fine type of settlers the
people from those countries have proved to be in years gone by. Here again,
however, actually the numbers coming to Canada between the two world wars
were not great. Tt is generally a popular thought -that Norway, Sweden, and
Denmark have a greater population than is actually the case but their total
combined population is only about that of Canada. As far as Denmark is
concerned, there is no official restriction against emigration from that country
other than monetary, and it is highly probable that special consideration would
be. given in the cases of intending migrants. In Norway, with capital export
strietly controlled and a marked labour shortage, emigration is discouraged.
This is true also of Sweden. However, it might be noted that in each of these
countries there are actually a great many enquiries from interested people and
other persons anxious to join friends, relatives and fiancees in this country.

As is the case with France, there is a greater interest in immigration than
emigration on the part of the authorities in Czechoslovakia. This is due to the
acute shortage of labour and scarcity of foreign exchange, but it may be that
later on it will be possible to secure the type of people from that country whose
agricultural background and industriousness made them so adaptable in the
building up of farms in this country in previous years.

The Canadian Pacific is, of course, very much interested in the problem
of the Displaced Persons and while overseas I visited some of the camps on the
Continent. The Appendix to which I have previously referred contains a good
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deal of detailed information with regard to the large number of registered
Displaced Persons. The matter is one which comes under the Inter-governmental
Committee on Refugees and, of course, the United Nations Organization. In
addition to the registered Displaced Persons, there are hundreds of thousands of
other refugees of various nationalities, not only within the occupied zones of
Germany but alfo in Sweden, Denmark, Switzerland and other countries, who
do not, at present, seem to come within the scope of the international refugee
bodies but of these very many have close relatives and friends in Canada who
are prepared to assist in their immigration to, and settlement in, the Dominion.

Having thus ascertained what the prospects were with regard to people
desiring to migrate, the concern of the Company with regard to shipping facili- :
ties, was, naturally, even more urgent. Without taking up the time of the ]
Committee by going unnecessarily into details of the persistent and I may say,
exhaustive, exploration of all known possibilities of this phase of the migration
problem, it was finally clear that the solution lay in one direction only, namely,
that ships could be obtained cnly as the result of negotiations between ‘
governments. - : :

In the exhaustive efforts made by the Canadian Pacific to find available
vessels, the great shortage of passenger ships in the world today, due to*
war losses, was clearly demonstrated and none of these have been made good
since the end of hostilities. - It was also learned that at present in the United 1
States no suitable war-built ships are available for sale or charter to non- -
citizens of the United States. Even if.any such ships were available for
charter, they would not be permitted, in their present condition, to carry
passengers in commercial service under private operation. With few exceptions,
all Liberty and Vietory types of U.S. ships which were, and are being used as
troopships are really cargo ships with berths fitted on board for the carriage
of troops. They do not comply with the regulations governing sub-division of
compartments, fire defence appliances and life saving appliances for passenger
vessels. Such vessels could, therefore, only be operated on Government, account
and would not be permitted to carry passengers in commercial service for private
owners. As a matter of fact, enquiries were made by the Canadian Pacific
to ascertain if any pre-war U.S. passenger vessels were available for charter,
but without success. Enquiries were also made amongst the Scandinavian

- countries, with the same result.

As an instance of the situation brought about by the war, it is understood
that there are about 50 passenger liners of British registry, each of over 20,000
tons, for which reconversion plans have not yet been definitely made and which
are now being operated on account of the British Ministry of Transport as
troopships. None of these vessels have so far been permitted to operate in
commercial service under private ownership, and will not be, until they have
been reconverted, surveyed by Lloyds and furnished with passenger and safety
certificates. Troopships could be used for the carrying of immigrants and
refugees or displaced persons but only by arrangement between the governments
concerned, whereby the requirements of the Safety of Life at Sea Convention
would be waived for emergency purposes.

The significance of the foregoing situation as it applies to Canada is readily
apparent when one thinks of the great number of immigrants which might
have been admitted this year had shipping been available. As a result of
recent amendments to orders in council, the latest of which was P.C. 371,
as amended by P.C. 1734 announced last week, it is obvious that compared
with the large number of immigrants which could now be admitted there will
be a very great deficit. With the shipping presently in sight it is not considered
possible to move more than 25,000 this year. On the other hand, I do not
hold the view that because of the regrettable shortage of shipping new measures
such as those recently announced are in any way premature. It takes con-
siderable time for such new measures to become really effective.
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I have referred previously to recent statements by the Dominions Secretary,
Viscount Addison. Another of his announcements, as reported in the press, was
that agreements had been reached with Australia and South Africa for making
available a number of troopships which will take 6,900 Britons to Australia
and an unestimated number to South Africa this year. Next year, the report
said, immigration to Australia would be doubled. While I have referred to this
chiefly to point out the fact that this arrangement with respect to steamships
was an arrangement between governments, <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>